
Invesco Markets plc
Annual report and audited Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 30 November 2019



 



   Contents 
 

Organisation 1 
General Information 3 
Investment Manager's Report 7 
Directors’ Report 18 
Depositary’s Report to the Shareholder 25 
Independent Auditors’ Report 26 
  
Financial Statements of the Company
Statement of comprehensive income 31 
Statement of financial position 32 
Statement of changes in net assets attributable to 
holders of redeemable shares 33 
Statement of cash flows 34 
Notes to the Financial Statements 35 

Financial Statements of the Funds
Invesco EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF 60 
Invesco MSCI Europe UCITS ETF 72 
Invesco STOXX Europe Mid 200 UCITS ETF 83
Invesco STOXX Europe Small 200 UCITS ETF 94
Invesco FTSE 100 UCITS ETF 105 
Invesco FTSE 250 UCITS ETF 116 
Invesco MSCI USA UCITS ETF 127 
Invesco Russell 2000 UCITS ETF 144 
Invesco STOXX Europe 600 UCITS ETF 157 
Invesco MSCI Japan UCITS ETF 169 
Invesco MSCI World UCITS ETF 185 
Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised Media  
UCITS ETF

199 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised Personal & 
Household Goods UCITS ETF 

210 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised Banks  
UCITS ETF

222 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised Chemicals  
UCITS ETF

233 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised 
Construction & Materials UCITS ETF 

243 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised Financial 
Services UCITS ETF

254 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised Food & 
Beverage UCITS ETF

264 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised Oil & Gas 
UCITS ETF 

275 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised Retail  
UCITS ETF

286 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised Travel &  
Leisure UCITS ETF

296 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised 
Automobiles & Parts UCITS ETF 

307 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised Basic 
Resources UCITS ETF

318 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised Health Care 
UCITS ETF

328 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised Industrial 
Goods & Services UCITS ETF 

339 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised Insurance 
UCITS ETF

350 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised Technology 
UCITS ETF

362 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised 
Telecommunications UCITS ETF 

373 

Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised Utilities  
UCITS ETF

383 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

Financial Statements of the Funds (continued) 
Invesco Technology S&P US Select Sector  
UCITS ETF

394 

Invesco Health Care S&P US Select Sector  
UCITS ETF

412 

Invesco Industrials S&P US Select Sector  
UCITS ETF 

427 

Invesco Utilities S&P US Select Sector UCITS ETF 443 
Invesco Materials S&P US Select Sector  
UCITS ETF 

458 

Invesco Consumer Discretionary S&P US Select  
Sector UCITS ETF

475 

Invesco Energy S&P US Select Sector UCITS ETF 492 
Invesco Consumer Staples S&P US Select Sector 
UCITS ETF 510 
Invesco Financials S&P US Select Sector  
UCITS ETF

527 

Invesco RDX UCITS ETF 542 
Invesco MSCI Emerging Markets UCITS ETF 559 
Invesco S&P 500 UCITS ETF 576 
Invesco EURO STOXX Optimised Banks UCITS ETF 596 
Invesco Commodity Composite UCITS ETF 608 
Invesco MSCI Europe Value UCITS ETF 616 
Invesco Morningstar US Energy Infrastructure MLP 
UCITS ETF 

628 

Invesco Goldman Sachs Equity Factor Index World  
UCITS ETF

643 

Invesco JPX-Nikkei 400 UCITS ETF 653 
Invesco Nasdaq Biotech UCITS ETF 667 
Invesco Goldman Sachs Equity Factor Index 
Europe UCITS ETF 

680 

Invesco RBIS Equal Risk Equity Europe UCITS ETF 689 
Invesco STOXX Eurozone Exporters UCITS ETF 695 
Invesco STOXX Japan Exporters UCITS ETF 707 
Invesco Real Estate S&P US Select Sector  
UCITS ETF

724 

Invesco RBIS Equal Risk Equity US UCITS ETF 739 
Invesco GPR Real Estate Europe UCITS ETF 744 
Invesco Bloomberg Commodity UCITS ETF 749 
Invesco KBW NASDAQ Fintech UCITS ETF 758 
Invesco Bloomberg Commodity Ex-Agriculture 
UCITS ETF

770 

Invesco MSCI Europe ex-UK UCITS ETF 778 
Invesco Tradable European Earnings Momentum 
Factor UCITS ETF

788 

Invesco Tradable European Low Beta Factor  
UCITS ETF

798 

Invesco Tradable European Price Momentum 
Factor UCITS ETF 

808 

Invesco Tradable European Quality Factor  
UCITS ETF

818 

Invesco Tradable European Value Factor 
UCITS ETF

828 

Invesco MSCI Saudi Arabia UCITS ETF 838 
Invesco Goldman Sachs Equity Factor Index 
Emerging Markets UCITS ETF 847 
Invesco Communications S&P US Select Sector 
UCITS ETF 856 
Invesco MSCI Canada UCITS ETF 871 
Invesco S&P SmallCap 600 UCITS ETF 874 
Invesco MSCI Kuwait UCITS ETF 888 
Schedules of Material Portfolio Changes 895 
Appendix 1 - Supplementary Information 968 
Appendix 2 - Remuneration Policy 973 

 
 

















































































































































Invesco MSCI Europe UCITS ETF  
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements 2019 
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Statement of comprehensive income 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

Financial 
year ended

30 November
2018
EUR

Income  
Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss 3 72,813,451 (19,290,091)
Total investment income/(expense) 72,813,451 (19,290,091)
Operating expenses 4 (884,446) (925,702)
Net income/(expense) 71,929,005 (20,215,793)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 71,929,005 (20,215,793)
Increase/(decrease) in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of 
Redeemable Shares 71,929,005 (20,215,793)
 
There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the increase/(decrease) in Net Assets 
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares of the Company. In arriving at the results of the financial year, all 
amounts above relate to continuing operations. 
 
Statement of financial position 
 
As at 30 November 2019 Notes As at 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

As at
30 November

2018
EUR

Current Assets  
Assets at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) 509,026,453 499,750,037
Assets at amortised cost  
Cash and cash equivalents 5 5,851,016 129
Debtors 6 104,004,968 98,868,952
Total Current Assets 618,882,437 598,619,118
Current Liabilities  
Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) (389,312) -
Other financial liabilities  
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 7 (109,858,396) (74,955,509)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Shares) (110,247,708) (74,955,509)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 508,634,729 523,663,609
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements 2019 
 
 

 
Invesco MSCI Europe UCITS ETF   73 

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

Financial 
year ended

30 November
2018
EUR

Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 
at the beginning of the financial year  523,663,609 530,404,378
Increase/(decrease) in Net Assets Attributable to  
Holders of Redeemable Shares from operations 71,929,005 (20,215,793)
Amounts received on issue of Redeemable Shares 279,478,534 212,029,984
Amounts paid on redemption of Redeemable Shares (366,436,419) (198,554,960)
(Decrease)/increase in Net Assets resulting from Share transactions (86,957,885) 13,475,024
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 
at the end of the financial year 10 508,634,729 523,663,609
 
Statement of cash flows 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

Financial 
year ended

30 November
2018
EUR

Cash flows from operating activities  
Proceeds from sale of investments 11,638,275,199 9,215,355,904
Purchase of investments (11,568,527,262) (9,189,385,416)
Management fees paid (926,059) (927,508)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 68,821,878 25,032,980
Cash flows from financing activities  
Proceeds from issue of Redeemable Shares 303,436,286 188,072,232
Payments of redemption of Redeemable Shares (366,436,419) (213,004,924)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (63,000,133) (24,932,692)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,821,745 100,288
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 129 177
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash equivalents 29,142 (100,336)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5 5,851,016 129
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 
 
General information 
Investment objective and policy 
The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve the 
Target Performance (which is the net total return 
performance of the Reference Index (being the MSCI 
Europe TR Net Index) (less fees, expenses and transaction 
costs)). The Fund does not intend to make dividend 
payments. 
 
The Reference Index is a free float adjusted market 
capitalisation Reference Index that is designed to measure 
the equity performance of the developed markets in 
Europe. 
 
The Fund shall not invest more than 10% of its net assets 
in other UCITS or other open or closed ended CIS. 
 
The functional currency of the Fund is Euro and the Fund 
is valued in Euro. 
 
1. Significant accounting policies 
 
See pages 35 to 44 for significant accounting policies. 
 
2. Financial risk management 
 
See pages 44 to 50 for general notes. The risk 
management technique applying to this Fund is the 
Commitment Approach. A sensitivity analysis is presented 
below to reflect the Commitment Approach applied. 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis 
 
The sensitivity analysis for the Fund assumes a change in 
the market price of the investments while holding all other 
variables constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur and 
changes in some of the variables may be correlated.  
 
In addition, as the sensitivity analysis uses historical data 
as a basis for determining future events, it does not 
encompass all possible scenarios, particularly those that 
are of an extreme nature. The reasonably possible 
decrease in the Reference Index is based on the 
movement over the financial year ended 30 November 
2019. These movements may be different from the long 
term volatility of the Reference Index. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As detailed in the tables below, the decrease in the 
Reference Index (the MSCI Europe TR Net Index) at 30 
November 2019 and 30 November 2018, with all other 
variables held constant, would have resulted in an 
estimated decrease in the net assets attributable to 
holders of redeemable participating shares as follows, 
increase in Reference Index by 1% will have equal and 
opposite effect: 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November 
2019 

Reference 
Index 

close at 
30 November 

2019 

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary 
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of 

the Reference 
Index
EUR

185,859.964847 2,736.67 2,709.30 (5,086,373.90)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2019. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2019, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November  
2018 

Reference 
Index 

close at 
30 November 

2018 

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of 

the Reference 
Index
EUR

224,072.226475 2,337.23 2,313.86 (5,237,078.82)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2018. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2018, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
 
Based on historic movements and volatilities in these 
market variables, and management’s knowledge and 
experience of the financial markets, it was determined 
that the movements listed above are reasonably possible 
over the financial year. 
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2. Financial risk management (continued)  
 
B) Foreign currency risk/interest rate risk 
 
Foreign currency and interest rate exposure is minimal 
due to the nature and strategy of the investments held by 
the Fund. As a result, no sensitivity analysis or exposure 
tables have been disclosed for foreign currency or interest 
rate risk. The Fund is not exposed to significant currency 
risk as all the swaps settle in the base currency of the 
Fund. 
 
C) Liquidity risk 
 
The following tables analyse the Fund's non-derivative 
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period at the Statement of financial 
position date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows. Balances due within twelve months equal their 
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not 
significant. All amounts are stated in Euro. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Spot contracts payable 138,105 - 138,105
Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 109,717,631 - 109,717,631
Accrued expenses - 2,660 2,660
Net assets attributable 
to holders of 
Redeemable Shares 508,634,729 - 508,634,729
Total financial liabilities 618,490,465 2,660 618,493,125
 
As at 30 November 
2018 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Spot contracts payable 194,964 - 194,964
Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 74,716,272 - 74,716,272
Accrued expenses - 44,273 44,273
Net assets attributable 
to holders of 
Redeemable Shares 523,663,609 - 523,663,609
Total financial liabilities 598,574,845 44,273 598,619,118

The table below analyse the Fund's derivative financial 
instruments in a loss position and is based on the fact that 
swaps are reset on a monthly basis, rather than the 
contractual maturity date of the swap. All amounts are 
stated in Euro. 
 
As at 30 November  
2019 

7 days to 
1 month

1-3 
months 

More than 
3 months

Financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or 
loss* 389,312 - -
 
There were no derivative financial instruments in a loss 
position held by the Fund at 30 November 2018. 
 
* Derivatives settled net. 
 
D) Fair value 
 
The tables below analyse within the fair value hierarchy 
the Fund's financial assets and liabilities (by class) 
measured at fair value. All amounts are stated in Euro. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 508,033,713 - -
- Derivatives - 992,740 -
Total assets 508,033,713 992,740 -
Liabilities  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Derivatives - 389,312 -
Total liabilities - 389,312 -
 
As at 30 November 
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 499,204,270 - -
- Derivatives - 545,767 -
Total assets 499,204,270 545,767 -
 
The Fund did not hold any Level 3 instruments during the 
financial year (30 November 2018: Nil). There were no 
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the financial 
year. 
 
Investments whose values are based on quoted market 
prices in active markets, and therefore classified within 
Level 1, include active listed equities. The Fund does not 
adjust the quoted price for these instruments. 
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7. Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

As at
30 November

2018
EUR

Management fees 2,660 44,273
Spot contracts payable 138,105 194,964
Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 109,717,631 74,716,272
       109,858,396 74,955,509
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager. 
 
8. Segment reporting 
 
IFRS 8 requires disclosures in respect of the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) and certain 
disclosures in respect of the country of origin of income. 
Management have determined the CODM is the Board of 
Directors. 
 
All revenues are derived from financial assets and are 
attributable to a country based on the domicile of the 
issuer of the instrument. The Schedule of investments 
discloses the investments of the Fund at their fair value by 
their respective country of origin. 
 
There was no dividend income received by the Fund for 
the financial year ended 30 November 2019 (30 
November 2018: Nil). 
 
9. Share capital 
 
Redeemable  
shares in issue 

Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

Financial 
year ended

30 November
2018
EUR

Number of Redeemable Shares 
Issued and Fully Paid   
Balance at beginning  
of financial year 2,579,220 2,496,215
Issued during financial year 1,267,740 1,008,190
Redeemed during  
financial year (1,703,382) (925,185)
Total number of  
Redeemable Shares in issue at 
end of financial year 2,143,578 2,579,220
 

10. Net asset value 
 
 As at

30 November
2019
EUR

As at 
30 November 

2018 
EUR 

As at
30 November

2017
EUR

Total Net Asset Value  
Class A 
Redeemable Shares 508,634,729 523,663,609 530,404,378
Dealing Net Asset Value 
per Redeemable Share 

Class A  
Redeemable Shares 237.2831 203.0318 212.4835
 
11. Collateral 
 
The collateral for Invesco MSCI Europe UCITS ETF is 
unilateral. The Fund has entered into a Charge Account 
Control Agreement ("the Agreement") with each Swap 
Counterparty being J.P. Morgan Securities plc and 
Goldman Sachs International. The Agreement was in place 
from 25 August 2017 and from 11 August 2017 
respectively. The collateral model involves the pledge of 
collateral to the Swap Counterparties in the form of 
equities. Equities pledged as collateral are marked with an 
asterisk in the Schedule of investments. 
 
There were no securities pledged by the Fund as at  
30 November 2019 (30 November 2018: none). 
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

 Equities: 99.89% (2018: 95.33%)   

 Austria: 0.36% (2018: 0.26%)   

 Building Materials: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

411 Wienerberger AG Class A Com NPV 10,234 0.00

 Insurance: 0.03% (2018: 0.01%)   
6,464 Vienna Insurance Group AG Wiener 

Versicherung Gruppe Class A Com NPV 162,246 0.03

 Oil & Gas: 0.33% (2018: 0.00%)   

31,889 OMV AG Class A Com NPV 1,649,937 0.33

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
0.25%)   

 Total Austria 1,822,417 0.36

    

 Belgium: 7.46% (2018: 1.48%)   

 Banks: 4.39% (2018: 0.00%)   

337,791 KBC Group NV Com NPV 22,341,497 4.39

 Beverages: 1.82% (2018: 0.00%)   

128,359 Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV Com NPV 9,225,161 1.82

 Electric: 0.03% (2018: 0.00%)   

2,255 Elia System Operator SA/NV Com NPV 169,125 0.03

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.61% (2018: 
0.01%)   

22,739 Ackermans & van Haaren NV Com NPV 3,103,874 0.61

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.34%)   

180 Ageas Com NPV 9,806 0.00

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.59%)   

207 Groupe Bruxelles Lambert SA Com NPV 19,065 0.00

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.61% (2018: 0.54%)   

42,080 UCB SA Com NPV 3,095,405 0.61

 Total Belgium 37,963,933 7.46

    

 Denmark: 4.44% (2018: 2.73%)   

 Agriculture: 0.00% (2018: 0.03%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.03%)   

 Beverages: 2.52% (2018: 0.72%)   

98,079 Carlsberg A/S Class B Com DKK20.00 12,806,510 2.52

122 Royal Unibrew A/S Com DKK2.00 9,967 0.00

 Building Materials: 0.00% (2018: 0.39%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.51% (2018: 0.55%)   

75,329 H Lundbeck A/S Com DKK5.00 2,619,294 0.51

 
Telecommunications: 1.40% (2018: 
0.47%)   

166,677 GN Store Nord A/S Com DKK4.00 7,127,373 1.40

 Transportation: 0.01% (2018: 0.54%)   

303 DSV Panalpina A/S Com DKK1.00 29,945 0.01

 Total Denmark 22,593,089 4.44

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

 Faroe Islands: 0.00% (2018: 0.23%)   

 Food: 0.00% (2018: 0.23%)   

Total Faroe Islands - -

    

 Finland: 6.93% (2018: 8.52%)   

 Airlines: 0.03% (2018: 0.00%)   

24,062 Finnair Oyj Com EUR0.85 142,688 0.03

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.14% (2018: 
0.17%)   

28,492 Nokian Renkaat Oyj Com NPV 699,764 0.14

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.10%)   

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.09%)   

 Electric: 0.44% (2018: 0.91%)   

104,154 Fortum Oyj Com EUR3.40 2,227,854 0.44

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 Food: 0.56% (2018: 0.34%)   

46,460 Kesko Oyj Class B Com NPV 2,845,210 0.56

 
Forest Products & Paper: 0.43% (2018: 
1.85%)   

72,799 UPM-Kymmene Oyj Com NPV 2,207,266 0.43

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.54% (2018: 0.00%)   

95,395 Konecranes Oyj Com EUR0.50 2,756,916 0.54

 Healthcare-Services: 0.02% (2018: 0.00%)   

10,201 Terveystalo Oyj Com NPV 106,702 0.02

 Insurance: 2.84% (2018: 2.38%)   

393,731 Sampo Oyj Class A Com NPV 14,449,928 2.84

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.14% (2018: 
1.75%)   

7,921 Kone Oyj Class B Com NPV 450,071 0.09

11,812 Valmet Oyj Com NPV 240,020 0.05

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.06% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

27,312 Uponor Oyj Com NPV 318,185 0.06

 Oil & Gas: 1.29% (2018: 0.91%)   

214,292 Neste Oyj Com NPV 6,574,479 1.29

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.06% (2018: 0.00%)   

7,660 Orion Oyj Class B Com EUR0.65 302,570 0.06

 Real Estate: 0.02% (2018: 0.00%)   

5,967 Kojamo Oyj Com NPV 89,386 0.02

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.36% (2018: 
0.00%)   

37,656 Elisa Oyj Com NPV 1,826,693 0.36

Total Finland 35,237,732 6.93
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

 Germany: 27.93% (2018: 24.89%)   

 Aerospace/Defense: 0.22% (2018: 0.29%)   

4,526 MTU Aero Engines AG Class A Com NPV 1,112,943 0.22

 Airlines: 0.09% (2018: 0.00%)   

26,349 Deutsche Lufthansa AG Com NPV 453,730 0.09

 Apparel: 0.53% (2018: 0.03%)   

9,624 Adidas AG Class A Com NPV 2,721,186 0.53

 Auto Manufacturers: 2.04% (2018: 2.49%)   
51,520 Bayerische Motoren Werke AG Class A 

Com EUR1.00 3,776,416 0.74

2,989 Bayerische Motoren Werke AG Pref 
EUR1.00 167,384 0.03

34,922 Daimler AG Com NPV 1,788,006 0.35

54,305 Porsche Automobil Holding SE Pref NPV 3,648,210 0.72

5,896 Volkswagen AG Pref NPV 1,034,630 0.20

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.19% (2018: 
2.97%)   

8,338 Continental AG Class A Com NPV 988,887 0.19

 Banks: 0.07% (2018: 0.15%)   
26,955 Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG Class A 

Com NPV 368,475 0.07

 Building Materials: 0.47% (2018: 0.88%)   

35,468 HeidelbergCement AG Class A Com NPV 2,379,903 0.47

 Chemicals: 1.73% (2018: 3.85%)   

71,889 BASF SE Com NPV 4,904,268 0.96

29,499 Brenntag AG Class A Com NPV 1,428,046 0.28

28,055 Symrise AG Class A Com NPV 2,469,962 0.49

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.88%)   

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 0.30% (2018: 
0.02%)   

14,616 Beiersdorf AG Class A Com NPV 1,547,104 0.30

 Electric: 1.79% (2018: 0.22%)   

588,362 E.ON SE Com NPV 5,588,262 1.10

130,366 RWE AG Class A Com NPV 3,508,149 0.69

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.00% (2018: 0.67%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.02% (2018: 
0.09%)   

1,019 Hochtief AG Class A Com NPV 113,619 0.02

 Healthcare-Services: 2.42% (2018: 0.43%)   
8,231 Fresenius Medical Care AG & Co KGaA 

Com NPV 547,855 0.11

236,394 Fresenius SE & Co KGaA Com NPV 11,734,598 2.31

 
Household Products/Wares: 0.64% (2018: 
0.18%)   

36,946 Henkel AG & Co KGaA Com NPV 3,243,859 0.64

 Insurance: 2.90% (2018: 7.13%)   

16,675 Allianz SE Com NPV 3,624,311 0.71

   

   

   

   

   

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

50,188 Hannover Rueck SE Com NPV 8,456,678 1.66

10,337 Muenchener Rueckversicherungs-
Gesellschaft AG in Muenchen Com NPV 2,693,822 0.53

 Internet: 1.27% (2018: 0.00%)   

115,329 Scout24 AG Class A Com NPV 6,481,490 1.27

 Media: 1.16% (2018: 0.79%)   

434,743 ProSiebenSat.1 Media SE Com NPV 5,916,852 1.16

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 1.26% 
(2018: 0.17%)   

54,725 Siemens AG Com NPV 6,409,392 1.26

 Pharmaceuticals: 4.12% (2018: 0.13%)   

249,782 Bayer AG Com NPV 17,160,023 3.37

36,179 Merck KGaA Com NPV 3,834,974 0.75

 Real Estate: 2.00% (2018: 0.20%)   

267,319 Deutsche Wohnen SE Com NPV 9,476,459 1.86

700 TAG Immobilien AG Class A Com NPV 15,288 0.00

24,363 TLG Immobilien AG Class A Com NPV 687,037 0.14

 Retail: 0.31% (2018: 0.63%)   

3,439 Fielmann AG Class A Com NPV 243,653 0.05

30,561 Hugo Boss AG Com NPV 1,306,483 0.26

 Semiconductors: 0.50% (2018: 0.00%)   

33,668 Siltronic AG Class A Com NPV 2,530,487 0.50

 Software: 1.51% (2018: 0.07%)   

151 CompuGroup Medical SE Com NPV 9,370 0.00

1,398 New Work SE Com NPV 429,885 0.09

382 RIB Software SE Com NPV 9,137 0.00

49,692 SAP SE Com NPV 6,135,967 1.21

35,007 Software AG Class A Com NPV 1,071,564 0.21

 
Telecommunications: 1.88% (2018: 
0.29%)   

388,704 Deutsche Telekom AG Com NPV 5,922,294 1.17

153,296 Freenet AG Com NPV 3,239,144 0.64

129,365 Telefonica Deutschland Holding AG Com 
NPV 358,470 0.07

 Transportation: 0.51% (2018: 2.33%)   

75,997 Deutsche Post AG Com NPV 2,571,738 0.51

Total Germany 142,110,010 27.93

    

 Luxembourg: 1.07% (2018: 1.81%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.27%)   

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.48% (2018: 0.00%)   

254,533 Subsea 7 SA Com USD2.00 2,419,372 0.48

 Real Estate: 0.59% (2018: 1.54%)   

376,476 Aroundtown SA Com EUR0.01 2,967,384 0.58

2,002 Grand City Properties SA Com EUR0.10 42,162 0.01

Total Luxembourg 5,428,918 1.07
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

 Auto Manufacturers: 2.29% (2018: 0.33%)   

829,452 Volvo AB Class B Com SEK1.20 11,635,155 2.29

 Banks: 0.62% (2018: 0.00%)   
2,214 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB Class 

A Com SEK10.00 17,227 0.00

267,741 Swedbank AB Class A Com SEK22.00 3,163,398 0.62

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 1.63% (2018: 
0.00%)   

290,144 Essity AB Class B Com SEK3.35 8,274,706 1.63

 Entertainment: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 Food: 0.00% (2018: 0.26%)   

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.83% (2018: 0.82%)   

255,750 Sandvik AB Class A Com SEK1.20 4,219,992 0.83

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.48% (2018: 
0.00%)   

155,811 Getinge AB Class B Com SEK0.50 2,454,326 0.48

 
Holding Companies-Diversified: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.05%)   

 Home Furnishings: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 
Investment Companies: 0.65% (2018: 
0.00%)   

68,741 Investor AB Class B Com SEK6.25 3,296,936 0.65

 Iron/Steel: 0.45% (2018: 0.40%)   

815,259 SSAB AB Class A Com SEK8.80 2,301,889 0.45

 Lodging: 0.00% (2018: 0.11%)   

 
Machinery-Construction & Mining: 0.82% 
(2018: 0.64%)   

390,601 Epiroc AB Class A Com SEK0.41 4,137,592 0.82

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 0.48%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.41% 
(2018: 0.41%)   

137,872 Trelleborg AB Class B Com SEK25.00 2,063,328 0.41

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 0.34%)   

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.04%)   

484 Castellum AB Class A Com SEK0.50 9,401 0.00

 
Telecommunications: 2.52% (2018: 
0.01%)   

1,569,457 Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson Class B 
Com SEK5.00 12,833,134 2.52

 Total Sweden 54,407,084 10.70

    

 Switzerland: 12.78% (2018: 18.62%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
0.09%)   

 Banks: 1.83% (2018: 2.36%)   

847,368 UBS Group AG Com CHF0.10 9,320,497 1.83

 Building Materials: 2.79% (2018: 0.87%)   

303,792 LafargeHolcim Ltd Com CHF2.00 14,215,221 2.79

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

 Chemicals: 0.60% (2018: 1.29%)   

161,749 Clariant AG Com CHF3.70 3,032,748 0.60

 
Commercial Services: 0.64% (2018: 
0.73%)   

58,211 Adecco Group AG Com CHF0.10 3,265,867 0.64

 Computers: 0.50% (2018: 0.00%)   

64,048 Logitech International SA Com CHF0.25 2,540,685 0.50

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.01% 
(2018: 0.78%)   

283 Cembra Money Bank AG Class A Com 
CHF1.00 26,736 0.01

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 0.19%)   

 Food: 1.03% (2018: 5.72%)   
3 Chocoladefabriken Lindt & Spruengli AG 

Com CHF10.00 20,760 0.00

36 Chocoladefabriken Lindt & Spruengli AG 
Com CHF100.00 2,786,865 0.55

26,124 Nestle SA Com CHF0.10 2,463,787 0.48

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.00% (2018: 
0.54%)   

 Insurance: 2.24% (2018: 3.20%)   

11,978 Helvetia Holding AG Com CHF0.02 1,483,820 0.29

33,988 Swiss Re AG Class A Com CHF0.10 3,340,554 0.66

18,414 Zurich Insurance Group AG Class A Com 
CHF0.10 6,555,878 1.29

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.06%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 3.12% (2018: 0.10%)   

149,561 Novartis AG Com CHF0.50 12,495,502 2.46

11,987 Roche Holding AG Com NPV 3,352,799 0.66

 Real Estate: 0.02% (2018: 0.42%)   

527 Allreal Holding AG Com CHF50.00 91,541 0.02

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 2.26%)   

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

124 Sunrise Communications Group AG Com 
NPV 8,828 0.00

Total Switzerland 65,002,088 12.78

    

 United States: 10.17% (2018: 15.10%)   

 Airlines: 0.00% (2018: 1.17%)   

 Auto Manufacturers: 0.00% (2018: 1.44%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.78%)   

 Biotechnology: 0.91% (2018: 1.77%)   

167,348 ChemoCentryx Inc Com USD0.001 4,603,360 0.91

 
Commercial Services: 2.19% (2018: 
0.00%)   

71,902 Automatic Data Processing Inc Com 
USD0.10 11,136,789 2.19
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.00% (2018: 
1.51%)   

 Home Builders: 0.73% (2018: 0.00%)   

74,320 DR Horton Inc Com USD0.01 3,730,829 0.73

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 3.17%)   

 Oil & Gas: 3.41% (2018: 0.00%)   

211,907 Helmerich & Payne Inc Com USD0.10 7,597,210 1.49

84,360 Pioneer Natural Resources Co Class C 
Com USD0.01 9,781,047 1.92

 Pipelines: 0.89% (2018: 0.00%)   

284,294 Plains GP Holdings LP Class A Com NPV 4,504,459 0.89

 Retail: 2.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

596,181 L Brands Inc Com USD0.50 10,349,088 2.04

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 2.99%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
2.27%)   

 Total United States 51,702,782 10.17

 Total equities 508,033,713 99.89
 

Outperformance swaps**: 0.11% (30 Nov 2018: 0.10%) 

Counterparty CCY Maturity date 

Level 2
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

Goldman Sachs 
International EUR 24/02/2022 829,839 0.16

J.P. Morgan Securities 
plc EUR 30/11/2020 162,901 0.03

Fair value outperformance swaps gains 992,740 0.19

     

Morgan Stanley & Co. 
International plc EUR 10/12/2021 (157,831) (0.03)

Société Générale EUR 28/02/2020 (231,481) (0.05)

Fair value outperformance swaps losses (389,312) (0.08)

  

Fair value outperformance swaps 603,428 0.11

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

Total value of investments 508,637,141 100.00

   

Cash and cash equivalents* 5,851,016 1.15

   

Other net liabilities (5,853,428) (1.15)

   

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 

participating shares 508,634,729 100.00
 
* All cash holdings are held with The Northern Trust Company. 

** These outperformance swaps track the MSCI Europe Total Return Net Index 

or a version of the MSCI Europe Total Return Net Index which reflects a lower 

rate of withholding tax than ordinarily applied within the Reference Index. 

 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap gains 365,160,585. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap losses 145,760,074. 

 

% of
total 

assets

Unaudited Analysis of Total Assets 

Transferable securities and money market instruments admitted 
to official stock exchange listing. 82.09

Transferable securities and money market instruments traded on 
a regulated market. 0.00

Financial derivative instruments. 0.16

Other assets. 17.75

 100.00
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Statement of comprehensive income 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
EUR

Income  
Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss 3 8,930,328 (2,651,534)
Total investment income/(expense) 8,930,328 (2,651,534)
Operating expenses 4 (246,520) (274,462)
Net income/(expense) 8,683,808 (2,925,996)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 8,683,808 (2,925,996)
Increase/(decrease) in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of 
Redeemable Shares 8,683,808 (2,925,996)
 
There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the increase/(decrease) in Net Assets 
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares of the Company. In arriving at the results of the financial year, all 
amounts above relate to continuing operations. 
 
Statement of financial position 
 
As at 30 November 2019 Notes As at 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

As at
30 November

2018
EUR

Current Assets  
Assets at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) 77,894,757 60,144,953
Assets at amortised cost  
Cash and cash equivalents 5 152 198
Debtors 6 367 27,921,433
Total Current Assets 77,895,276 88,066,584
Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) (41,535) (437,002)
Other financial liabilities  
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 7 (4,800,099) (27,923,129)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Shares) (4,841,634) (28,360,131)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 73,053,642 59,706,453
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
EUR

Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares
at the beginning of the financial year  59,706,453 91,135,669
Increase/(decrease) in Net Assets Attributable to 
Holders of Redeemable Shares from operations 8,683,808 (2,925,996)
Amounts received on issue of Redeemable Shares 234,529,150 526,161,201
Amounts paid on redemption of Redeemable Shares (229,865,769) (554,664,421)
Increase/(decrease) in Net Assets resulting from Share transactions 4,663,381 (28,503,220)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares
at the end of the financial year 10 73,053,642 59,706,453
 
Statement of cash flows 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
EUR

Cash flows from operating activities  
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,141,744,376 1,208,942,383
Purchase of investments (1,150,957,326) (1,183,081,582)
Management fees paid (235,739) (278,625)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (9,448,689) 25,582,176
Cash flows from financing activities  
Proceeds from issue of Redeemable Shares 234,529,150 536,540,630
Payments of redemption of Redeemable Shares (225,078,563) (562,083,801)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 9,450,587 (25,543,171)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,898 39,005
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 198 174
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents (1,944) (38,981)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5 152 198
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 
 
General information 
Investment objective and policy 
The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve the 
Target Performance (which is the net total return 
performance of the Reference Index (being the STOXX 
Europe Mid 200 Net TR Index) (less fees, expenses and 
transaction costs)). The Fund does not intend to make 
dividend payments. 
 
The Reference Index is designed to provide a 
representation of mid-capitalisation companies in Austria, 
Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Greece, 
Iceland, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, 
Norway, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland and the 
United Kingdom. 
 
The Fund shall not invest more than 10% of its net assets 
in other UCITS or other open or closed ended CIS. 
 
The functional currency of the Fund is Euro and the Fund 
is valued in Euro. 
 
1. Significant accounting policies 
 
See pages 35 to 44 for significant accounting policies. 
 
2. Financial risk management 
 
See pages 44 to 50 for general notes. The risk 
management technique applying to this Fund is the 
Commitment Approach. A sensitivity analysis is 
presented below to reflect the Commitment Approach 
applied. 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis 
 
The sensitivity analysis for the Fund assumes a change in 
the market price of the investments while holding all other 
variables constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur and 
changes in some of the variables may be correlated. 
 

In addition, as the sensitivity analysis uses historical data 
as a basis for determining future events, it does not 
encompass all possible scenarios, particularly those that 
are of an extreme nature. The reasonably possible 
decrease in the Reference Index is based on the 
movement over the financial year ended 30 November 
2019. These movements may be different from the long 
term volatility of the Reference Index. 
 
As detailed in the tables below, the decrease in the 
Reference Index (the STOXX Europe Mid 200 Net TR 
Index) at 30 November 2019 and 30 November 2018, with 
all other variables held constant, would have resulted in 
an estimated decrease in the net assets attributable to 
holders of redeemable participating shares as follows, 
increase in Reference Index by 1% will have equal and 
opposite effect: 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November 
2019 

Reference 
Index 

close at
30 November

2019

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary 
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of 

the Reference 
Index
EUR

73,747.606972 990.59 980.68 (730,536.42)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2019. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2019, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November 
2018 

Reference 
Index 

close at
30 November

2018

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary 
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of 

the Reference 
Index
EUR

70,230.060389  850.18 841.68 (597,081.93)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2018. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2018, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis (continued)  
 
Based on historic movements and volatilities in these 
market variables, and management’s knowledge and 
experience of the financial markets, it was determined 
that the movements listed above are reasonably possible 
over the financial year. 
 
B) Foreign currency risk/interest rate risk 
 
Foreign currency and interest rate exposure is minimal 
due to the nature and strategy of the investments held by 
the Fund. As a result, no sensitivity analysis or exposure 
tables have been disclosed for foreign currency or interest 
rate risk. The Fund is not exposed to significant currency 
risk as all the swaps settle in the base currency of the 
Fund. 
 
C) Liquidity risk 
 
The tables below analyse the Fund's non-derivative 
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period at the Statement of financial 
position date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows. Balances due within twelve months equal their 
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not 
significant. All amounts are stated in Euro. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 372 - 372
Redemption of units 
awaiting settlement 4,787,206 - 4,787,206
Accrued expenses - 12,521 12,521
Net assets attributable 
to holders of  
Redeemable Shares 73,053,642 - 73,053,642
Total financial liabilities 77,841,220 12,521 77,853,741
 
As at 30 November 
2018 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Spot Contracts Payable 30,450 - 30,450
Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 27,890,939 - 27,890,939
Accrued expenses - 1,740 1,740
Net assets attributable 
to holders of  
Redeemable Shares 59,706,453 - 59,706,453
Total financial liabilities 87,627,842 1,740 87,629,582
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The tables below analyses the Fund's derivative financial 
instruments in a loss position and is based on the fact that 
swaps are reset on a monthly basis, rather than the 
contractual maturity date of the swap. All amounts are 
stated in Euro. 
 
As at 30 November
2019

7 days to 
1 month 

1-3
months

More than 
3 months

Financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit 
or loss* 41,535 - -
 
As at 30 November
2018 

7 days to 
1 month 

1-3
months

More than 
3 months

Financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit 
or loss* 437,002 - -
 
* Derivatives settled net. 
 
D) Fair value  
 
The tables below analyse within the fair value hierarchy 
the Fund's financial assets and liabilities (by class) 
measured at fair value. All amounts are stated in Euro. 
  
As at 30 November 
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 77,820,515 - 911
- Derivatives - 73,331 -
Total assets 77,820,515 73,331 911
Liabilities   
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
- Derivatives - 41,535 -
Total liabilities - 41,535 -
 
As at 30 November 
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 60,144,953 - -
Total assets 60,144,953 - -
Liabilities   
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Derivatives - 437,002 -
Total liabilities - 437,002 -
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
D) Fair value (continued) 
 
Level 3 reconciliation 
The following table reconciles the movement during the 
financial year in investments which have been classified 
into Level 3: 
 
Balance as at 1 December 2018 -
Purchases  -
Sales  -
Net transfer in/(out) of Level 3  911
Total gains recognised in profit or loss  -
Balance as at 30 November 2019 911

 
The Fund did not hold any Level 3 instruments during the 
financial year ended 30 November 2018. There were no 
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the financial 
year. 
 
Investments whose values are based on quoted market 
prices in active markets, and therefore classified within 
Level 1, include active listed equities. The Fund does not 
adjust the quoted price for these instruments. 
 
Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not 
considered to be active but are valued based on quoted 
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing 
sources supported by observable inputs are classified 
within Level 2. 
 
The Level 2 amounts above represent outperformance 
swaps. These are priced using a valuation comprising of 
observable data which tracks the performance of the 
Reference Index against the performance of the Fund's 
underlying equity basket. 
 
The Schedule of investments shows the equities split by 
level, country of origin and industry group. The derivatives 
are outperformance swaps. All equities are classified as 
Level 1 and all outperformance swaps as Level 2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

 
 Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
EUR

Realised gains on sale of 
investments 3,651,546 2,058,931
Realised gains/(losses) on 
outperformance swaps 746,579 (2,462,985)
Net currency losses (1,946) (38,979)
Net change in unrealised 
appreciation/(depreciation)
on investments 4,065,351 (795,433)
Net change in unrealised 
appreciation/(depreciation) 
on outperformance swaps 468,798 (1,413,068)

8,930,328 (2,651,534)   
 

4. Operating expenses 
 
 Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
EUR

Management fees 246,520 274,462
 246,520 274,462
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager.  
 
5. Cash and cash equivalents 
 

As at 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

As at
30 November

2018
EUR

The Northern Trust 
Company* 152 198

152 198
 
* Cash held is unsegregated. 
 

6. Debtors 
 

As at 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

As at 
30 November

2018
EUR

Sale of securities 
awaiting settlement 367 27,890,981
Spot contracts 
receivable - 30,452

367 27,921,433
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7. Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

As at 
30 November

2018
EUR

Management fees 12,521 1,740
Spot contracts payable - 30,450
Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 372 27,890,939
Redemption of units 
awaiting settlement  4,787,206 -
 4,800,099 27,923,129
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager. 
  
8. Segment reporting 
 
IFRS 8 requires disclosures in respect of the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) and certain 
disclosures in respect of the country of origin of income. 
Management have determined the CODM is the Board of 
Directors. 
 
All revenues are derived from financial assets and are 
attributable to a country based on the domicile of the 
issuer of the instrument. The Schedule of investments 
discloses the investments of the Fund at their fair value by 
their respective country of origin. 
 
There was no dividend income received by the Fund for 
the financial year ended 30 November 2019 (30 
November 2018: Nil). 
 
9. Share capital 
 
Redeemable shares 
in issue 

Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018

Number of Redeemable Shares 
Issued and Fully Paid  
Balance at the beginning  
of financial year 727,315 1,050,899
Issued during financial year  2,686,144 5,914,848
Redeemed during  
financial year (2,647,047) (6,238,432)
Total number of  
Redeemable Shares in issue at 
end of financial year 766,412 727,315
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10. Net asset value 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

As at
30 November

2018
EUR

As at
30 November

2017
EUR

Total Net Asset Value 
Class A  
Redeemable Shares 73,053,642 59,706,453 91,135,669
Dealing Net Asset Value  
per Redeemable Share 

 

Class A  
Redeemable Shares 95.3190 82.0916 86.7216
 
11. Collateral 
 
The collateral for Invesco STOXX Europe Mid 200 UCITS 
ETF is unilateral. The Fund has entered into a Charge 
Account Control Agreement ("the Agreement") with each 
Swap Counterparty being J.P. Morgan Securities plc and 
Goldman Sachs International. The Agreement was in place 
from 25 August 2017 and from 11 August 2017 
respectively. The collateral model involves the pledge of 
collateral to the Swap Counterparties in the form of 
equities. Equities pledged as collateral are marked with an 
asterisk in the Schedule of investments. 
 
There were no securities pledged by the Fund as at 30 
November 2019. 
 
The following security was pledged by the Fund at 30 
November 2018 to Goldman Sachs International: 
 

 Counterparty Holding
Fair Value 

EUR

IQVIA Holdings Inc Com 
USD0.01 

Goldman Sachs 
International (1,613) (509,559)

   (509,559)
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 Equities: 106.53% (2018: 100.73%)   

 Austria: 2.34% (2018: 0.05%)   

 Oil & Gas: 2.34% (2018: 0.00%)   

33,027 OMV AG Class A Com NPV 1,708,817 2.34

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.05%)   

 Total Austria 1,708,817 2.34

    

 Belgium: 0.08% (2018: 3.56%)   

 Banks: 0.07% (2018: 0.00%)   

719 KBC Group NV Com NPV 47,555 0.07

 Beverages: 0.00% (2018: 3.53%)   

 Electric: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

115 Elia System Operator SA/NV Com NPV 8,625 0.01

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.01%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

 Total Belgium 56,180 0.08

    

 Denmark: 3.58% (2018: 1.68%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.05%)   

 Beverages: 0.86% (2018: 0.00%)   

7,646 Royal Unibrew A/S Com DKK2.00 624,643 0.86

 Electric: 0.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

364 Orsted A/S Com DKK10.00 30,448 0.04

 
Energy-Alternate Sources: 0.08% (2018: 
0.00%)   

686 Vestas Wind Systems A/S Com DKK1.00 59,257 0.08

 Home Furnishings: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.42% (2018: 0.00%)   

759 H Lundbeck A/S Com DKK5.00 26,391 0.04

5,509 Novo Nordisk A/S Class B Com DKK0.20 281,066 0.38

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

 Software: 0.57% (2018: 0.04%)   

4,301 SimCorp A/S Com DKK1.00 417,916 0.57

 Transportation: 1.61% (2018: 1.55%)   

11,892 DSV Panalpina A/S Com DKK1.00 1,175,248 1.61

 Total Denmark 2,614,969 3.58

    

 Finland: 6.55% (2018: 10.26%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.06% (2018: 
0.00%)   

1,651 Nokian Renkaat Oyj Com NPV 40,549 0.06

 
Commercial Services: 0.07% (2018: 
0.00%)   

3,611 Cramo Oyj NPV 48,243 0.07

 Computers: 0.00% (2018: 0.40%)   

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

    

 
Environmental Control: 0.04% (2018: 
0.00%)   

2,158 Lassila & Tikanoja Oyj Com NPV 31,723 0.04

 Food: 0.00% (2018: 1.72%)   

6 Kesko Oyj Class B Com NPV 367 0.00

 
Forest Products & Paper: 1.37% (2018: 
3.87%)   

33,080 UPM-Kymmene Oyj Com NPV 1,002,986 1.37

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 1.75%)   

 
Machinery-Construction & Mining: 0.03% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

3,520 Outotec Oyj Com NPV 18,867 0.03

 
Machinery-Diversified: 2.29% (2018: 
1.52%)   

28,676 Kone Oyj Class B Com NPV 1,629,370 2.23

2,286 Valmet Oyj Com NPV 46,452 0.06

 Oil & Gas: 2.48% (2018: 0.96%)   

59,146 Neste Oyj Com NPV 1,814,599 2.48

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.07% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,349 Orion Oyj Class B Com EUR0.65 53,285 0.07

 Real Estate: 0.07% (2018: 0.00%)   

3,243 Kojamo Oyj Com NPV 48,580 0.07

 
Telecommunications: 0.07% (2018: 
0.04%)   

1,071 Elisa Oyj Com NPV 51,954 0.07

Total Finland 4,786,975 6.55

    

 Germany: 29.77% (2018: 29.00%)   

 Aerospace/Defense: 0.00% (2018: 0.07%)   

 Airlines: 0.07% (2018: 0.12%)   

2,803 Deutsche Lufthansa AG Com NPV 48,268 0.07

 Apparel: 0.21% (2018: 2.81%)   

449 Adidas AG Class A Com NPV 126,955 0.17

443 Puma SE Com NPV 30,213 0.04

 Auto Manufacturers: 6.08% (2018: 3.13%)   
25,860 Bayerische Motoren Werke AG Class A 

Com EUR1.00 1,895,538 2.59

868 Bayerische Motoren Werke AG Pref 
EUR1.00 48,608 0.07

33,251 Daimler AG Com NPV 1,702,451 2.33

4,530 Volkswagen AG Pref NPV 794,924 1.09

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 1.62% (2018: 
0.87%)   

10,000 Continental AG Class A Com NPV 1,186,000 1.62

 Banks: 0.50% (2018: 0.00%)   

12,775 Aareal Bank AG NPV 357,700 0.49

309 Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG Class A 
Com NPV 4,224 0.01
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 Biotechnology: 0.00% (2018: 0.75%)   

 Chemicals: 4.57% (2018: 7.36%)   

21,495 BASF SE Com NPV 1,466,389 2.01

708 Brenntag AG Class A Com NPV 34,274 0.05

20,806 Symrise AG Class A Com NPV 1,831,760 2.51

 
Commercial Services: 0.01% (2018: 
0.04%)   

100 Sixt SE Pref NPV 6,210 0.01

 Computers: 0.07% (2018: 1.28%)   

634 CANCOM SE Com NPV 34,077 0.05

481 Jenoptik AG Class A Com NPV 12,708 0.02

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 1.82% (2018: 
0.05%)   

12,590 Beiersdorf AG Class A Com NPV 1,332,652 1.82

 Electric: 5.78% (2018: 0.16%)   

198,710 E.ON SE Com NPV 1,887,348 2.58

79,784 Uniper SE Com NPV 2,337,671 3.20

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.00% (2018: 
1.27%)   

 Healthcare-Services: 1.90% (2018: 0.20%)   
1,107 Fresenius Medical Care AG & Co KGaA 

Com NPV 73,682 0.10

26,553 Fresenius SE & Co KGaA Com NPV 1,318,091 1.80

 
Household Products/Wares: 2.53% (2018: 
0.00%)   

21,053 Henkel AG & Co KGaA Com NPV 1,848,453 2.53

 Insurance: 0.35% (2018: 0.30%)   

480 Allianz SE Com NPV 104,328 0.14

287 Hannover Rueck SE Com NPV 48,359 0.07

388 Muenchener Rueckversicherungs-
Gesellschaft AG in Muenchen Com NPV 101,113 0.14

 Leisure Time: 0.00% (2018: 2.18%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.04% (2018: 
0.00%)   

1,290 Jungheinrich AG Pref NPV 30,263 0.04

 
Metal Fabricate/Hardware: 0.00% (2018: 
0.53%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.31% 
(2018: 4.24%)   

1,941 Siemens AG Com NPV 227,330 0.31

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.40% (2018: 0.22%)   

1,082 Bayer AG Com NPV 74,333 0.10

2,078 Merck KGaA Com NPV 220,268 0.30

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 1.11%)   

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

 Semiconductors: 0.00% (2018: 1.97%)   

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

    

 Software: 0.68% (2018: 0.12%)   

731 RIB Software SE Com NPV 17,485 0.02

3,905 SAP SE Com NPV 482,189 0.66

 
Telecommunications: 0.10% (2018: 
0.12%)   

1,969 Deutsche Telekom AG Com NPV 30,000 0.04

188 Freenet AG Com NPV 3,972 0.01

12,395
Telefonica Deutschland Holding AG Com 
NPV 34,347 0.05

 Transportation: 2.73% (2018: 0.06%)   

58,994 Deutsche Post AG Com NPV 1,996,357 2.73

Total Germany 21,748,540 29.77

    

 Ireland: 0.00% (2018: 0.69%)   

 Building Materials: 0.00% (2018: 0.69%)   

Total Ireland - -

    

 Luxembourg: 0.05% (2018: 0.04%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.04%)   

 Real Estate: 0.05% (2018: 0.00%)   

4,299 Aroundtown SA Com EUR0.01 33,885 0.05

Total Luxembourg 33,885 0.05

    

 Netherlands: 9.38% (2018: 7.61%)   

 Banks: 0.03% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,870 ING Groep NV Com EUR0.01 19,530 0.03

 Beverages: 1.84% (2018: 1.03%)   

15,461 Heineken Holding NV Com EUR1.60 1,345,107 1.84

 Chemicals: 2.47% (2018: 0.01%)   

15,503 Koninklijke DSM NV Com EUR1.50 1,802,999 2.47

 
Commercial Services: 0.93% (2018: 
0.00%)   

12,894 Randstad NV Com EUR0.10 681,577 0.93

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.50%)   

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.07% (2018: 0.04%)   

1,795 Signify NV Com EUR0.01 48,591 0.07

 Electronics: 1.29% (2018: 0.06%)   

22,399 Koninklijke Philips NV Com EUR0.20 944,006 1.29

 Food: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   
17 Koninklijke Ahold Delhaize NV Com 

EUR0.01 398 0.00

80 Wessanen Com EUR1.00 911 0.00
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Healthcare-Products: 0.95% (2018: 
0.00%)   

205 QIAGEN NV Com EUR0.01 - Xetra 7,966 0.01

25,474 Wright Medical Group NV EUR0.03 687,793 0.94

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.12%)   

 Leisure Time: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 0.04%)   

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.00% (2018: 0.84%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 1.79% (2018: 0.00%)   

76,672 Mylan NV Com EUR0.01 1,305,913 1.79

 Semiconductors: 0.00% (2018: 4.89%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.01% (2018: 
0.07%)   

760 Altice Europe NV EUR0.01 4,106 0.01

 Total Netherlands 6,848,897 9.38

    

 Norway: 2.47% (2018: 9.39%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
0.02%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 1.69%)   

 Chemicals: 1.29% (2018: 0.05%)   

27,585 Yara International ASA Com NOK1.70 943,994 1.29

 
Environmental Control: 0.00% (2018: 
0.06%)   

 Food: 0.01% (2018: 1.82%)   

578 Orkla ASA Com NOK1.25 5,081 0.01

 Insurance: 0.46% (2018: 0.76%)   

579 Gjensidige Forsikring ASA Com NOK2.00 9,890 0.01

50,928 Storebrand ASA Com NOK5.00 331,211 0.45

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 1.00%)   

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 3.51%)   

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.04% (2018: 0.48%)   

18,285 PGS ASA Com NOK3.00 28,028 0.04

 
Telecommunications: 0.67% (2018: 
0.00%)   

29,620 Telenor ASA Com NOK6.00 490,628 0.67

 Total Norway 1,808,832 2.47

    

 Portugal: 5.32% (2018: 0.51%)   

 Food: 2.54% (2018: 0.04%)   
125,910 Jeronimo Martins SGPS SA Com 

EUR1.00 1,825,065 2.50

33,180 Sonae SGPS SA Com EUR1.00 30,210 0.04

 
Forest Products & Paper: 0.01% (2018: 
0.47%)   

808 Corticeira Amorim-Sociedade Gestora 
EUR1 8,807 0.01

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

    

    

 Oil & Gas: 2.77% (2018: 0.00%)   

137,013 Galp Energia SGPS SA Com EUR1.00 2,024,367 2.77

Total Portugal 3,888,449 5.32

    

 Spain: 8.14% (2018: 5.24%)   

 Electric: 4.47% (2018: 0.00%)   

43,526 Endesa SA Com EUR1.20 1,074,222 1.47

95,000 Iberdrola SA Com EUR0.75 848,160 1.16

75,843 Red Electrica Corp SA Com EUR0.50 1,346,213 1.84

 Gas: 1.23% (2018: 0.00%)   

39,546 Enagas SA Com EUR1.50 894,135 1.23

 Oil & Gas: 2.44% (2018: 0.99%)   

124,824 Repsol SA Com EUR1.00 1,783,735 2.44

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 4.25%)   

Total Spain 5,946,465 8.14

    

 Sweden: 7.13% (2018: 7.14%)   

 Agriculture: 0.00% (2018: 0.44%)   
54 Swedish Match AB Class A Com 

SEK1.98 2,347 0.00

 Auto Manufacturers: 0.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

2,229 Volvo AB Class B Com SEK1.20 31,267 0.04

 Banks: 0.12% (2018: 0.02%)   
6,345 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB Class 

A Com SEK10.00 49,369 0.07

3,306 Swedbank AB Class A Com SEK22.00 39,061 0.05

 Building Materials: 0.35% (2018: 0.00%)   
18,617 Nibe Industrier AB Class B Com 

SEK0.16 258,240 0.35

 
Distribution/Wholesale: 0.00% (2018: 
0.46%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.01%)   

 Entertainment: 0.00% (2018: 0.40%)   

 Food: 0.02% (2018: 0.04%)   

686 AAK AB Com SEK 10.00 11,375 0.02

 
Forest Products & Paper: 1.06% (2018: 
0.00%)   

28,550 Holmen AB Class B Com SEK25.00 771,486 1.06

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.02% (2018: 0.04%)   

817 Sandvik AB Class A Com SEK1.20 13,481 0.02

 
Healthcare-Products: 1.03% (2018: 
0.57%)   

47,793 Getinge AB Class B Com SEK0.50 752,833 1.03

 
Holding Companies-Diversified: 0.78% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

26,144 Industrivarden AB Class A Com SEK2.50 559,826 0.77

415 Industrivarden AB Class C Com SEK2.50 8,733 0.01
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 Home Furnishings: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 Iron/Steel: 0.00% (2018: 0.60%)   

 
Machinery-Construction & Mining: 0.42% 
(2018: 2.43%)   

9,931 Atlas Copco AB Class B Com NPV 291,317 0.40

1,103 Epiroc AB Class A Com SEK0.41 11,684 0.02

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.83%)   

 Oil & Gas: 1.11% (2018: 0.01%)   
29,096 Lundin Petroleum AB Class A Com 

SEK0.01 813,808 1.11

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 1.22%)   

 Real Estate: 0.52% (2018: 0.06%)   

103 Castellum AB Class A Com SEK0.50 2,001 0.00

43,469 Kungsleden AB Class A Com SEK0.42 377,472 0.52

 
Telecommunications: 1.66% (2018: 
0.00%)   

148,450 Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson Class B 
Com SEK5.00 1,213,846 1.66

 Total Sweden 5,208,146 7.13

    

 Switzerland: 22.63% (2018: 12.51%)   

 Banks: 1.65% (2018: 1.40%)   

109,930 UBS Group AG Com CHF0.10 1,209,159 1.65

 Building Materials: 3.21% (2018: 2.04%)   

50,060 LafargeHolcim Ltd Com CHF2.00 2,342,438 3.21

 Chemicals: 1.15% (2018: 0.00%)   

44,824 Clariant AG Com CHF3.70 840,437 1.15

 
Commercial Services: 0.05% (2018: 
0.01%)   

612 Adecco Group AG Com CHF0.10 34,336 0.05

 Computers: 1.40% (2018: 0.00%)   

25,822 Logitech International SA Com CHF0.25 1,024,319 1.40

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.64% 
(2018: 0.06%)   

4,928 Cembra Money Bank AG Class A Com 
CHF1.00 465,571 0.64

 Electric: 0.47% (2018: 0.00%)   

5,354 BKW AG Class A Com NPV 341,584 0.47

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.00% (2018: 0.05%)   

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 0.05%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 1.14% (2018: 
0.00%)   

5,184 Flughafen Zurich AG Com CHF10.00 834,138 1.14

 Food: 1.70% (2018: 2.88%)   

651 Barry Callebaut AG Com CHF0.02 1,187,521 1.62

  

  

  

  

  

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

 

 

4 Chocoladefabriken Lindt & Spruengli AG 
Com CHF10.00 27,680 0.04

302 Nestle SA Com CHF0.10 28,482 0.04

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.00% (2018: 0.04%)   

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.01% (2018: 
0.02%)   

15 Sonova Holding AG Com CHF0.05 3,108 0.00

36 Tecan Group AG Com CHF0.10 8,776 0.01

 Insurance: 4.66% (2018: 1.84%)   

6,934 Baloise Holding AG Com CHF0.10 1,093,699 1.50

2,530 Swiss Life Holding AG Com CHF5.10 1,138,391 1.56

3,279 Zurich Insurance Group AG Class A Com 
CHF0.10 1,167,412 1.60

 
Investment Companies: 0.81% (2018: 
0.49%)   

8,226 Pargesa Holding SA Class B Com 
CHF20.00 589,020 0.81

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.03%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 4.90% (2018: 3.48%)   

14,599 Novartis AG Com CHF0.50 1,219,715 1.67

8,452 Roche Holding AG Com NPV 2,364,049 3.23

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

4 Allreal Holding AG Com CHF50.00 695 0.00

10 PSP Swiss Property AG Com CHF0.10 1,181 0.00

 Retail: 0.83% (2018: 0.05%)   

11,076 Galenica AG Class A Com CHF0.10 604,621 0.83

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.05%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

74 Sunrise Communications Group AG Com 
NPV 5,269 0.01

Total Switzerland 16,531,601 22.63

    

 United Kingdom: 0.00% (2018: 0.82%)   

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.82%)   

Total United Kingdom - -

    

 United States: 9.09% (2018: 12.23%)   

 Airlines: 0.00% (2018: 0.71%)   

 Chemicals: 2.74% (2018: 0.00%)   
5,933 Air Products & Chemicals Inc Com 

USD1.00 1,271,672 1.74

34,195 Univar Solutions Inc Com USD0.01 726,326 1.00

 Computers: 0.00% (2018: 1.97%)   

 
Distribution/Wholesale: 0.70% (2018: 
0.00%)   

26,738 KAR Auction Services Inc Com USD0.01 512,159 0.70
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 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 1.06%)   

 Food: 0.00% (2018: 0.68%)   

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.00% (2018: 
0.71%)   

 Healthcare-Services: 0.00% (2018: 0.92%)   

 Internet: 1.78% (2018: 0.68%)   

7,506 VeriSign Inc Com USD0.001 1,298,471 1.78

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 1.00%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 2.33%)   

 Oil & Gas: 1.10% (2018: 0.00%)   

22,455 Helmerich & Payne Inc Com USD0.10 805,048 1.10

 
Packaging & Containers: 0.59% (2018: 
0.00%)   

11,804 Westrock Co Com USD0.01 431,757 0.59

 Pipelines: 0.82% (2018: 0.00%)   

37,783 Plains GP Holdings LP Class A Com NPV 598,648 0.82

 Retail: 1.36% (2018: 1.36%)   

57,353 L Brands Inc Com USD0.50 995,589 1.36

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.81%)   

 Total United States 6,639,670 9.09

 Total equities 77,821,426 106.53
 

Outperformance Swaps**: 0.04% (2018: -0.73%) 

Counterparty CCY Maturity date 

Level 2 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

Goldman Sachs 
International EUR 24/02/2022 53,287 0.07

Société Générale EUR 28/02/2020 20,044 0.03

Fair value outperformance swaps gains 73,331 0.10

    

J.P. Morgan Securities 
plc EUR 30/11/2020  (37,176)  (0.05)

Morgan Stanley & Co. 
International plc EUR 10/12/2021  (4,359) (0.01)

Fair value outperformance swaps losses (41,535) (0.06)

  

Fair value outperformance swaps 31,796 0.04

 
 
 

 

 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

Total value of investments 77,853,222 106.57

   

Cash and cash equivalents* 152 0.00

   

Other net liabilities (4,799,732) (6.57)

   

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
participating shares 73,053,642 100.00

  

* All cash holdings are held with The Northern Trust Company. 

** These outperformance swaps track the STOXX Mid 200 Net TR Index. 

 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap gains 35,672,269. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap losses 42,003,735. 

 

 

% of
total 

assets

Unaudited Analysis of Total Assets  
Transferable securities and money market instruments admitted to 
official stock exchange listing. 99.91

Transferable securities and money market instruments traded on a 
regulated market. 0.00

Financial derivative instruments. 0.09

Other assets. 0.00

 100.00
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Statement of comprehensive income 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
EUR

Income  
Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 3 632,613 (405,215)
Total investment income/(expense) 632,613 (405,215)
Operating expenses 4 (12,819) (17,257)
Net income/(expense) 619,794 (422,472)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 619,794 (422,472)
Increase/(decrease) in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Shares 619,794 (422,472)
 
There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the increase/(decrease) in Net Assets 
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares of the Company. In arriving at the results of the financial year, all 
amounts above relate to continuing operations. 
 
Statement of financial position 
 
As at 30 November 2019 Notes As at 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

As at
30 November 

2018
EUR

Current Assets  
Assets at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) 3,242,554 4,599,181
Assets at amortised cost  
Cash and cash equivalents 5 187 112
Debtors 6 736 72,218
Total Current Assets 3,243,477 4,671,511
Current Liabilities  
Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) (5,547) (20,087)
Other financial liabilities  
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 7 (1,084) (72,921)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Shares) (6,631) (93,008)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 3,236,846 4,578,503
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.  
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
EUR

Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 
at the beginning of the financial year  4,578,503 4,671,020
Increase/(decrease) in Net Assets Attributable to  
Holders of Redeemable Shares from operations 619,794 (422,472)
Amounts received on issue of Redeemable Shares 4,691,146 45,709,224
Amounts paid on redemption of Redeemable Shares (6,652,597) (45,379,269)
(Decrease)/increase in Net Assets resulting from Share transactions (1,961,451) 329,955
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 
at the end of the financial year 10 3,236,846 4,578,503
 
Statement of cash flows 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
EUR

Cash flows from operating activities  
Proceeds from sale of investments 29,188,950 51,147,412
Purchase of investments (27,214,525) (51,462,099)
Management fees paid (13,243) (17,204)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 1,961,182 (331,891)
Cash flows from financing activities  
Proceeds from issue of Redeemable Shares 4,691,146 45,709,224
Payments of redemption of Redeemable Shares (6,652,597) (45,379,269)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (1,961,451) 329,955
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (269) (1,936)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 112 140
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents 344 1,908
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5 187 112
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 
 
General information 
Investment objective and policy 
The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve the 
Target Performance (which is the net total return 
performance of the Reference Index (being the STOXX 
Europe Small 200 Net TR Index) (less fees, expenses and 
transaction costs)). The Fund does not intend to make 
dividend payments. 
 
The Reference Index is designed to provide a 
representation of small capitalisation companies in 
Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, 
Greece, Iceland, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg, the 
Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, 
Switzerland and the United Kingdom. 
 
The Fund shall not invest more than 10% of its net assets 
in other UCITS or other open or closed ended CIS. 
 
The functional currency of the Fund is Euro and the Fund 
is valued in Euro. 
 
1. Significant accounting policies 
 
See pages 35 to 44 for significant accounting policies. 
 
2. Financial risk management 
 
See pages 44 to 50 for general notes. The risk 
management technique applying to this Fund is the 
Commitment Approach. A sensitivity analysis is presented 
below to reflect the Commitment Approach applied. 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis 
 
The sensitivity analysis for the Fund assumes a change in 
the market price of the investments while holding all other 
variables constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur and 
changes in some of the variables may be correlated. 
 

In addition, as the sensitivity analysis uses historical data 
as a basis for determining future events, it does not 
encompass all possible scenarios, particularly those that 
are of an extreme nature. The reasonably possible 
decrease in the Reference Index is based on the movement 
over the financial year ended 30 November 2019. These 
movements may be different from the long term volatility 
of the Reference Index. 
 
As detailed in the tables below, the decrease in the 
Reference Index (the STOXX Europe Small 200 Net TR 
Index) at 30 November 2019 and 30 November 2018, with 
all other variables held constant, would have resulted in an 
estimated decrease in the net assets attributable to 
holders of redeemable participating shares as follows, 
increase in Reference Index by 1% will have equal and 
opposite effect: 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November 
2019 

Reference 
Index 

close at 
30 November 

2019 

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary 
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of 

the Reference 
Index
EUR

5,293.742923 611.50 605.39 (32,371.24)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2019. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2019, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November  
2018 

Reference 
Index 

close at 
30 November 

2018 

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of 

the Reference 
Index
EUR

8,902.726169  514.36 509.22 (45,792.06)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2018. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2018, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis (continued)  
 
Based on historic movements and volatilities in these 
market variables, and management’s knowledge and 
experience of the financial markets, it was determined that 
the movements listed above are reasonably possible over 
the financial year. 
 
B) Foreign currency risk/interest rate risk 
 
Foreign currency and interest rate exposure is minimal due 
to the nature and strategy of the investments held by the 
Fund. As a result, no sensitivity analysis or exposure 
tables have been disclosed for foreign currency or interest 
rate risk. The Fund is not exposed to significant currency 
risk as all the swaps settle in the base currency of the 
Fund. 
 
C) Liquidity risk 
 
The tables below analyse the Fund's non-derivative 
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period at the Statement of financial 
position date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows. Balances due within twelve months equal their 
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not 
significant. All amounts are stated in Euro. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019 

Less than 
7 days

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 805 - 805
Accrued expenses - 279 279
Net assets attributable 
to holders of 
Redeemable Shares 3,236,846 - 3,236,846
Total financial liabilities 3,237,651 279 3,237,930
 
As at 30 November 
2018 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 72,218 - 72,218
Accrued expenses - 703 703
Net assets attributable 
to holders of 
Redeemable Shares 4,578,503 - 4,578,503
Total financial liabilities 4,650,721 703 4,651,424
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The tables below analyse the Fund's derivative financial 
instruments in a loss position and is based on the fact that 
swaps are reset on a monthly basis, rather than the 
contractual maturity date of the swap. All amounts are 
stated in Euro. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019

7 days to 
1 month 

1-3 
months 

More than 
3 months

Financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit 
or loss* 5,547 - -
 
As at 30 November 
2018 

7 days to 
1 month 

1-3 
months 

More than 
3 months

Financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit 
or loss* (20,087) - -
 
* Derivatives settled net. 
 
D) Fair value 
 
The tables below analyse within the fair value hierarchy 
the Fund's financial assets and liabilities (by class) 
measured at fair value. All amounts are stated in Euro. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 3,236,356 - 4,465
- Derivatives - 1,733 -
Total assets 3,236,356 1,733 4,465
Liabilities   
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Derivatives - 5,547 -
Total liabilities - 5,547 -
 
As at 30 November 
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 4,599,181 - -
Total assets 4,599,181 - -
Liabilities   
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Derivatives - 20,087 -
Total liabilities - 20,087 -
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
D) Fair value (continued) 
 
Level 3 reconciliation 
The following table reconciles the movement during the 
financial year in investments which have been classified 
into Level 3: 
 
Balance as at 1 December 2018 -
Purchases  -
Sales  -
Net transfer in/(out) of Level 3  4,465
Total gains recognised in profit or loss  -
Balance as at 30 November 2019 4,465
 
The Fund did not hold any Level 3 instruments during the 
financial year ended 30 November 2018. There were no 
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the financial 
year. 
 
Investments whose values are based on quoted market 
prices in active markets, and therefore classified within 
Level 1, include active listed equities. The Fund does not 
adjust the quoted price for these instruments. 
 
Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not 
considered to be active but are valued based on quoted 
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing 
sources supported by observable inputs are classified 
within Level 2. 
 
The Level 2 amounts above represent outperformance 
swaps. These are priced using a valuation comprising of 
observable data which tracks the performance of the 
Reference Index against the performance of the Fund's 
underlying equity basket. 
 
The Schedule of investments shows the equities split by 
level, country of origin and industry group. The derivatives 
are outperformance swaps. All equities are classified as 
Level 1 and all outperformance swaps as Level 2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

 
 Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
EUR

Realised gains on sale 
of investments 91,861 83,965
Realised gains/(losses) on 
outperformance swaps 90,315 (124,683)
Net currency gains 344 1,908
Net change in unrealised 
appreciation/(depreciation) 
on investments  433,820 (343,020)
Net change in unrealised 
appreciation/(depreciation) 
on outperformance swaps 16,273 (23,385)

 632,613 (405,215)
 
4. Operating expenses 
 

Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
EUR

Management fees 12,819 17,257
12,819 17,257

 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager.  
 
5. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

As at
30 November

2018
EUR

The Northern Trust 
Company* 187 112
 187 112
 
* Cash held is unsegregated. 
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6. Debtors 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

As at 
30 November

2018 
EUR

Sale of securities 
awaiting settlement 736 72,218
 736 72,218
 
7. Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

As at 
30 November

2018
EUR

Management fees 279 703
Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 805 72,218
 1,084 72,921
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager. 
 
8. Segment reporting 
 
IFRS 8 requires disclosures in respect of the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) and certain 
disclosures in respect of the country of origin of income. 
Management have determined the CODM is the Board of 
Directors. 
 
All revenues are derived from financial assets and are 
attributable to a country based on the domicile of the 
issuer of the instrument. The Schedule of investments 
discloses the investments of the Fund at their fair value by 
their respective country of origin.  
 
There was no dividend income received by the Fund for the 
financial year ended 30 November 2019 (30 November 
2018: Nil). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9. Share capital 
 
Redeemable shares  
in issue 

Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018

Number of Redeemable Shares 
Issued and Fully Paid 
Balance at beginning  
of financial year 92,179 87,912
Issued during financial year 85,800 847,603
Redeemed during  
financial year (122,974) (843,336)
Total number of  
Redeemable Shares in issue at 
end of financial year  55,005 92,179
 
10. Net asset value 
 
 As at 

30 November
2019
EUR

As at 
30 November 

2018 
EUR 

As at 
30 November

2017
EUR

Total Net Asset Value  
Class A  
Redeemable Shares 3,236,846 4,578,503 4,671,020
Dealing Net Asset Value  
per Redeemable Share 

Class A  
Redeemable Shares 58.8464 49.6697 53.1329
 
11. Collateral 
 
The collateral for Invesco STOXX Europe Small 200 UCITS 
ETF is unilateral. The Fund has entered into a Charge 
Account Control Agreement ("the Agreement") with each 
Swap Counterparty being J.P. Morgan Securities plc and 
Goldman Sachs International. The Agreement was in place 
from 25 August 2017 and from 11 August 2017 
respectively. The collateral model involves the pledge of 
collateral to the Swap Counterparties in the form of 
equities. Equities pledged as collateral are marked with an 
asterisk in the Schedule of investments. 
 
There were no securities pledged by the Fund as at 30 
November 2019 (30 November 2018: none). 
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

 Equities: 100.12% (2018: 100.44%)   

 Austria: 1.53% (2018: 5.82%)   

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 5.37%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.33%)   

 Oil & Gas: 1.53% (2018: 0.00%)   

959 OMV AG Class A Com NPV 49,619 1.53

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.00% (2018: 0.12%)   

 Total Austria 49,619 1.53

    

 Belgium: 0.18% (2018: 1.82%)   

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 0.61%)   

 Electric: 0.18% (2018: 0.00%)   

76 Elia System Operator SA/NV Com NPV 5,700 0.18

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 0.62%)   

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.24%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.24%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
0.11%)   

 Total Belgium 5,700 0.18

    

 Canada: 0.78% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Mining: 0.78% (2018: 0.00%)   

8,474 Hudbay Minerals Inc Com NPV 25,208 0.78

 Total Canada 25,208 0.78

    

 Denmark: 3.84% (2018: 2.08%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.46%)   

 Beverages: 0.00% (2018: 0.56%)   

 Building Materials: 0.00% (2018: 0.11%)   

 Electric: 0.92% (2018: 0.00%)   

356 Orsted A/S Com DKK10.00 29,779 0.92

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.20%)   

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.15%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.92% (2018: 0.17%)   

854 H Lundbeck A/S Com DKK5.00 29,695 0.92

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.06%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.88% (2018: 
0.37%)   

665 GN Store Nord A/S Com DKK4.00 28,436 0.88

 Transportation: 1.12% (2018: 0.00%)   

367 DSV Panalpina A/S Com DKK1.00 36,269 1.12

 Total Denmark 124,179 3.84

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

 Finland: 8.54% (2018: 6.50%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 1.24% (2018: 
0.00%)   

1,637 Nokian Renkaat Oyj Com NPV 40,205 1.24

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.67%)   

 Electric: 1.52% (2018: 0.36%)   

2,298 Fortum Oyj Com EUR3.40 49,154 1.52

 Food: 0.02% (2018: 0.00%)   

13 Kesko Oyj Class B Com NPV 796 0.02

 
Forest Products & Paper: 1.16% (2018: 
1.40%)   

1,243 UPM-Kymmene Oyj Com NPV 37,688 1.16

 Leisure Time: 0.00% (2018: 1.55%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 2.39% (2018: 
2.52%)   

893 Kone Oyj Class B Com NPV 50,740 1.57

1,297 Valmet Oyj Com NPV 26,355 0.82

 Real Estate: 0.42% (2018: 0.00%)   

917 Kojamo Oyj Com NPV 13,737 0.42

 Retail: 0.21% (2018: 0.00%)   

560 Tokmanni Group Corp Com NPV 6,787 0.21

 
Telecommunications: 1.58% (2018: 
0.00%)   

1,051 Elisa Oyj Com NPV 50,984 1.58

Total Finland 276,446 8.54

    

 Germany: 25.61% (2018: 36.93%)   

 Aerospace/Defense: 0.00% (2018: 1.11%)   

 Apparel: 1.18% (2018: 0.96%)   

135 Adidas AG Class A Com NPV 38,171 1.18

 Auto Manufacturers: 1.03% (2018: 2.92%)   

190 Volkswagen AG Pref NPV 33,341 1.03

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.85% (2018: 
3.47%)   

284 Rheinmetall AG Class A Com NPV 27,446 0.85

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.13%)   

 Building Materials: 0.87% (2018: 0.00%)   

419 HeidelbergCement AG Class A Com NPV 28,115 0.87

 Chemicals: 1.53% (2018: 3.37%)   

719 BASF SE Com NPV 49,050 1.52

9 Brenntag AG Class A Com NPV 436 0.01

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.82%)   

 Computers: 0.99% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,219 Jenoptik AG Class A Com NPV 32,206 0.99
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 1.78% (2018: 
1.02%)   

544 Beiersdorf AG Class A Com NPV 57,582 1.78

 Electric: 3.94% (2018: 0.00%)   

8,195 E.ON SE Com NPV 77,836 2.40

78 RWE AG Class A Com NPV 2,099 0.06

1,633 Uniper SE Com NPV 47,847 1.48

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 5.80%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.80%)   

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.00% (2018: 
0.85%)   

 
Household Products/Wares: 2.31% (2018: 
1.13%)   

852 Henkel AG & Co KGaA Com NPV 74,806 2.31

 Insurance: 1.14% (2018: 1.32%)   

24 Allianz SE Com NPV 5,216 0.16

121 Muenchener Rueckversicherungs-
Gesellschaft AG in Muenchen Com NPV 31,533 0.98

 
Machinery-Construction & Mining: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.28%)   

 
Metal Fabricate/Hardware: 0.00% (2018: 
0.41%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 1.56% 
(2018: 0.90%)   

431 Siemens AG Com NPV 50,479 1.56

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.98% (2018: 2.60%)   

300 Merck KGaA Com NPV 31,800 0.98

 Real Estate: 0.96% (2018: 7.24%)   

1,427 TAG Immobilien AG Class A Com NPV 31,166 0.96

 Retail: 0.20% (2018: 0.51%)   

155 Hugo Boss AG Com NPV 6,626 0.20

 Software: 2.90% (2018: 1.29%)   

105 New Work SE Com NPV 32,288 1.00

171 RIB Software SE Com NPV 4,090 0.13

415 SAP SE Com NPV 51,244 1.58

196 Software AG Class A Com NPV 6,000 0.19

 
Telecommunications: 3.39% (2018: 
0.00%)   

4,819 Deutsche Telekom AG Com NPV 73,422 2.27

13,079 Telefonica Deutschland Holding AG Com 
NPV 36,242 1.12

 Total Germany 829,041 25.61

    

 Israel: 3.27% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Computers: 1.42% (2018: 0.00%)   

413 CyberArk Software Ltd Com ILS0.01 45,903 1.42

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

 Electronics: 0.51% (2018: 0.00%)   

755 Ituran Location & Control Com ILS0.33 16,434 0.51

 Software: 1.34% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,988 Radware Ltd Com ILS0.05 43,435 1.34

Total Israel 105,772 3.27

    

 Jersey: 0.52% (2018: 0.00%)   

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.52% (2018: 
0.00%)   

2,149 Quotient Ltd Com NPV 16,742 0.52

Total Jersey 16,742 0.52

    

 Luxembourg: 0.97% (2018: 3.06%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.43%)   

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 2.63%)   

 Real Estate: 0.97% (2018: 0.00%)   

3,976 Aroundtown SA Com EUR0.01 31,339 0.97

Total Luxembourg 31,339 0.97

    

 Netherlands: 7.66% (2018: 15.95%)   

 Banks: 1.10% (2018: 0.00%)   

3,414 ING Groep NV Com EUR0.01 35,656 1.10

 Beverages: 0.00% (2018: 3.24%)   

 Chemicals: 1.10% (2018: 3.78%)   

341 IMCD Group NV Com NPV 25,746 0.79

86 Koninklijke DSM NV Com EUR1.50 10,002 0.31

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
3.76%)   

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
1.25% (2018: 0.00%)   

858 TKH Group NV EUR0.25 40,360 1.25

 Electronics: 1.37% (2018: 1.88%)   

1,050 Koninklijke Philips NV Com EUR0.20 44,252 1.37

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.80% (2018: 
0.67%)   

3,505 Heijmans NV EUR0.30 25,867 0.80

 Food: 0.16% (2018: 0.00%)   
28 Koninklijke Ahold Delhaize NV Com 

EUR0.01 655 0.02

392 Wessanen Com EUR1.00 4,465 0.14

 
Healthcare-Products: 1.08% (2018: 
0.00%)   

901 QIAGEN NV Com EUR0.01 - Xetra 35,013 1.08

 Lodging: 0.72% (2018: 0.00%)   
3,247 Playa Hotels & Resorts NV Com 

USD0.01 23,205 0.72
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 0.65%)   

 
Metal Fabricate/Hardware: 0.00% (2018: 
0.62%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.54%)   

 Semiconductor: 0.00% (2018: 0.81%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.08% (2018: 
0.00%)   

71 Altice Europe NV EUR0.01 384 0.01

781 Koninklijke KPN NV Com EUR0.04 2,184 0.07

 Total Netherlands 247,789 7.66

    

 Norway: 0.00% (2018: 2.68%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
0.23%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.57%)   

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.62%)   

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.40%)   

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 0.63%)   

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.05%)   

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.18%)   

 Total Norway - -

    

 Portugal: 2.34% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Food: 1.35% (2018: 0.00%)   
3,024 Jeronimo Martins SGPS SA Com 

EUR1.00 43,833 1.35

 
Forest Products & Paper: 0.99% (2018: 
0.00%)   

2,945 Corticeira Amorim-Sociedade Gestora 
EUR1 32,101 0.99

 Total Portugal 75,934 2.34

    

 Spain: 5.24% (2018: 2.25%)   

 Electric: 1.37% (2018: 0.00%)   

4,957 Iberdrola SA Com EUR0.75 44,256 1.37

 
Engineering & Construction: 1.04% (2018: 
0.00%)   

956 ACS Actividades de Construccion y 
Servicios SA Com EUR0.50 33,775 1.04

 Oil & Gas: 1.48% (2018: 0.00%)   

3,358 Repsol SA Com EUR1.00 47,986 1.48

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 1.51%)   

 Software: 0.48% (2018: 0.74%)   

214 Amadeus IT Group SA Com EUR0.01 15,472 0.48

 Transportation: 0.87% (2018: 0.00%)   
714 Construcciones y Auxiliar de 

Ferrocarriles SA Com EUR0.30 28,310 0.87

 Total Spain 169,799 5.24

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

 Sweden: 12.21% (2018: 9.39%)   

 Agriculture: 2.21% (2018: 0.62%)   
1,644 Swedish Match AB Class A Com 

SEK1.98 71,450 2.21

 Banks: 1.62% (2018: 2.15%)   
3,517 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB Class 

A Com SEK10.00 27,365 0.85

2,123 Swedbank AB Class A Com SEK22.00 25,084 0.77

 Building Materials: 2.31% (2018: 0.00%)   

16,427 Munters Group AB Com NPV 74,709 2.31

 
Commercial Services: 1.16% (2018: 
0.00%)   

994 Loomis AB Class B Com SEK5.00 37,672 1.16

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 0.98% (2018: 
0.00%)   

1,112 Essity AB Class B Com SEK3.35 31,713 0.98

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.47%)   

 Food: 0.92% (2018: 0.63%)   

1,804 AAK AB Com SEK 10.00 29,912 0.92

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.98% (2018: 0.14%)   

1,913 Sandvik AB Class A Com SEK1.20 31,565 0.98

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.00% (2018: 
0.06%)   

 
Holding Companies-Diversified: 1.01% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

1,551 Industrivarden AB Class C Com SEK2.50 32,639 1.01

 Iron/Steel: 0.00% (2018: 1.30%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 1.69%)   

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.47%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 0.50%)   

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 1.08%)   

 
Telecommunications: 1.02% (2018: 
0.00%)   

4,041 Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson Class B 
Com SEK5.00 33,042 1.02

 Transportation: 0.00% (2018: 0.28%)   

Total Sweden 395,151 12.21

    

 Switzerland: 23.89% (2018: 7.85%)   

 Banks: 2.62% (2018: 0.89%)   
42 Luzerner Kantonalbank AG Com 

CHF31.00 15,609 0.48

6,284 UBS Group AG Com CHF0.10 69,120 2.14

 Biotechnology: 1.05% (2018: 0.00%)   
251 Bachem Holding AG Class B Com 

CHF0.50 33,850 1.05

 Building Materials: 2.04% (2018: 0.08%)   

1,410 LafargeHolcim Ltd Com CHF2.00 65,978 2.04
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

 Chemicals: 1.34% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,742 Clariant AG Com CHF3.70 32,662 1.01

9 Gurit Holding AG Class B Com CHF50.00 10,814 0.33

 
Commercial Services: 1.03% (2018: 
0.00%)   

597 Adecco Group AG Com CHF0.10 33,494 1.03

 Computers: 1.12% (2018: 0.00%)   

917 Logitech International SA Com CHF0.25 36,376 1.12

 
Diversified Financial Services: 4.28% 
(2018: 1.40%)   

370 Cembra Money Bank AG Class A Com 
CHF1.00 34,956 1.08

12,783 GAM Holding AG Class A Com CHF0.05 31,787 0.98

47 Partners Group Holding AG Class A Com 
CHF0.01 35,966 1.11

845 Swissquote Group Holding SA Com 
CHF0.20 35,859 1.11

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
1.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

525 Huber + Suhner AG Com CHF0.25 32,542 1.01

 Electronics: 0.64% (2018: 0.00%)   

17 LEM Holding SA Com CHF0.50 20,643 0.64

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.21%)   

 Food: 0.02% (2018: 0.22%)   

7 Nestle SA Com CHF0.10 660 0.02

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.00% (2018: 0.63%)   

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.23% (2018: 
0.21%)   

36 Sonova Holding AG Com CHF0.05 7,459 0.23

 Insurance: 2.13% (2018: 1.67%)   

76 Swiss Life Holding AG Com CHF5.10 34,197 1.06

97 Zurich Insurance Group AG Class A Com 
CHF0.10 34,535 1.07

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.24%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 2.22% (2018: 
0.55%)   

54 Inficon Holding AG Com CHF5.00 35,506 1.09

247 Kardex AG Com CHF0.45 36,538 1.13

 
Packaging & Containers: 1.09% (2018: 
0.00%)   

14 Vetropack Holding AG Class B Com 
CHF50.00 35,194 1.09

 Pharmaceuticals: 2.02% (2018: 0.60%)   

415 Novartis AG Com CHF0.50 34,672 1.07

110 Roche Holding AG Com NPV 30,767 0.95

 Real Estate: 1.05% (2018: 0.72%)   
67 Intershop Holding AG Class A Com 

CHF10.00 34,172 1.05

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.40%)   

 Transportation: 0.00% (2018: 0.03%)   

Total Switzerland 773,356 23.89

    

 United States: 3.54% (2018: 6.11%)   

 Airlines: 0.00% (2018: 0.39%)   

 Chemicals: 0.62% (2018: 0.00%)   
284 Eastman Chemical Co Class C Com 

USD0.01 20,186 0.62

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.83%)   

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.00% (2018: 0.90%)   

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.00% (2018: 
0.93%)   

 Healthcare-Services: 0.00% (2018: 0.45%)   

 Internet: 2.21% (2018: 0.00%)   

321 F5 Networks Inc Com NPV 42,421 1.31

159
Facebook Inc Class A Com 
USD0.000006 29,077 0.90

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 1.36%)   

 
Packaging & Containers: 0.00% (2018: 
0.90%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.71% (2018: 0.00%)   

211 Zoetis Inc Com USD0.01 23,062 0.71

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.35%)   

Total United States 114,746 3.54

Total equities 3,240,821 100.12
 

Outperformance swaps**: -0.12% (2018: -0.43%) 

Counterparty CCY Maturity date 

Level 2 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

J.P. Morgan Securities plc EUR 30/11/2020 1,733 0.05

Fair value outperformance swaps gain 1,733 0.05

   

Goldman Sachs International EUR 24/02/2022 (445) (0.01)

Morgan Stanley & Co. 
International plc EUR 10/12/2021 (5,102) (0.16)

Fair value outperformance swaps losses (5,547) (0.17)

  

Fair value outperformance swaps (3,814) (0.12)
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Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

Total value of investments 3,237,007 100.00

   

Cash and cash equivalents* 187 0.01

   

Other net liabilities (348) (0.01)

   

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
participating shares 3,236,846 100.00

   

* All cash holdings are held with The Northern Trust Company. 

** These outperformance swaps track the STOXX Europe Small 200 Net TR 
Index. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap gains 1,091,760.  

Combined notional values of outperformance swap losses 2,138,286.  
 

 

% of
total 

assets

Unaudited Analysis of Total Assets  
Transferable securities and money market instruments admitted to 
official stock exchange listing. 99.92

Transferable securities and money market instruments traded on a 
regulated market. 0.00

Financial derivative instruments. 0.05

Other assets. 0.03

 100.00
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Statement of comprehensive income 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
GBP 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
GBP

Income  
Net gains on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss 3 807,908 82,893
Total investment income 807,908 82,893
Operating expenses 4 (16,716) (23,486)
Net income 791,192 59,407
Profit for the financial year 791,192 59,407
Increase in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of  
Redeemable Shares 791,192 59,407
 
There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the increase in Net Assets Attributable 
to Holders of Redeemable Shares of the Company. In arriving at the results of the financial year, all amounts above 
relate to continuing operations. 
 
Statement of financial position 
 
As at 30 November 2019 Notes As at 

30 November 
2019 
GBP 

As at
30 November

2018
GBP

Current Assets  
Assets at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) 7,460,726 11,010,623
Assets at amortised cost  
Cash and cash equivalents 5 147 167
Debtors 6 6,241 118,353
Total Current Assets 7,467,114 11,129,143
Current Liabilities  
Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) (16,507) (6,829)
Other financial liabilities  
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 7 (7,855) (119,397)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Shares) (24,362) (126,226)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 7,442,752 11,002,917
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
GBP 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
GBP

Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares
at the beginning of the financial year  11,002,917 14,298,466
Increase in Net Assets Attributable to  
Holders of Redeemable Shares from operations 791,192 59,407
Amounts received on issue of Redeemable Shares 8,565,060 4,496,460
Amounts paid on redemption of Redeemable Shares (12,916,417) (7,851,416)
Decrease in Net Assets resulting from Share transactions (4,351,357) (3,354,956)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares
at the end of the financial year 10 7,442,752 11,002,917
 
Statement of cash flows 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
GBP 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
GBP

Cash flows from operating activities  
Proceeds from sale of investments 63,364,188 95,782,633
Purchase of investments (58,985,222) (92,399,343)
Management fees paid (17,316) (23,863)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 4,361,650 3,359,427
Cash flows from financing activities  
Proceeds from issue of Redeemable Shares 8,565,060 4,496,460
Payments of redemption of Redeemable Shares (12,916,417) (7,851,416)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (4,351,357) (3,354,956)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 10,293 4,471
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 167 60
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents (10,313) (4,364)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5 147 167
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 
 
General information 
Investment objective and policy 
The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve the 
Target Performance (which is the net total return 
performance of the Reference Index (being FTSE 100 Net 
TR Index) (less fees, expenses and transaction costs)). 
The Fund does not intend to make dividend payments. 
 
The Reference Index is a market-capitalisation weighted 
Reference Index representing the performance of the 100 
largest UK-domiciled blue chip companies listed on the 
London Stock Exchange. 
 
The Fund shall not invest more than 10% of its net assets 
in other UCITS or other open or closed ended CIS. 
 
The functional currency of the Fund is Sterling and the 
Fund is valued in Sterling. 
 
1. Significant accounting policies 
 
See pages 35 to 44 for significant accounting policies. 
 
2. Financial risk management 
 
See pages 44 to 50 for general notes. The risk 
management technique applying to this Fund is the 
Commitment Approach. A sensitivity analysis is presented 
below to reflect the Commitment Approach applied. 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis 
 
The sensitivity analysis for the Fund assumes a change in 
the market price of the investments while holding all other 
variables constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur and 
changes in some of the variables may be correlated. 
 
In addition, as the sensitivity analysis uses historical data 
as a basis for determining future events, it does not 
encompass all possible scenarios, particularly those that 
are of an extreme nature. The reasonably possible 
decrease in the Reference Index is based on the 
movement over the financial year ended 30 November 
2019. These movements may be different from the long 
term volatility of the Reference Index. 

As detailed in the tables below, the decrease in the 
Reference Index (the FTSE 100 Net TR Index) at 30 
November 2019 and 30 November 2018, with all other 
variables held constant, would have resulted in an 
estimated decrease in the net assets attributable to 
holders of redeemable participating shares as follows, 
increase in Reference Index by 1% will have equal and 
opposite effect: 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November 
2019 

Reference 
Index 

close at
30 November

2019

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary 
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of 

the Reference 
Index
GBP

1,096.032880 6,792.10 6,724.18 (74,443.65)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2019. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2019, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November  
2018 

Reference 
Index

close at
30 November

2018

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of 

the Reference 
Index
GBP

1,784.666433 6,165.84 6,104.18 (110,039.68)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2018. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2018, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis (continued)  
 
Based on historic movements and volatilities in these 
market variables, and management’s knowledge and 
experience of the financial markets, it was determined 
that the movements listed above are reasonably possible 
over the financial year. 
 
B) Foreign currency risk/interest rate risk 
 
Foreign currency and interest rate exposure is minimal 
due to the nature and strategy of the investments held by 
the Fund. As a result, no sensitivity analysis or exposure 
tables have been disclosed for foreign currency or interest 
rate risk. The Fund is not exposed to significant currency 
risk as all the swaps settle in the base currency of the 
Fund. 
 
C) Liquidity risk 
 
The tables below analyse the Fund's non-derivative 
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period at the Statement of financial 
position date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows. Balances due within twelve months equal their 
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not 
significant. All amounts are stated in Sterling. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 7,488 - 7,488
Accrued expenses - 367 367
Net assets attributable 
to holders of 
Redeemable Shares 7,442,752 - 7,442,752
Total financial liabilities 7,450,240 367 7,450,607
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As at 30 November 
2018 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 118,430 - 118,430
Accrued expenses - 967 967
Net assets attributable 
to holders of 
Redeemable Shares 11,002,917 - 11,002,917
Total financial liabilities 11,121,347 967 11,122,314

 

The tables below analyse the Fund's derivative financial 
instruments in a loss position and is based on the fact that 
swaps are reset on a monthly basis; rather than the 
contractual maturity date of the swap. All amounts are 
stated in Sterling. 
 
As at 30 November
2019

7 days to 
1 month

1-3
months

More than 
3 months

Financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or 
loss* 16,507 - -
 
As at 30 November
2018

7 days to 
1 month 

1-3
months

More than 
3 months

Financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or 
loss* 6,829 - -
 
* Derivatives settled net. 
 
D) Fair value 
 
The tables below and overleaf analyse within the fair value 
hierarchy the Fund's financial assets and liabilities (by 
class) measured at fair value. All amounts are stated in 
Sterling. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 7,436,933 - -
- Derivatives - 23,793 -
Total assets 7,436,933 23,793 -
Liabilities   
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
- Derivatives - 16,507 -
Total liabilities - 16,507 -
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
D) Fair value (continued) 
 
As at 30 November 
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets   
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 10,988,002 - -
- Derivatives - 22,621 -
Total assets 10,988,002 22,621 -
Liabilities    
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Derivatives - 6,829 -
Total liabilities - 6,829 -
 
The Fund did not hold any Level 3 instruments during the 
financial year (30 November 2018: Nil). There were no 
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the financial 
year. 
 
Investments whose values are based on quoted market 
prices in active markets, and therefore classified within 
Level 1, include active listed equities. The Fund does not 
adjust the quoted price for these instruments. 
 
Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not 
considered to be active but are valued based on quoted 
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing 
sources supported by observable inputs are classified 
within Level 2. 
 
The Level 2 amounts above represent outperformance 
swaps. These are priced using a valuation comprising of 
observable data which tracks the performance of the 
Reference Index against the performance of the Fund's 
underlying equity basket. 
 
The Schedule of investments shows the equities split by 
level, country of origin and industry group. The derivatives 
are outperformance swaps. All equities are classified as 
Level 1 and all outperformance swaps as Level 2. 

3. Net gains on financial assets and liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss 

 
 Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
GBP 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
GBP

Realised (losses)/gains on 
sale of investments (112,355) 1,070,609
Realised losses on 
outperformance swaps* (59,305) (213,168)
Net currency losses (10,313) (4,364)
Net change in realised 
appreciation/(depreciation) 
on investments 998,387 (841,020)
Net change in realised 
(depreciation)/appreciation
on outperformance swaps (8,506) 70,836

807,908 82,893
 
* Realised losses on outperformance swaps include an amount of  
GBP 12,500 relating to swap fees (30 November 2018: GBP 17,681). 
 

4. Operating expenses 
 

Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 
GBP 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
GBP

Management fees 16,716 23,486
 16,716 23,486
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager.  
 
5. Cash and cash equivalents 
 

As at 
30 November 

2019 
GBP 

As at
30 November

2018
GBP

The Northern Trust 
Company* 147 167

147 167
 
* Cash held is unsegregated. 
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6. Debtors 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
GBP 

As at
30 November

2018
GBP

Sale of securities  
awaiting settlement 6,241 118,353
 6,241 118,353
 
7. Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
GBP 

As at
30 November

2018
GBP

Management fees 367 967
Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 7,488 118,430
 7,855 119,397
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager. 
 
8. Segment reporting 
 
IFRS 8 requires disclosures in respect of the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) and certain 
disclosures in respect of the country of origin of income. 
Management have determined the CODM is the Board of 
Directors. 
 
All revenues are derived from financial assets and are 
attributable to a country based on the domicile of the 
issuer of the instrument. The Schedule of investments 
discloses the investments of the Fund at their fair value by 
their respective country of origin. 
 
There was no dividend income received by the Fund for 
the financial year ended 30 November 2019 (30 
November 2018: Nil). 

9. Share capital 
 
Redeemable shares 
in issue 

Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018

Number of Redeemable Shares  
Issued and Fully Paid 
Balance at beginning  
of financial year 185,435 238,517
Issued during financial year 135,012 72,316
Redeemed during  
financial year (206,183) (125,398)
Total number of  
Redeemable Shares in issue at 
end of financial year 114,264 185,435
 
10. Net asset value 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
GBP 

As at
30 November

2018
GBP

As at
30 November

2017
GBP

Total Net Asset Value 
Class A  
Redeemable Shares 7,442,752 11,002,917 14,298,466
Dealing Net Asset Value  
per Redeemable Share 

Class A  
Redeemable Shares 65.1365 59.3357 59.9474
 
11. Collateral 
 
The collateral for Invesco FTSE 100 UCITS ETF is 
unilateral. The Fund has entered into a Charge Account 
Control Agreement ("the Agreement") with each Swap 
Counterparty being J.P. Morgan Securities plc and 
Goldman Sachs International. The Agreement was in place 
from 25 August 2017 and from 11 August 2017 
respectively. The collateral model involves the pledge of 
collateral to the Swap Counterparties in the form of 
equities. Equities pledged as collateral are marked with an 
asterisk in the Schedule of investments. 
 
There were no securities pledged by the Fund as at 30 
November 2019 (30 November 2018: none). 
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

GBP 

% of
net

assets

 Equities: 99.92% (2018: 99.86%)   

 Austria: 0.12% (2018: 2.56%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.11%)   

 Building Materials: 0.12% (2018: 0.00%)   

414 Wienerberger AG Class A Com NPV 8,787 0.12

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 0.97%)   

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 1.48%)   

 Total Austria 8,787 0.12

    

 Belgium: 2.71% (2018: 4.89%)   

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 0.37%)   

 Electric: 0.21% (2018: 0.00%)   

249 Elia System Operator SA/NV Com NPV 15,919 0.21

 Electronics: 1.17% (2018: 0.00%)   

486 Barco NV Com NPV 86,790 1.17

 
Engineering & Construction: 1.21% (2018: 
0.76%)   

771 Ackermans & van Haaren NV Com NPV 89,710 1.21

 
Holding Companies-Diversified: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.82%)   

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 1.57%)   

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.24%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.71%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.12% (2018: 0.42%)   

146 UCB SA Com NPV 9,155 0.12

 Total Belgium 201,574 2.71

    

 Canada: 0.88% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Oil & Gas: 0.88% (2018: 0.00%)   

9,552 Cenovus Energy Inc Com NPV 65,649 0.88

 Total Canada 65,649 0.88

    

 Denmark: 2.02% (2018: 9.05%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 2.02%)   

 Beverages: 0.18% (2018: 3.61%)   

118 Carlsberg A/S Class B Com DKK20.00 13,134 0.18

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 0.10%)   

 
Energy-Alternate Sources: 0.25% (2018: 
0.00%)   

252 Vestas Wind Systems A/S Com DKK1.00 18,555 0.25

 Home Furnishing: 0.00% (2018: 0.54%)   

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 1.18%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 1.19% (2018: 0.09%)   

2,981 H Lundbeck A/S Com DKK5.00 88,356 1.19

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

GBP 

% of
net

assets

 
Telecommunications: 0.14% (2018: 
1.35%)   

289 GN Store Nord A/S Com DKK4.00 10,534 0.14

 Transportation: 0.26% (2018: 0.16%)   

229 DSV A/S Com DKK1.00 19,291 0.26

Total Denmark 149,870 2.02

    

 Finland: 9.89% (2018: 7.66%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 1.31% (2018: 
1.34%)   

4,659 Nokian Renkaat Oyj Com NPV 97,538 1.31

 Electric: 2.64% (2018: 0.00%)   

10,780 Fortum Oyj Com EUR3.40 196,554 2.64

 Food: 0.17% (2018: 1.92%)   

247 Kesko Oyj Class B Com NPV 12,894 0.17

 
Forest Products & Paper: 1.44% (2018: 
0.88%)   

4,133 UPM-Kymmene Oyj Com NPV 106,818 1.44

 Insurance: 0.14% (2018: 1.29%)   

331 Sampo Oyj Class A Com NPV 10,355 0.14

 Leisure Time: 0.00% (2018: 0.23%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 1.20% (2018: 
0.98%)   

5,144 Valmet Oyj Com NPV 89,100 1.20

 Pharmaceuticals: 1.39% (2018: 0.00%)   

3,067 Orion Oyj Class B Com EUR0.65 103,267 1.39

 Real Estate: 0.10% (2018: 0.00%)   

574 Kojamo Oyj Com NPV 7,330 0.10

 
Telecommunications: 1.50% (2018: 
1.02%)   

2,707 Elisa Oyj Com NPV 111,936 1.50

Total Finland 735,792 9.89

    

 Germany: 29.72% (2018: 17.31%)   

 Aerospace/Defense: 1.39% (2018: 0.00%)   

494 MTU Aero Engines AG Class A Com NPV 103,547 1.39

 Apparel: 1.85% (2018: 1.45%)   

483 Adidas AG Class A Com NPV 116,413 1.56

365 Puma SE Com NPV 21,219 0.29

 Auto Manufacturers: 1.68% (2018: 2.64%)   

724 Volkswagen AG Class A Com NPV 106,859 1.44

121 Volkswagen AG Pref NPV 18,099 0.24

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.12% (2018: 
0.22%)   

108 Rheinmetall AG Class A Com NPV 8,897 0.12
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

GBP

% of
net

assets

 Banks: 1.52% (2018: 0.00%)   
9,719 Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG Class A 

Com NPV 113,251 1.52

 Building Materials: 0.46% (2018: 0.00%)   

600 HeidelbergCement AG Class A Com NPV 34,318 0.46

 Chemicals: 3.26% (2018: 1.08%)   

2,038 BASF SE Com NPV 118,513 1.59

373 Brenntag AG Class A Com NPV 15,392 0.21

1,446 Symrise AG Class A Com NPV 108,518 1.46

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
1.08%)   

 Computers: 0.10% (2018: 0.00%)   

334 Jenoptik AG Class A Com NPV 7,522 0.10

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 1.81% (2018: 
0.10%)   

1,491 Beiersdorf AG Class A Com NPV 134,530 1.81

 Electric: 1.25% (2018: 1.34%)   

10,491 E.ON SE Com NPV 84,938 1.14

348 RWE AG Class A Com NPV 7,983 0.11

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.11% (2018: 
0.84%)   

87 Hochtief AG Class A Com NPV 8,269 0.11

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.41% (2018: 
0.54%)   

812 Siemens Healthineers AG NPV 30,469 0.41

 Healthcare-Services: 0.75% (2018: 0.46%)   

1,325 Fresenius SE & Co KGaA Com NPV 56,066 0.75

 
Household Products/Wares: 0.39% (2018: 
0.19%)   

385 Henkel AG & Co KGaA Com NPV 28,814 0.39

 Insurance: 2.53% (2018: 0.62%)   

381 Allianz SE Com NPV 70,589 0.95

61 Hannover Rueck SE Com NPV 8,762 0.12

455 Muenchener Rueckversicherungs-
Gesellschaft AG in Muenchen Com NPV 101,074 1.36

213 Talanx AG Class A Com NPV 7,854 0.10

 Internet: 0.00% (2018: 0.23%)   

 Iron/Steel: 0.00% (2018: 1.18%)   

 Leisure Time: 0.00% (2018: 0.75%)   

 
Machinery-Construction & Mining: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.07%)   

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 0.10%)   

 
Metal Fabricate/Hardware: 0.00% (2018: 
0.18%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 1.72% 
(2018: 0.09%)   

1,280 Siemens AG Com NPV 127,789 1.72

 
Packaging & Containers: 0.20% (2018: 
0.00%)   

264 Gerresheimer AG Class A Com NPV 15,021 0.20

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

GBP

% of
net

assets

 Pharmaceuticals: 3.34% (2018: 0.00%)   

2,149 Bayer AG Com NPV 125,848 1.69

1,359 Merck KGaA Com NPV 122,794 1.65

 Real Estate: 1.21% (2018: 0.72%)   

4,830 TAG Immobilien AG Class A Com NPV 89,919 1.21

 Retail: 0.15% (2018: 0.48%)   

188 Fielmann AG Class A Com NPV 11,354 0.15

 Semiconductors: 0.09% (2018: 0.00%)   

111 Siltronic AG Class A Com NPV 7,112 0.09

 Software: 0.98% (2018: 1.92%)   

1,051 RIB Software SE Com NPV 21,430 0.29

489 SAP SE Com NPV 51,470 0.69

 
Telecommunications: 4.40% (2018: 
0.93%)   

17,386 Deutsche Telekom AG Com NPV 225,799 3.03

481 Freenet AG NPV 8,664 0.12

39,299 Telefonica Deutschland Holding AG Com 
NPV 92,826 1.25

 Transportation: 0.00% (2018: 0.10%)   

Total Germany 2,211,922 29.72

    

 Luxembourg: 0.26% (2018: 2.89%)   

 Iron/Steel: 0.00% (2018: 0.30%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
1.30%)   

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 1.29%)   

 Real Estate: 0.26% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,721 Aroundtown SA Com EUR0.01 11,563 0.15

437 Grand City Properties SA Com EUR0.10 7,845 0.11

Total Luxembourg 19,408 0.26

    

 Netherlands: 12.57% (2018: 12.16%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.10%)   

 Biotechnology: 0.00% (2018: 0.16%)   

 Chemicals: 3.24% (2018: 3.15%)   

2,429 Koninklijke DSM NV Com EUR1.50 240,801 3.24

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
1.45%)   

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.85% (2018: 0.83%)   

2,737 Philips Lighting Com EUR0.01 63,156 0.85

 Electronics: 1.45% (2018: 0.00%)   

2,998 Koninklijke Philips NV Com EUR0.20 107,703 1.45

 Food: 1.38% (2018: 0.23%)   
4,774 Koninklijke Ahold Delhaize NV Com 

EUR0.01 95,164 1.28

171 Unilever NV EUR0.16 7,842 0.10
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Financial assets at fair 
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Fair value 

GBP 

% of
net

assets

 
Healthcare-Products: 2.50% (2018: 
0.00%)   

3,623 QIAGEN NV Com EUR0.01 - Xetra 120,011 1.61

2,894 Wright Medical Group NV EUR0.03 66,606 0.89

 Insurance: 0.31% (2018: 0.52%)   

4,832 Aegon NV Com EUR0.12 16,854 0.23

209 NN Group NV Com NPV 6,207 0.08

 Media: 0.10% (2018: 3.27%)   

140 Wolters Kluwer NV Com EUR0.12 7,776 0.10

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.11% 
(2018: 0.10%)   

249 Aalberts Industries NV Com EUR0.25 8,161 0.11

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.00% (2018: 0.99%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.91% (2018: 0.00%)   

4,660 Mylan NV Com EUR0.01 67,657 0.91

 Semiconductors: 0.26% (2018: 1.26%)   

93 ASML Holding NV Com EUR0.09 19,581 0.26

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.10%)   

 
Telecommunications: 1.46% (2018: 
0.00%)   

3,525 Altice Europe NV EUR0.01 16,232 0.22

38,667 Koninklijke KPN NV Com EUR0.04 92,157 1.24

 Total Netherlands 935,908 12.57

    

 Norway: 0.56% (2018: 9.11%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 1.83%)   

 
Environmental Control: 0.00% (2018: 
1.29%)   

 Food: 0.11% (2018: 2.85%)   

1,070 Orkla ASA Com NOK1.25 8,017 0.11

 Insurance: 0.10% (2018: 1.87%)   

531 Gjensidige Forsikring ASA Com NOK2.00 7,731 0.10

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 0.87%)   

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.24%)   

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.35% (2018: 0.05%)   
19,840 Petroleum Geo-Services ASA Com 

NOK3.00 25,923 0.35

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
0.11%)   

 Total Norway 41,671 0.56

    

 Portugal: 1.53% (2018: 0.10%)   

 Electric: 0.10% (2018: 0.10%)   
2,515 EDP - Energias de Portugal SA Com 

EUR1.00 7,868 0.10

 Food: 1.43% (2018: 0.00%)   
8,133 Jeronimo Martins SGPS SA Com 

EUR1.00 100,489 1.35

7,237 Sonae SGPS SA Com EUR1.00 5,617 0.08

 Total Portugal 113,974 1.53

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

GBP 

% of
net

assets

 Spain: 4.28% (2018: 3.70%)   

 Electric: 2.90% (2018: 1.58%)   

5,690 Endesa SA Com EUR1.20 119,704 1.61

12,660 Iberdrola SA Com EUR0.75 96,347 1.29

 Oil & Gas: 1.38% (2018: 1.48%)   

8,444 Repsol SA Com EUR1.00 102,857 1.38

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.51%)   

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.13%)   

Total Spain 318,908 4.28

    

 Sweden: 8.14% (2018: 9.78%)   

 Agriculture: 0.82% (2018: 1.36%)   
1,647 Swedish Match AB Class A Com 

SEK1.98 61,016 0.82

 Apparel: 0.00% (2018: 0.10%)   

 Auto Manufacturers: 0.10% (2018: 0.11%)   

641 Volvo AB Class B Com SEK1.20 7,665 0.10

 Banks: 0.32% (2018: 0.96%)   
2,499 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB Class 

A Com SEK10.00 16,574 0.22

712 Swedbank AB Class A Com SEK22.00 7,171 0.10

 
Commercial Services: 0.23% (2018: 
0.00%)   

536 Loomis AB Class B Com SEK5.00 17,316 0.23

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 1.29% (2018: 
0.00%)   

3,953 Essity AB Class B Com SEK3.35 96,099 1.29

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.32%)   

 Entertainment: 0.00% (2018: 0.12%)   

 Food: 1.02% (2018: 0.00%)   

5,392 AAK AB Com NPV 76,210 1.02

 Hand/Machine Tools: 1.36% (2018: 0.00%)   

7,219 Sandvik AB Class A Com SEK1.20 101,537 1.36

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.24% (2018: 
1.63%)   

1,313 Getinge AB Class B Com SEK0.50 17,630 0.24

 
Holdings Companies-Diversified: 0.27% 
(2018: 0.11%)   

444 Industrivarden AB Class A Com SEK2.50 8,104 0.11

658 Industrivarden AB Class C Com SEK2.50 11,803 0.16

 Home Furnishing: 0.00% (2018: 0.15%)   

 
Investment Companies: 0.11% (2018: 
0.00%)   

192 Investor AB Class B Com SEK6.25 7,850 0.11

 Iron/Steel: 0.66% (2018: 0.79%)   

20,390 SSAB AB Class A Com SEK8.80 49,075 0.66

 Lodging: 0.00% (2018: 0.11%)   
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Machinery-Construction & Mining: 0.11% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

891 Epiroc AB Class A Com SEK0.41 8,045 0.11

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.08%)   

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 0.85%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.11% 
(2018: 1.39%)   

646 Trelleborg AB Class B Com SEK25.00 8,241 0.11

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.12%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 1.27%)   

 Real Estate: 0.25% (2018: 0.21%)   

1,135 Castellum AB Class A Com SEK0.50 18,792 0.25

 
Telecommunications: 1.25% (2018: 
0.00%)   

13,292 Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson Class B 
Com SEK5.00 92,646 1.25

 Transportation: 0.00% (2018: 0.10%)   

 Total Sweden 605,774 8.14

    

 Switzerland: 23.97% (2018: 16.88%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
0.42%)   

 Banks: 3.18% (2018: 1.73%)   
101 Banque Cantonale Vaudoise Com 

CHF10.00 60,085 0.81

12,897 UBS Group AG Com CHF0.10 120,923 1.62

740 Valiant Holding AG Com CHF0.50 55,586 0.75

 Biotechnology: 0.56% (2018: 0.00%)   

362 
Bachem Holding AG Class B Com 
CHF0.50 41,614 0.56

 Building Materials: 1.24% (2018: 0.28%)   

2,318 LafargeHolcim Ltd Com CHF2.00 92,458 1.24

 Chemicals: 0.73% (2018: 0.00%)   

3,377 Clariant AG Com CHF3.70 53,973 0.73

 
Commercial Services: 1.35% (2018: 
1.69%)   

2,101 Adecco Group AG Com CHF0.10 100,478 1.35

 Computers: 0.82% (2018: 0.18%)   

1,811 Logitech International SA Com CHF0.25 61,237 0.82

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.83% 
(2018: 1.02%)   

1,702 Swissquote Group Holding SA Com 
CHF0.20 61,567 0.83

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.71% (2018: 0.00%)   

996 Huber + Suhner AG Com CHF0.25 52,625 0.71

 Electronics: 1.61% (2018: 0.00%)   

488 ALSO Holding AG Com CHF1.00 59,799 0.80

  

  

  

  

  

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

GBP

% of
net

assets

 

58 LEM Holding SA Com CHF0.50 60,034 0.81

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.81% (2018: 
0.51%)   

442 Flughafen Zurich AG Com CHF10.00 60,624 0.81

 Food: 0.89% (2018: 0.65%)   

1
Chocoladefabriken Lindt & Spruengli AG 
Com CHF100.00 65,987 0.89

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.11% (2018: 
0.28%)   

39 Tecan Group AG Com CHF0.10 8,104 0.11

 Insurance: 5.03% (2018: 4.34%)   

906 Baloise Holding AG Com CHF0.10 121,813 1.64

566 Helvetia Holding AG Com CHF0.02 59,767 0.80

158 Swiss Life Holding AG Com CHF5.10 60,601 0.81

436 Zurich Insurance Group AG Class A Com 
CHF0.10 132,318 1.78

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.51%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.96% (2018: 
0.79%)   

44 Bucher Industries AG Com CHF0.20 10,906 0.15

480 Kardex AG Com CHF0.45 60,526 0.81

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.86%)   

 
Packaging & Containers: 0.75% (2018: 
0.35%)   

26 Vetropack Holding AG Class B Com 
CHF50.00 55,715 0.75

 Pharmaceuticals: 3.56% (2018: 2.79%)   

1,351 Novartis AG Com CHF0.50 96,215 1.29

292 Roche Holding AG Class B Com CHF1.00 68,852 0.92

421 Roche Holding AG Com NPV 100,376 1.35

 Real Estate: 0.72% (2018: 0.21%)   

124
Intershop Holding AG Class A Com 
CHF10.00 53,911 0.72

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.16%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.11% (2018: 
0.00%)   

136 Sunrise Communications Group AG Com 
NPV 8,254 0.11

 Transportation: 0.00% (2018: 0.11%)   

Total Switzerland 1,784,348 23.97

    

 United States: 3.27% (2018: 3.77%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 1.11%)   

 Biotechnology: 0.00% (2018: 0.56%)   

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 0.27%)   

 Computers: 0.64% (2018: 0.00%)   

3,764 Presidio Inc Com USD0.01 48,043 0.64
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value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

GBP 

% of
net

assets

    

    

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.35%)   

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 0.57%)   

 
Environmental Control: 0.00% (2018: 
0.56%)   

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.77% (2018: 
0.35%)   

8,096 Meridian Bioscience Inc Com NPV 57,270 0.77

 Oil & Gas: 0.88% (2018: 0.00%)   

2,144 Helmerich & Payne Inc Com USD0.10 65,522 0.88

 Retail: 0.60% (2018: 0.00%)   

2,999 L Brands Inc Com USD0.50 44,376 0.60

 Transportation: 0.38% (2018: 0.00%)   
2,710 Covenant Transportation Group Inc 

Class A Com USD0.01 28,137 0.38

 Total United States 243,348 3.27

 Total equities 7,436,933 99.92
 

Outperformance swaps**: 0.10% % (2018: 0.15%) 

Counterparty CCY Maturity date 

Level 2 
Fair value 

GBP 

% of
net

assets

Goldman Sachs 
International GBP 24/02/2022 23,793 0.32

Fair value outperformance swaps gains 23,793 0.32

     

J.P. Morgan Securities 
plc GBP 30/11/2020 (3,888) (0.05)

Morgan Stanley & Co. 
International plc GBP 10/12/2021 (12,619) (0.17)

Fair value outperformance swaps losses (16,507) (0.22)

  

Fair value outperformance swaps 7,286 0.10
  

 
Fair value 

GBP 

% of
net

assets

Total value of investments 7,444,219 100.02

   

Cash and cash equivalents* 147 0.00

   

Other net liabilities (1,614) (0.02)

   

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
participating shares 7,442,752 100.00

  

* All cash holdings are held with The Northern Trust Company. 

** These outperformance swaps track the GBP FTSE 100 Net TR Index. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap gains 1,787,827. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap losses 5,676,898. 

 

 

% of
total 

assets

Unaudited Analysis of Total Assets  
Transferable securities and money market instruments admitted to 
official stock exchange listing. 99.60

Transferable securities and money market instruments traded on a 
regulated market. 0.00

Financial derivative instruments. 0.32

Other assets. 0.08

 100.00
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Statement of comprehensive income 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
GBP 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
GBP

Income  
Net gains on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss 3 6,434,899 761,426
Total investment income 6,434,899 761,426
Operating expenses 4 (97,760) (46,294)
Net income 6,337,139 715,132
Profit for the financial year 6,337,139 715,132
Increase in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 6,337,139 715,132
 
There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the increase in Net Assets Attributable 
to Holders of Redeemable Shares of the Company. In arriving at the results of the financial year, all amounts above 
relate to continuing operations. 
 
Statement of financial position 
 
As at 30 November 2019 Notes As at 

30 November 
2019 
GBP 

As at
30 November

2018
GBP

Current Assets  
Assets at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) 107,116,624 9,708,650
Assets at amortised cost  
Cash and cash equivalents 5 162 60
Debtors 6 14,658,899 796,750
Total Current Assets 121,775,685 10,505,460
Current Liabilities  
Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) (461,458) (60,461)
Other financial liabilities  
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 7 (14,662,782) (796,942)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Shares)  (15,124,240) (857,403)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 106,651,445 9,648,057
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
GBP 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
GBP

Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares
at the beginning of the financial year  9,648,057 34,935,395
Increase in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of  
Redeemable Shares from operations 6,337,139 715,132
Amounts received on issue of Redeemable Shares 373,235,673 137,649,258
Amounts paid on redemption of Redeemable Shares (282,569,424) (163,651,728)
Increase/(decrease) in Net Assets resulting from Share transactions 90,666,249 (26,002,470)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares
at the end of the financial year 10 106,651,445 9,648,057
 
Statement of cash flows 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
GBP 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
GBP

Cash flows from operating activities  
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,703,305,180 316,716,456
Purchase of investments (1,793,954,087) (290,675,309)
Management fees paid (96,887) (47,195)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (90,745,794) 25,993,952
Cash flows from financing activities  
Proceeds from issue of Redeemable Shares 373,235,673 137,649,258
Payments of redemption of Redeemable Shares (282,569,424) (163,651,728)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 90,666,249 (26,002,470)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (79,545) (8,518)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 60 172
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents 79,647 8,406
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5 162 60
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 
 
General information 
Investment objective and policy 
The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve the 
Target Performance (which is the net total return 
performance of the Reference Index (being the FTSE 250 
Net TR Index) (less fees, expenses and transaction costs)). 
The Fund does not intend to make dividend payments. 
 
The Reference Index is a capitalisation-weighted 
Reference Index of the 250 mid-capitalised companies 
traded on the London Stock Exchange. The Reference 
Index is designed to measure the performance of the mid-
cap capital and industry segments of the UK market not 
covered by the large cap FTSE 100. To qualify, companies 
must have a full listing on the London Stock Exchange 
with a Sterling or Euro dominated price on SETS or 
SETSmm, or a firm quotation on SEAQ or SEATS, subject 
to eligibility screens. The Reference Index represents 
approximately 14% of the UK market capitalisation. 
 
The Fund shall not invest more than 10% of its net assets 
in other UCITS or other open or closed ended CIS. 
 
The functional currency of the Fund is Sterling and the 
Fund is valued in Sterling. 
 
1. Significant accounting policies 
 
See pages 35 to 44 for significant accounting policies. 
 
2. Financial risk management 
 
See pages 44 to 50 for general notes. The risk 
management technique applying to this Fund is the 
Commitment Approach. A sensitivity analysis is presented 
below to reflect the Commitment Approach applied. 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis 
 
The sensitivity analysis for the Fund assumes a change in 
the market price of the investments while holding all other 
variables constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur and 
changes in some of the variables may be correlated. 
 

In addition, as the sensitivity analysis uses historical data 
as a basis for determining future events, it does not 
encompass all possible scenarios, particularly those that 
are of an extreme nature. The reasonably possible 
decrease in the Reference Index is based on the 
movement over the financial year ended 30 November 
2019. These movements may be different from the long 
term volatility of the Reference Index. 
 
As detailed in the tables below, the decrease in the 
Reference Index (the FTSE 250 Net TR Index) at 30 
November 2019 and 30 November 2018, with all other 
variables held constant, would have resulted in an 
estimated decrease in the net assets attributable to 
holders of redeemable participating shares as follows, 
increase in Reference Index by 1% will have equal and 
opposite effect: 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November 
2019 

Reference 
Index 

close at 
30 November 

2019 

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary 
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of 

the Reference 
Index
GBP

6,594.619695 16,173.09 16,011.36 (1,066,553.78)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2019. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2019, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November  
2018 

Reference 
Index 

close at 
30 November 

2018 

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of 

the Reference 
Index
GBP

692.353597 13,935.63 13,796.27 (96,483.84)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2018. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2018, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis (continued)  
 
Based on historic movements and volatilities in these 
market variables, and management’s knowledge and 
experience of the financial markets, it was determined 
that the movements listed above are reasonably possible 
over the financial year. 
 
B) Foreign currency risk/interest rate risk 
 
Foreign currency and interest rate exposure is minimal 
due to the nature and strategy of the investments held by 
the Fund. As a result, no sensitivity analysis or exposure 
tables have been disclosed for foreign currency or interest 
rate risk. The Fund is not exposed to significant currency 
risk as all the swaps settle in the base currency of the 
Fund. 
 
C) Liquidity risk 
 
The following tables analyse the Fund's non-derivative 
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period at the Statement of financial 
position date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows. Balances due within twelve months equal their 
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not 
significant. All amounts are stated in Sterling. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 14,661,375 - 14,661,375
Accrued expenses - 1,407 1,407
Net assets attributable 
to holders of  
Redeemable Shares 106,651,445 - 106,651,445
Total financial liabilities 121,312,820 1,407 121,314,227
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As at 30 November 
2018 

Less than 
7 days

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities
awaiting settlement 796,408 - 796,408
Accrued expenses - 534 534
Net assets attributable 
to holders of 
Redeemable Shares 9,648,057 - 9,648,057
Total financial liabilities 10,444,465 534 10,444,999
 
The tables below analyse the Fund's derivative financial 
instruments in a loss position and is based on the fact that 
swaps are reset on a monthly basis; rather than the 
contractual maturity date of the swap. All amounts are 
stated in Sterling. 
 
As at 30 November
2019

7 days to
1 month

1-3 
months 

More than
3 months

Financial liabilities at 
fair value through 
profit or loss* 461,458 - -
 
As at 30 November 
2018

7 days to
1 month

1-3 
months 

More than
3 months

Financial liabilities at 
fair value through 
profit or loss* 60,461 - -
 
* Derivatives settled net. 
 
D) Fair value 
 
The tables below analyse within the fair value hierarchy 
the Fund's financial assets and liabilities (by class) 
measured at fair value. All amounts are stated in Sterling. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 107,084,022 - -
- Derivatives - 32,602 -
Total assets 107,084,022 32,602 -
Liabilities  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Derivatives - 461,458 -
Total liabilities - 461,458 -
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
D) Fair value (continued) 
 
As at 30 November 
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 9,705,923 - -
- Derivatives - 2,727 -
Total assets 9,705,923 2,727 -
Liabilities  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Derivatives - 60,461 -
Total liabilities - 60,461 -
 
The Fund did not hold any Level 3 instruments during the 
financial year (30 November 2018: Nil). There were no 
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the financial 
year. 
 
Investments whose values are based on quoted market 
prices in active markets, and therefore classified within 
Level 1, include active listed equities. The Fund does not 
adjust the quoted price for these instruments. 
 
Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not 
considered to be active but are valued based on quoted 
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing 
sources supported by observable inputs are classified 
within Level 2. 
 
The Level 2 amounts above represent outperformance 
swaps. These are priced using a valuation comprising of 
observable data which tracks the performance of the 
Reference Index against the performance of the Fund's 
underlying equity basket. 
 
The Schedule of investments shows the equities split by 
level, country of origin and industry group. The 
derivatives are outperformance swaps. All equities are 
classified as Level 1 and all outperformance swaps as 
Level 2. 

3. Net gains on financial assets and liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss 

 
 Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
GBP 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
GBP

Realised gains on sale of 
investments 5,146,048 652,803
Realised gains on 
outperformance swaps* 1,342,613 277,109
Net currency gains 79,647 8,407
Net change in realised 
appreciation on 
investments 237,713 65,342
Net change in realised 
depreciation on 
outperformance swaps (371,122) (242,235)

 6,434,899 761,426
 
* Realised gains on outperformance swaps include an amount of GBP 40,678 
relating to swap fees (30 November 2018: USD Nil). 
 

4. Operating expenses  
 
 Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
GBP 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
GBP

Management fees 97,760 46,294
 97,760 46,294
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager. 
 
5. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
GBP 

As at 
30 November

2018
GBP

The Northern Trust 
Company* 162 60
 162 60
 
* Cash held is unsegregated. 
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6. Debtors 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
GBP 

As at 
30 November 

2018
GBP

Sale of securities  
awaiting settlement 14,658,899 796,750
 14,658,899 796,750
 
7. Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
GBP 

As at 
30 November 

2018
GBP

Management fees 1,407 534
Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 14,661,375 796,408
 14,662,782 796,942
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager. 
 
8. Segment reporting 
 
IFRS 8 requires disclosures in respect of the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) and certain 
disclosures in respect of the country of origin of income. 
Management have determined the CODM is the Board of 
Directors. 
 
All revenues are derived from financial assets and are 
attributable to a country based on the domicile of the 
issuer of the instrument. The Schedule of investments 
discloses the investments of the Fund at their fair value by 
their respective country of origin. 
 
There was no dividend income received by the Fund for 
the financial year ended 30 November 2019 (30 
November 2018: Nil). 

9. Share capital 
 
Redeemable shares  
in issue 

Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018

Number of Redeemable Shares  
Issued and Fully Paid  
Balance at beginning of 
financial year 72,031 247,271
Issued during financial year 2,619,793 965,645
Redeemed during financial year (2,003,348) (1,140,885)
Total number of  
Redeemable Shares in issue at 
end of financial year 688,476 72,031

 
10. Net asset value 
 
 As at

30 November 
2019
GBP

As at 
30 November 

2018 
GBP 

As at
30 November 

2017
GBP

Total Net Asset Value  
Class A 
Redeemable Shares 106,651,445 9,648,057 34,935,395
Dealing Net Asset Value  
per Redeemable Share 
Class A 
Redeemable Shares 154.9095 133.9431 141.2838
 
11. Collateral 
 
The collateral for Invesco FTSE 250 UCITS ETF is 
unilateral. The Fund has entered into a Charge Account 
Control Agreement ("the Agreement") with each Swap 
Counterparty being J.P. Morgan Securities plc and 
Goldman Sachs International. The Agreement was in place 
from 25 August 2017 and from 11 August 2017 
respectively. The collateral model involves the pledge of 
collateral to the Swap Counterparties in the form of 
equities. Equities pledged as collateral are marked with an 
asterisk in the Schedule of investments. 
 
There were no securities pledged by the Fund as at 30 
November 2019 (30 November 2018: none). 
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

GBP

% of
net

assets

 Equities: 100.41% (2018: 100.60%)   

 Austria: 0.04% (2018: 2.26%)   

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 2.12%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.14%)   

 Insurance: 0.04% (2018: 0.00%)   
1,929 Vienna Insurance Group AG Wiener 

Versicherung Gruppe Class A Com NPV 41,272 0.04

 Total Austria 41,272 0.04

    

 Belgium: 3.31% (2018: 2.90%)   

 Beverages: 3.30% (2018: 0.00%)   

57,404 Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV Com NPV 3,516,749 3.30

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 0.39%)   

 
Distribution/Wholesale: 0.00% (2018: 
0.32%)   

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

78 Elia System Operator SA/NV Com NPV 4,987 0.00

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.66%)   

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.15%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.15%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.01% (2018: 1.23%)   

128 UCB SA Com NPV 8,026 0.01

 Total Belgium 3,529,762 3.31

    

 Bermuda: 1.30% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Chemicals: 1.30% (2018: 0.00%)   

63,241 Axalta Coating Systems Com USD1.00 1,391,938 1.30

 Total Bermuda 1,391,938 1.30

    

 Denmark: 2.30% (2018: 7.12%)   

 Agriculture: 0.00% (2018: 0.54%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 3.59%)   

 Beverages: 0.00% (2018: 0.56%)   

 Biotechnology: 2.23% (2018: 0.00%)   

13,221 Genmab A/S Com DKK1.00 2,383,175 2.23

 Building Materials: 0.00% (2018: 0.47%)   

 Electric: 0.03% (2018: 0.00%)   

410 Orsted A/S Com DKK10.00 29,235 0.03

 
Energy-Alternate Sources: 0.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

123 Vestas Wind Systems A/S Com DKK1.00 9,057 0.01

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.03% (2018: 0.00%)   

957 H Lundbeck A/S Com DKK5.00 28,365 0.03

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

GBP

% of
net

assets

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.23%)   

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.29%)   

 Transportation: 0.00% (2018: 1.44%)   

Total Denmark 2,449,832 2.30

    

 Faroe Islands: 0.00% (2018: 0.32%)   

 Food: 0.00% (2018: 0.32%)   

169 Bakkafrost P/F Rts DKK1.00 1,674 0.00

Total Faroe Islands 1,674 -

    

 Finland: 5.54% (2018: 2.66%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

710 Nokian Renkaat Oyj Com NPV 14,864 0.01

 
Commercial Services: 0.01% (2018: 
0.29%)   

470 Cramo Oyj NPV 5,352 0.01

 Electric: 0.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

2,503 Fortum Oyj Com EUR3.40 45,638 0.04

 Food: 3.46% (2018: 0.23%)   

70,614 Kesko Oyj Class B Com NPV 3,686,188 3.46

 
Forest Products & Paper: 0.05% (2018: 
1.21%)   

2,065 UPM-Kymmene Oyj Com NPV 53,370 0.05

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

114 Sampo Oyj Class A Com NPV 3,566 0.00

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.06% (2018: 
0.00%)   

3,925 Valmet Oyj Com NPV 67,985 0.06

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 1.67% 
(2018: 0.46%)   

228,594 Wartsila Oyj Abp Com NPV 1,780,215 1.67

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.20%)   

 Retail: 0.19% (2018: 0.00%)   

19,374 Tokmanni Group Corp Com NPV 200,158 0.19

 
Telecommunications: 0.05% (2018: 
0.27%)   

1,201 Elisa Oyj Com NPV 49,662 0.05

Total Finland 5,906,998 5.54

    

 Germany: 16.45% (2018: 11.42%)   

 Apparel: 0.01% (2018: 0.37%)   

32 Adidas AG Class A Com NPV 7,713 0.01

 Auto Manufacturers: 0.13% (2018: 1.37%)   
1,835 Bayerische Motoren Werke AG Pref 

EUR1.00 87,594 0.08

387 Volkswagen AG Pref NPV 57,888 0.05
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

GBP 

% of
net

assets

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.05% (2018: 
0.48%)   

416 Continental AG Class A Com NPV 42,056 0.04

91 Rheinmetall AG Class A Com NPV 7,496 0.01

 Banks: 0.15% (2018: 0.00%)   

5,365 Aareal Bank AG NPV 128,050 0.12

2,802 Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG Class A 
Com NPV 32,650 0.03

 Chemicals: 1.23% (2018: 2.16%)   

862 BASF SE Com NPV 50,127 0.05

1,835 Brenntag AG Class A Com NPV 75,723 0.07

1,460 Fuchs Petrolub SE Pref NPV 48,785 0.05

15,084 Symrise AG Class A Com NPV 1,132,004 1.06

 Computers: 0.03% (2018: 0.00%)   

732 CANCOM SE Com NPV 33,538 0.03

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 0.08% (2018: 
0.17%)   

931 Beiersdorf AG Class A Com NPV 84,002 0.08

 Electric: 0.28% (2018: 0.43%)   

6,025 E.ON SE Com NPV 48,780 0.05

148 RWE AG Class A Com NPV 3,395 0.00

9,817 Uniper SE Com NPV 245,187 0.23

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 0.40%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.03% (2018: 
0.00%)   

316 Hochtief AG Class A Com NPV 30,034 0.03

 Food: 0.00% (2018: 0.45%)   

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.02% (2018: 
0.00%)   

171 Carl Zeiss Meditec AG Class B Com NPV 16,180 0.02

 Healthcare-Services: 0.01% (2018: 0.59%)   

322 Fresenius SE & Co KGaA Com NPV 13,625 0.01

 Home Furnishings: 3.14% (2018: 0.00%)   

5,652 Rational AG Class A Com NPV 3,348,409 3.14

 Insurance: 8.42% (2018: 0.90%)   

42 Allianz SE Com NPV 7,781 0.01

11,984 Hannover Rueck SE Com NPV 1,721,287 1.61

31,828 Muenchener Rueckversicherungs-
Gesellschaft AG in Muenchen Com NPV 7,070,259 6.63

5,060 Talanx AG Class A Com NPV 186,590 0.17

 Internet: 0.00% (2018: 0.14%)   

 Leisure Time: 0.05% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,113 CTS Eventim AG & Co KGaA Com NPV 52,560 0.05

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.21%)   

 
Metal Fabricate/Hardware: 0.00% (2018: 
0.20%)   

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

GBP 

% of
net

assets

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.05% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

490 Siemens AG Com NPV 48,919 0.05

 Real Estate: 0.14% (2018: 1.70%)   

4,673 Deutsche Wohnen SE Com NPV 141,209 0.13

440 TAG Immobilien AG Class A Com NPV 8,191 0.01

 Retail: 0.01% (2018: 0.63%)   

152 Fielmann AG Class A Com NPV 9,180 0.01

 Semiconductors: 0.08% (2018: 0.14%)   

1,413 Siltronic AG Class A Com NPV 90,527 0.08

 Software: 2.28% (2018: 0.20%)   

49,172 Nemetschek SE Com NPV 2,248,739 2.11

123 New Work SE NPV 32,241 0.03

442 RIB Software SE Com NPV 9,012 0.01

1,368 SAP SE Com NPV 143,991 0.13

 
Telecommunications: 0.22% (2018: 
0.88%)   

6,534 Deutsche Telekom AG Com NPV 84,861 0.08

8,214 Freenet AG NPV 147,947 0.14

 Transportation: 0.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,709 Deutsche Post AG Com NPV 49,297 0.04

Total Germany 17,545,827 16.45

    

 Liechtenstein: 0.00% (2018: 0.80%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.80%)   

Total Liechtenstein - -

    

 Luxembourg: 0.92% (2018: 1.92%)   

 Iron/Steel: 0.00% (2018: 0.31%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
1.38%)   

 Media: 0.13% (2018: 0.10%)   

3,677 RTL Group SA Com NPV 135,717 0.13

 Real Estate: 0.79% (2018: 0.13%)   

2,215 ADO Properties SA Com NPV 66,763 0.06

116,561 Aroundtown SA Com EUR0.01 783,143 0.73

Total Luxembourg 985,623 0.92

    

 Netherlands: 11.54% (2018: 4.22%)   

 Banks: 6.66% (2018: 0.72%)   

797,548 ING Groep NV Com EUR0.01 7,100,276 6.66

 Beverages: 0.08% (2018: 0.00%)   

83 Heineken Holding NV Com EUR1.60 6,155 0.01

969 Heineken NV Com EUR1.60 77,676 0.07

 Biotechnology: 0.00% (2018: 0.12%)   
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

GBP

% of
net

assets

 Chemicals: 3.06% (2018: 0.22%)   

44,016 Azko Nobel NV EUR0.50 3,261,233 3.06

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.01% (2018: 0.25%)   

380 Philips Lighting Com EUR0.01 8,768 0.01

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 0.08%)   

 Food: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   
407 Koninklijke Ahold Delhaize NV Com 

EUR0.01 8,113 0.01

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.04% (2018: 
0.00%)   

1,391 QIAGEN NV Com EUR0.01 - Xetra 46,077 0.04

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.08%)   

 Leisure Time: 0.00% (2018: 0.71%)   

 Media: 0.05% (2018: 0.39%)   

976 Wolters Kluwer NV Com EUR0.12 54,210 0.05

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.03% 
(2018: 1.20%)   

959 Aalberts Industries NV Com EUR0.25 31,432 0.03

 Pharmaceuticals: 1.41% (2018: 0.00%)   

103,426 Mylan NV Com EUR0.01 1,501,616 1.41

 Pipelines: 0.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,093 Koninklijke Vopak NV Com EUR0.50 45,085 0.04

 Semiconductors: 0.14% (2018: 0.45%)   
5,187 BE Semiconductor Industries NV Com 

EUR0.01 148,075 0.14

 
Telecommunications: 0.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

3,163 Altice Europe NV EUR0.01 14,565 0.01

 Total Netherlands 12,303,281 11.54

    

 Norway: 0.93% (2018: 3.78%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
0.14%)   

 Banks: 0.89% (2018: 0.02%)   
115,968 SpareBank 1 SR-Bank ASA Com 

NOK25.00 945,744 0.89

 
Environmental Control: 0.00% (2018: 
0.12%)   

 Food: 0.03% (2018: 0.51%)   

4,061 Orkla ASA Com NOK1.25 30,429 0.03

 Insurance: 0.01% (2018: 0.25%)   

998 Gjensidige Forsikring ASA Com NOK2.00 14,531 0.01

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 1.68%)   

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.22%)   

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.00% (2018: 0.84%)   

 Total Norway 990,704 0.93

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

GBP

% of
net

assets

 Portugal: 0.08% (2018: 0.18%)   

 Electric: 0.01% (2018: 0.18%)   
2,575 EDP - Energias de Portugal SA Com 

EUR1.00 8,056 0.01

 Food: 0.07% (2018: 0.00%)   

3,000
Jeronimo Martins SGPS SA Com 
EUR1.00 37,067 0.03

51,397 Sonae SGPS SA Com EUR1.00 39,891 0.04
 

Total Portugal 85,014 0.08

    

 Spain: 0.23% (2018: 1.90%)   

 Electric: 0.05% (2018: 0.00%)   

311 Endesa SA Com EUR1.20 6,543 0.01

2,764 Red Electrica Corp SA Com EUR0.50 41,820 0.04

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.10% (2018: 
1.44%)   

3,355 ACS Actividades de Construccion y 
Servicios SA Com EUR0.50 101,039 0.10

 Gas: 0.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

2,396 Enagas SA Com EUR1.50 46,178 0.04

 Oil & Gas: 0.03% (2018: 0.46%)   

2,893 Repsol SA Com EUR1.00 35,240 0.03

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

21 Amadeus IT Group SA Com EUR0.01 1,294 0.00

 Transportation: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   
292 Construcciones y Auxiliar de 

Ferrocarriles SA Com EUR0.30 9,869 0.01

Total Spain 241,983 0.23

    

 Sweden: 10.89% (2018: 11.98%)   

 Agriculture: 0.00% (2018: 0.09%)   

 Auto Manufacturers: 2.66% (2018: 1.17%)   

237,484 Volvo AB Class B Com SEK1.20 2,839,663 2.66

 Banks: 0.03% (2018: 1.83%)   
3,891 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB Class 

A Com SEK10.00 25,807 0.03

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

126 Loomis AB Class B Com SEK5.00 4,071 0.00

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 0.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

312 Essity AB Class B Com SEK3.35 7,585 0.01

 Food: 0.03% (2018: 0.67%)   

2,135 AAK AB Com NPV 30,176 0.03

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.01% (2018: 0.54%)   

508 Sandvik AB Class A Com SEK1.20 7,145 0.01
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

GBP 

% of
net

assets

 
Holding Companies-Diversified: 0.01% 
(2018: 1.67%)   

651 Industrivarden AB Class A Com SEK2.50 11,884 0.01

 Home Furnishings: 0.00% (2018: 0.13%)   

 
Investment Companies: 2.74% (2018: 
0.00%)   

71,584 Investor AB Class B Com SEK6.25 2,926,592 2.74

 Iron/Steel: 0.00% (2018: 0.55%)   

 Leisure Time: 0.00% (2018: 0.07%)   

 Lodging: 0.00% (2018: 0.15%)   

 
Machinery-Construction & Mining: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.12%)   

 
Metal Fabricate/Hardware: 1.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

117,359 Lindab International AB Class A Com 
SEK1.00 1,078,655 1.01

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 1.24%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.77% 
(2018: 0.75%)   

18,325 Nolato AB Class B Com SEK5.00 784,411 0.74

2,669 Trelleborg AB Class B Com SEK25.00 34,048 0.03

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 1.07%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 2.17% (2018: 0.34%)   

178,873 
Swedish Orphan Biovitrum AB Class A 
Com SEK0.55 2,309,306 2.17

 Real Estate: 1.44% (2018: 1.59%)   

696 Castellum AB Class A Com SEK0.50 11,524 0.01

229,179 Dios Fastigheter AB Class A Com 
SEK2.00 1,527,048 1.43

 
Telecommunications: 0.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

2,010 Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson Class B 
Com SEK5.00 14,010 0.01

 Total Sweden 11,611,925 10.89

    

 Switzerland: 26.43% (2018: 36.00%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
0.54%)   

 Banks: 6.57% (2018: 4.65%)   

747,682 UBS Group AG Com CHF0.10 7,010,282 6.57

 Building Materials: 3.18% (2018: 0.11%)   

85,138 LafargeHolcim Ltd Com CHF2.00 3,395,880 3.18

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 3.36%)   

 
Commercial Services: 0.03% (2018: 
0.25%)   

691 Adecco Group AG Com CHF0.10 33,046 0.03

 Computers: 3.17% (2018: 0.06%)   

99,856 Logitech International SA Com CHF0.25 3,376,532 3.17

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

GBP 

% of
net

assets

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.03% 
(2018: 4.35%)   

362 Cembra Money Bank AG Class A Com 
CHF1.00 29,152 0.03

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.00% (2018: 4.16%)   

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 1.09%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 2.16% (2018: 
0.00%)   

16,829 Flughafen Zurich AG Com CHF10.00 2,308,251 2.16

 Food: 5.28% (2018: 1.78%)   

1,356 Barry Callebaut AG Com CHF0.02 2,108,491 1.98

2 Chocoladefabriken Lindt & Spruengli AG 
Com CHF10.00 11,797 0.01

43,654 Nestle SA Com CHF0.10 3,509,450 3.29

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.02% (2018: 
1.81%)   

47 Sonova Holding AG Com CHF0.05 8,301 0.01

30 Tecan Group AG Com CHF0.10 6,234 0.01

 Insurance: 1.83% (2018: 6.41%)   

275 Helvetia Holding AG Com CHF0.02 29,039 0.03

6,350 Zurich Insurance Group AG Class A Com 
CHF0.10 1,927,116 1.80

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.01% (2018: 
5.17%)   

25 Bucher Industries AG Com CHF0.20 6,197 0.01

 Pharmaceuticals: 3.33% (2018: 1.67%)   

49,833 Novartis AG Com CHF0.50 3,548,983 3.33

 Real Estate: 0.03% (2018: 0.47%)   

198 Allreal Holding AG Com CHF50.00 29,317 0.03

 Retail: 0.79% (2018: 0.00%)   

11,251 Dufry AG Com CHF5.00 849,313 0.79

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
0.12%)   

Total Switzerland 28,187,381 26.43

    

 United States: 20.45% (2018: 13.14%)   

 Agriculture: 2.53% (2018: 0.00%)   

42,027 Philip Morris International Inc Com NPV 2,694,472 2.53

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 3.83%)   

 Biotechnology: 0.00% (2018: 1.12%)   

 Chemicals: 3.49% (2018: 0.00%)   
20,359 Air Products & Chemicals Inc Com 

USD1.00 3,719,708 3.49

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
1.99%)   
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percentages in brackets show the equivalent country of origin and sector holdings at 30 November 2018. 
 

 
126   Invesco FTSE 250 UCITS ETF 

Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

GBP

% of
net

assets

 
Diversified Financial Services: 1.16% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

13,312 American Express Co Class C Com 
USD0.20 1,236,210 1.16

 Electric: 3.48% (2018: 0.00%)   

78,064 Xcel Energy Inc Com USD2.50 3,710,982 3.48

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 2.01%)   

 Healthcare-Services: 0.00% (2018: 1.56%)   

 Home Builders: 3.07% (2018: 0.00%)   

76,513 DR Horton Inc Com USD0.01 3,274,058 3.07

 Internet: 3.36% (2018: 0.00%)   

24,327 VeriSign Inc Com USD0.001 3,587,268 3.36

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 1.94%)   

 Oil & Gas: 1.80% (2018: 0.00%)   
19,412 Pioneer Natural Resources Co Class C 

Com USD0.01 1,918,539 1.80

 
Packaging & Containers: 1.56% (2018: 
0.00%)   

53,548 Westrock Co Com USD0.01 1,669,571 1.56

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.69%)   

 Total United States 21,810,808 20.45

 Total equities 107,084,022 100.41
  

Outperformance swaps**: -0.41% (30 Nov 2018: -0.60%) 

Counterparty CCY Maturity date 

Level 2
Fair value

GBP

% of
net

assets

J.P. Morgan Securities 
plc GBP 30/11/2020 32,602 0.03

Fair value outperformance swaps gain 32,602 0.03

     

Goldman Sachs 
International GBP 24/02/2022 (455,586) (0.43)

Morgan Stanley & Co. 
International plc GBP 10/12/2021 (5,872) (0.01)

Fair value outperformance swaps losses (461,458) (0.44)

     

Fair value outperformance swaps (428,856) (0.41)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Fair value

GBP

% of
net

assets

Total value of investments 106,655,166 100.00

 

Cash and cash equivalents* 162 0.00

 

Other net liabilities (3,883) 0.00

 

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
participating shares 106,651,445 100.00

   

* All cash holdings are held with The Northern Trust Company. 

** These outperformance swaps track the FTSE 250 Net TR Index. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap gains 3,168,475. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap losses 104,516,286. 
 

 
% of

total 
assets

Unaudited Analysis of Total Assets 

Transferable securities and money market instruments admitted to 
official stock exchange listing. 87.93

Transferable securities and money market instruments traded on a 
regulated market. 0.00

Financial derivative instruments. 0.03

Other assets. 12.04

 100.00
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Statement of comprehensive income 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Income  
Net gains on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss 3 20,097,379 4,809,051
Total investment income 20,097,379 4,809,051
Operating expenses 4 (92,199) (153,196)
Net income 20,005,180 4,655,855
Profit for the financial year 20,005,180 4,655,855
Increase in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 20,005,180 4,655,855
 
There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the increase in Net Assets Attributable 
to Holders of Redeemable Shares of the Company. In arriving at the results of the financial year all amounts above 
relate to continuing operations. 
 
Statement of financial position 
 
As at 30 November 2019 Notes As at 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

As at
30 November

2018
USD

Current Assets  
Assets at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) 438,990,141 70,973,033
Assets at amortised cost  
Cash and cash equivalents 5 197 142
Debtors 6 1,772,466 1,097,189
Total Current Assets 440,762,804 72,070,364
Current Liabilities  
Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) (327,679) -
Other financial liabilities  
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 7 (86,146) (1,103,596)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Shares) (413,825) (1,103,596)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 440,348,979 70,966,768
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares
at the beginning of the financial year  70,966,768 81,252,389
Increase in Net Assets Attributable to  
Holders of Redeemable Shares from operations 20,005,180 4,655,855
Amounts received on issue of Redeemable Shares 363,881,629 34,849,629
Amounts paid on redemption of Redeemable Shares (14,504,598) (49,791,105)
Increase/(decrease) in Net Assets resulting from Share transactions 349,377,031 (14,941,476)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares
at the end of the financial year 10 440,348,979 70,966,768
 
Statement of cash flows 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Cash flows from operating activities  
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,807,409,456 712,152,731
Purchase of investments (2,154,991,000) (693,994,869)
Management fees paid (93,994) (160,242)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (347,675,538) 17,997,620
Cash flows from financing activities  
Proceeds from issue of Redeemable Shares 362,184,852 34,849,629
Payments of redemption of Redeemable Shares (14,504,598) (52,848,896)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 347,680,254 (17,999,267)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,716 (1,647)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 142 155
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and cash equivalents (4,661) 1,634
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5 197 142
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 
 
General information 
Investment objective and policy 
The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve the 
Target Performance (which is the net total return 
performance of the Reference Index (being the MSCI USA 
TR Net Index) (less fees, expenses and transaction 
costs)). Dividends may be payable in respect of Class 
Distributing Shares only. 
 
The Reference Index is a free float-adjusted, market 
capitalisation-weighted Reference Index designed to 
measure equity market performance in the US. The 
Reference Index provides a representation of 10 industry 
sectors with 612 constituents. 
 
The Fund shall not invest more than 10% of its net assets 
in other UCITS or other open or closed ended CIS. 
 
The functional currency of the Fund is US Dollar and the 
Fund is valued in US Dollar. 
 
1. Significant accounting policies 
 
See pages 35 to 44 for significant accounting policies. 
 
2. Financial risk management 
 
See pages 44 to 50 for general notes. The risk 
management technique applying to this Fund is the 
Commitment Approach. A sensitivity analysis is 
presented below to reflect the Commitment Approach 
applied. 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis 
 
The sensitivity analysis for the Fund assumes a change in 
the market price of the investments while holding all other 
variables constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur and 
changes in some of the variables may be correlated. 

In addition, as the sensitivity analysis uses historical data 
as a basis for determining future events, it does not 
encompass all possible scenarios, particularly those that 
are of an extreme nature. The reasonably possible 
decrease in the Reference Index is based on the 
movement over the financial year ended 30 November 
2019. These movements may be different from the long 
term volatility of the Reference Index. 
 
As detailed in the tables below, the decrease in the 
Reference Index (the MSCI USA TR Net Index) at 30 
November 2019 and 30 November 2018, with all other 
variables held constant, would have resulted in an 
estimated decrease in the net assets attributable to 
holders of redeemable participating shares as follows, 
increase in Reference Index by 1% will have equal and 
opposite effect: 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November 
2019 

Reference 
Index 

close at
30 November

2019

Reference 
Index close 
assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary 
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of the 
Reference Index

USD

33,169.272327 13,212.26 13,080.14 (4,382,411)
160.336656 13,212.26 13,080.14 (21,814)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2019. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2019, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November  
2018 

Reference Index
close at

30 November
2018

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of the 
Reference Index

USD

6,251.263708  11,353.43 11,239.89 (709,732.66) 
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2018. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2018, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis (continued)  
 
Based on historic movements and volatilities in these 
market variables, and management’s knowledge and 
experience of the financial markets, it was determined 
that the movements listed above are reasonably possible 
over the financial year. 
 
B) Foreign currency risk/interest rate risk 
 
Foreign currency and interest rate exposure is minimal 
due to the nature and strategy of the investments held by 
the Fund. As a result, no sensitivity analysis or exposure 
tables have been disclosed for foreign currency or interest 
rate risk. The Fund is not exposed to significant currency 
risk as all the swaps settle in the base currency of the 
Fund. 
 
C) Liquidity risk 
 
The following tables analyse the Fund's non-derivative 
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period at the Statement of financial 
position date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows. Balances due within twelve months equal their 
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not 
significant. All amounts are stated in US Dollar. 
 
As at 30 November  
2019 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 81,444 - 81,444
Accrued expenses - 4,702 4,702
Net assets attributable 
to holders of 
Redeemable Shares 440,348,979 - 440,348,979
Total financial liabilities 440,430,423 4,702 440,435,125
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As at 30 November 
2018 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 1,097,099 - 1,097,099
Accrued expenses - 6,497 6,497
Net assets attributable 
to holders of 
Redeemable Shares 70,966,768 - 70,966,768
Total financial liabilities 72,063,867 6,497 72,070,364
 
The table below analyse the Fund's derivative financial 
instruments in a loss position and is based on the fact that 
swaps are reset on a monthly basis, rather than the 
contractual maturity date of the swap. All amounts are 
stated in US Dollar. 
 
As at 30 November
2019

7 days to 
1 month 

1-3
months

More than 
3 months

Financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit 
or loss* 327,679 - -
 
* Derivatives settled net. 
 
There were no derivative financial instruments in a loss 
position held by the Fund at 30 November 2018. 
 
D) Fair value 
 
The tables below analyse within the fair value hierarchy 
the Fund's financial assets and liabilities (by class) 
measured at fair value. All amounts are stated in US 
Dollar. 
 
As at 30 November  
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 438,882,061 - -
- Derivatives - 108,080 -
Total assets 438,882,061 108,080 -
Liabilities  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Derivatives - 327,679 -
Total liabilities - 327,679 -
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
D) Fair value (continued) 
 
As at 30 November 
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets   
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 69,973,307 - -
- Derivatives - 999,726 -
Total assets 69,973,307 999,726 -
 
The Fund did not hold any Level 3 instruments during the 
financial year (30 November 2018: Nil). There were no 
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the financial 
year. 
 
Investments whose values are based on quoted market 
prices in active markets, and therefore classified within 
Level 1, include active listed equities. The Fund does not 
adjust the quoted price for these instruments. 
 
Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not 
considered to be active but are valued based on quoted 
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing 
sources supported by observable inputs are classified 
within Level 2. 
 
The Level 2 amounts above represent outperformance 
swaps. These are priced using a valuation comprising of 
observable data which tracks the performance of the 
Reference Index against the performance of the Fund's 
underlying equity basket.  
 
The Schedule of investments shows the equities split by 
level, country of origin and industry group. The 
derivatives are outperformance swaps. All equities are 
classified as Level 1 and all outperformance swaps as 
Level 2. 

3. Net gains on financial assets and liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss 

 
 Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Realised gains on sale of 
investments 9,515,591 5,659,468
Realised gains on 
outperformance swaps* 1,278,770 5,137,335
Net currency (losses)/gains (4,661) 1,634
Net change in unrealised 
appreciation/(depreciation) 
on investments 10,527,004 (7,093,470)
Net change in unrealised 
(depreciation)/appreciation 
on outperformance swaps (1,219,325) 1,104,084

20,097,379 4,809,051
 
* Realised gains on outperformance swaps include an amount of USD 25,753 
relating to swap fees (30 November 2018: USD Nil). 
 

4. Operating expenses 
 
 Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Management fees 92,199 153,196
 92,199 153,196
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager.  
 
5. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

As at
30 November

2018
USD

The Northern Trust 
Company* 197 142
 197 142
 
* Cash held is unsegregated. 
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6. Debtors 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

As at
30 November

2018
USD

Sales of securities 
awaiting settlement 75,689 1,097,189
Subscriptions of Shares 
awaiting settlement 1,696,777 -
 1,772,466 1,097,189
 
7. Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

As at
30 November

2018
USD

Management fees 4,702 6,497
Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 81,444 1,097,099
 86,146 1,103,596
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager. 
 
8. Segment reporting 
 
IFRS 8 requires disclosures in respect of the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) and certain 
disclosures in respect of the country of origin of income. 
Management have determined the CODM is the Board of 
Directors. 
 
All revenues are derived from financial assets and are 
attributable to a country based on the domicile of the 
issuer of the instrument. The Schedule of investments 
discloses the investments of the Fund at their fair value by 
their respective country of origin. 
 
There was no dividend income received by the Fund for 
the financial year ended 30 November 2019 (30 
November 2018: Nil). 

9. Share capital 
 
Redeemable shares  
in issue 

Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018

Number of Class A Redeemable Shares 
Issued and Fully Paid 
Balance at beginning  
of financial year 978,569 1,186,061
Issued during financial year 4,427,258 488,500
Redeemed during  
financial year (206,030) (695,992)
Total number of  
Redeemable Shares in issue at 
end of financial year 5,199,797 978,569
 
Redeemable shares  
in issue 

Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018

Number of Class Distributing Redeemable Shares 
Issued and Fully Paid 
Balance at beginning  
of financial year - -
Issued during financial year 50,000 -
Total number of  
Redeemable Shares in issue at 
end of financial year 50,000 -
 
10. Net asset value 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

As at
30 November

2018
USD

As at 
30 November 

2017
USD

Total Net Asset Value 
Class A 
Redeemable Shares 438,230,667 70,966,768 81,252,389
Class Distributing 
Redeemable Shares 2,118,312 - -
Dealing Net Asset Value  
per Redeemable Share 
Class A 
Redeemable Shares 84.2784 72.5210 68.5061
Class Distributing 
Redeemable Shares 42.3662 - -
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11. Collateral 
 
The collateral for Invesco MSCI USA UCITS ETF is 
unilateral. The Fund has entered into a Charge Account 
Control Agreement ("the Agreement") with each Swap 
Counterparty being J.P. Morgan Securities plc and 
Goldman Sachs International. The Agreement was in place 
from 25 August 2017 and from 11 August 2017 
respectively. The collateral model involves the pledge of 
collateral to the Swap Counterparties in the form of 
equities. Equities pledged as collateral are marked with an 
asterisk in the Schedule of investments. 
 
There were no securities pledged by the Fund as at 30 
November 2019 (30 November 2018: none). 
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 Equities: 99.67% (2018: 98.60%)   

 Austria: 0.57% (2018: 2.44%)   

 Building Materials: 0.00% (2018: 2.18%)   

9 Wienerberger AG Class A Com NPV 247 0.00

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 0.26%)   

 Iron/Steel: 0.06% (2018: 0.00%)   

10,592 Voestalpine AG Class A Com NPV 280,874 0.06

 Oil & Gas: 0.51% (2018: 0.00%)   

39,001 OMV AG Class A Com NPV 2,224,950 0.51

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

28 Telekom Austria AG Class A Com NPV 225 0.00

 Total Austria 2,506,296 0.57

    

 Belgium: 2.29% (2018: 8.24%)   

 Banks: 1.02% (2018: 0.00%)   

61,751 KBC Group NV Com NPV 4,503,251 1.02

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

6 Elia System Operator SA/NV Com NPV 496 0.00

 Electronics: 0.07% (2018: 0.07%)   

1,187 Barco NV Com NPV 274,191 0.06

1,595 EVS Broadcast Equipment 35,876 0.01

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.04% (2018: 
0.00%)   

1,157 Ackermans & van Haaren NV Com NPV 174,134 0.04

 
Holding Companies-Diversifed: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.55%)   

1 Sofina SA Com NPV 217 0.00

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 3.83%)   

4 Ageas Com NPV 240 0.00

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.28%)   

6 Groupe Bruxelles Lambert SA Com NPV 609 0.00

 Pharmacueticals: 1.16% (2018: 3.51%)   

62,922 UCB SA Com NPV 5,103,431 1.16

 Total Belgium 10,092,445 2.29

    

 Canada: 0.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Aerospace/Defense: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,602 CAE Inc Com NPV 43,110 0.01

 
Energy-Alternate Sources: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

30 Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp Com 
NPV 419 0.00

 Mining: 0.03% (2018: 0.00%)   

2,204 Fortuna Silver Mines Inc Com NPV 7,251 0.00

  

  

  

  

  

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

6,321 Pan American Silver Corp Com NPV 121,679 0.03

58 Yamana Gold Inc Com NPV 208 0.00

Total Canada 172,667 0.04

    

 Cayman Islands: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Insurance: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   
3,733 Greenlight Capital Re Ltd Class A Com 

USD0.01 38,973 0.01

Total Cayman Islands 38,973 0.01

    

 Denmark: 4.36% (2018: 3.43%)   

 Beverages: 0.00% (2018: 0.38%)   

2 Carlsberg A/S Class B Com DKK20.00 288 0.00

3 Royal Unibrew A/S Com DKK2.00 270 0.00

 Building Materials: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   
2,236 H+H International A/S Class B Com 

DKK10.00 35,637 0.01

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

773 Per Aarsleff Holding A/S Com DKK2.00 24,183 0.00

 Insurance: 0.14% (2018: 0.00%)   

13,304 Topdanmark A/S Com DKK1.00 615,293 0.14

8 Tryg A/S Com DKK5.00 230 0.00

 Internet: 2.65% (2018: 0.00%)   

350,835 Trip.com Group Ltd ADR USD0.01 11,661,755 2.65

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

938 FLSmidth & Co A/S Com DKK20.00 34,481 0.01

 Pharmaceuticals: 1.03% (2018: 0.00%)   

21 H Lundbeck A/S Com DKK5.00 805 0.00

80,357 Novo Nordisk A/S Class B Com DKK0.20 4,520,407 1.03

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.05%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.52% (2018: 
0.02%)   

48,737 GN Store Nord A/S Com DKK4.00 2,297,897 0.52

 Transportation: 0.00% (2018: 2.95%)   
1 AP Moller - Maersk A/S Class A Com 

DKK1000.00 1,299 0.00

13 DSV A/S Com DKK1.00 1,417 0.00

Total Denmark 19,193,962 4.36

    

 Finland: 1.19% (2018: 10.84%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

2,084 Nokian Renkaat Oyj Com NPV 56,434 0.01
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Commercial Services: 0.08% (2018: 
0.00%)   

24,040 Cramo Oyj NPV 354,127 0.08

 Computers: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

7 Tieto Oyj Com NPV 201 0.00

 Electric: 0.02% (2018: 0.00%)   

3,509 Fortum Oyj Com EUR3.40 82,758 0.02

 Food: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

194 Kesko Oyj Class B Com NPV 13,100 0.00

 
Forest Products & Paper: 0.17% (2018: 
6.36%)   

22,481 UPM-Kymmene Oyj Com NPV 751,559 0.17

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.28% (2018: 0.00%)   

38,082 Konecranes Oyj Com EUR0.50 1,213,488 0.28

 Healthcare-Services: 0.00% (2018: 0.16%)   

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 3.54%)   

74 Sampo Oyj Class A Com NPV 2,994 0.00

 Leisure Time: 0.00% (2018: 0.09%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.11% (2018: 
0.07%)   

10,794 Metso Oyj Com NPV 414,171 0.09

2,651 Valmet Oyj Com NPV 59,395 0.02

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 0.05%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.09%)   

287 Uponor Oyj Com NPV 3,687 0.00

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

6 Orion Oyj Class B Com EUR0.65 261 0.00

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

58 Kojamo Oyj Com NPV 958 0.00

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

42 Rovio Entertainment Oyj Com NPV 193 0.00

 
Telecommunications: 0.52% (2018: 
0.48%)   

42,803 Elisa Oyj Com NPV 2,289,409 0.52

 Total Finland 5,242,735 1.19

    

 Germany: 12.53% (2018: 18.23%)   

 Advertising: 0.00% (2018: 0.05%)   

 Aerospace/Defense: 0.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

647 MTU Aero Engines AG Class A Com NPV 175,421 0.04

 Airlines: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

22 Deutsche Lufthansa AG Com NPV 418 0.00

 Apparel: 0.03% (2018: 0.88%)   

491 Adidas AG Class A Com NPV 153,074 0.03

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

 Auto Manufacturers: 2.41% (2018: 0.14%)   
1,817 Bayerische Motoren Werke AG Class A 

Com EUR1.00 146,851 0.03

8 Bayerische Motoren Werke AG Pref 
EUR1.00 494 0.00

28,678 Daimler AG Com NPV 1,618,963 0.37

959 Volkswagen AG Class A Com NPV 183,088 0.04

44,898 Volkswagen AG Pref NPV 8,687,056 1.97

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.02% (2018: 
0.16%)   

780 Rheinmetall AG Class A Com NPV 83,113 0.02

 Building Materials: 1.09% (2018: 0.06%)   

64,789 HeidelbergCement AG Class A Com NPV 4,793,379 1.09

 Chemicals: 1.24% (2018: 0.29%)   

22,118 BASF SE Com NPV 1,663,702 0.38

1,294 Brenntag AG Class A Com NPV 69,070 0.02

1,731 Fuchs Petrolub SE Pref NPV 74,817 0.02

37,004 Symrise AG Class A Com NPV 3,592,086 0.82

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.19%)   

 Computers: 0.28% (2018: 0.00%)   

9,339 Bechtle AG Class A Com NPV 1,229,483 0.28

7 Jenoptik AG Class A Com NPV 204 0.00

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 1.11% (2018: 
0.00%)   

41,966 Beiersdorf AG Class A Com NPV 4,897,861 1.11

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.13% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

17,019 Aareal Bank AG NPV 525,424 0.12

1,681 Wuestenrot & Wuerttembergische AG 
Com NPV 35,846 0.01

 Electric: 0.61% (2018: 0.00%)   

12,551 E.ON SE Com NPV 131,440 0.03

7,915 RWE AG Class A Com NPV 234,846 0.05

71,638 Uniper SE Com NPV 2,314,350 0.53

 
Energy-Alternate Sources: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

17 Nordex SE Com NPV 232 0.00

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.50% (2018: 
3.52%)   

504 Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services 
Worldwide Com NPV 42,968 0.01

17,615 Hochtief AG Class A Com NPV 2,165,586 0.49

 Food: 0.26% (2018: 0.00%)   

72,314 METRO AG Class A Com NPV 1,166,101 0.26

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.17% (2018: 
0.00%)   

6,135 Carl Zeiss Meditec AG Class B Com NPV 750,854 0.17
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 Healthcare-Services: 0.00% (2018: 0.26%)   

 Home Furnishings: 0.03% (2018: 0.00%)   

169 Rational AG Class A Com NPV 129,506 0.03

 Insurance: 1.67% (2018: 0.21%)   

6 Hannover Rueck SE Com NPV 1,115 0.00

25,612 Muenchener Rueckversicherungs-
Gesellschaft AG in Muenchen Com NPV 7,359,290 1.67

 Internet: 0.34% (2018: 0.00%)   

44,711 United Internet AG Com NPV 1,515,924 0.34

 Leisure Time: 0.11% (2018: 0.00%)   

7,948 CTS Eventim AG & Co KGaA Com NPV 485,496 0.11

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.10%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.02% 
(2018: 0.06%)   

760 Siemens AG Com NPV 98,144 0.02

 
Packaging & Containers: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

3 Gerresheimer AG Class A Com NPV 221 0.00

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

3 Bayer AG Com NPV 227 0.00

8 Merck KGaA Com NPV 935 0.00

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 11.30%)   

9 TAG Immobilien AG Class A Com NPV 217 0.00

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

5 Hugo Boss AG Com NPV 236 0.00

 Semiconductors: 0.00% (2018: 0.90%)   

9 Siltronic AG Class A Com NPV 746 0.00

 Software: 0.01% (2018: 0.09%)   

2,713 RIB Software SE Com NPV 71,553 0.01

2 SAP SE Com NPV 272 0.00

6 Software AG Class A Com NPV 203 0.00

 
Telecommunications: 1.42% (2018: 
0.00%)   

371,621 Deutsche Telekom AG Com NPV 6,242,941 1.42

10 Freenet AG NPV 233 0.00

81 Telefonica Deutschland Holding AG Com 
NPV 247 0.00

 Transportation: 1.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

122,298 Deutsche Post AG Com NPV 4,563,181 1.04

 Total Germany 55,207,414 12.53

    

 Israel: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

 Total Israel - -

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 Liechtenstein: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

 Bank: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

Total Liechtenstein - -

    

 Luxembourg: 1.01% (2018: 0.08%)   

 Iron/Steel: 0.96% (2018: 0.00%)   

246,312 ArcelorMittal Com NPV 4,217,150 0.96

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.08%)   

 Media: 0.03% (2018: 0.00%)   

2,600 RTL Group SA Com NPV 124,131 0.03

 Real Estate: 0.02% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,952 Aroundtown SA Com EUR0.01 16,964 0.00

3,395 Grand City Properties SA Com EUR0.10 78,834 0.02

Total Luxembourg 4,437,079 1.01

    

 Netherlands: 8.78% (2018: 6.03%)   

 Auto Manufacturers: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

245 Ferrari NV Com EUR0.01 41,226 0.01

 Banks: 1.03% (2018: 1.51%)   

392,049 ING Groep NV Com EUR0.01 4,514,662 1.03

 Beverages: 0.12% (2018: 0.00%)   

5,136 Heineken NV Com EUR1.60 532,544 0.12

 Biotechnology: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

3 Argenx SE Com NPV 447 0.00

 Chemicals: 2.67% (2018: 0.09%)   

94,609 Azko Nobel NV EUR0.50 9,067,137 2.06

20,922 Koninklijke DSM NV Com EUR1.50 2,682,878 0.61

 
Commercial Services: 1.11% (2018: 
0.07%)   

83,748 Randstad NV Com EUR0.10 4,881,121 1.11

 Electronics: 0.08% (2018: 0.09%)   

7,551 Koninklijke Philips NV Com EUR0.20 350,888 0.08

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

860 Philips Lighting Com EUR0.01 25,669 0.01

 Food: 0.03% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,653
Koninklijke Ahold Delhaize NV Com 
EUR0.01 42,621 0.01

4 Takeaway.com NV Com NPV 360 0.00

1,594 Unilever NV EUR0.16 94,556 0.02

 
Healthcare-Products: 1.57% (2018: 
0.00%)   

158,813 QIAGEN NV Com EUR0.01 - Nasdaq Gs 6,797,196 1.54

1,920 QIAGEN NV Com EUR0.01 - Xetra 82,266 0.02

1,331 Wright Medical Group NV EUR0.03 39,624 0.01
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 Insurance: 0.31% (2018: 0.00%)   

302,584 Aegon NV Com EUR0.12 1,365,210 0.31

6 ASR Nederland NV Com EUR0.16 223 0.00

12 NN Group NV Com NPV 461 0.00

 Media: 0.78% (2018: 4.03%)   

48,085 Wolters Kluwer NV Com EUR0.12 3,454,687 0.78

 
Metal Fabricate/Hardware: 0.00% (2018: 
0.07%)   

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

15 Constellium NV Class A Com EUR0.02 212 0.00

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.52% 
(2018: 0.08%)   

54,570 Aalberts Industries NV Com EUR0.25 2,313,494 0.52

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

2,124 Mylan NV Com EUR0.01 39,889 0.01

 Semiconductors: 0.00% (2018: 0.09%)   

 Software: 0.02% (2018: 0.00%)   

6,795 TomTom NV Com EUR0.20 71,378 0.02

 
Telecommunications: 0.50% (2018: 
0.00%)   

7,668 Altice Europe NV EUR0.01 45,672 0.01

699,503 Koninklijke KPN NV Com EUR0.04 2,156,477 0.49

 Trucking & Leasing: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

663 AerCap Holdings NV Com EUR0.01 40,980 0.01

 Total Netherlands 38,641,878 8.78

    

 Norway: 1.95% (2018: 6.56%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

12 DNB ASA Com NOK10.00 202 0.00

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

2,608 Veidekke NOK0.50 33,954 0.01

 Food: 0.34% (2018: 5.31%)   

3,614 Austevoll Seafood ASA Com NOK0.50 34,611 0.01

63 Leroy Seafood Group ASA Com 
NOK1.00 399 0.00

11,838 Orkla ASA Com NOK1.25 114,735 0.02

28,380 Salmar ASA Com NOK0.25 1,352,808 0.31

 Insurance: 0.01% (2018: 1.20%)   

12 Gjensidige Forsikring ASA Com NOK2.00 226 0.00

4,823 Storebrand ASA Com NOK5.00 34,585 0.01

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.05%)   

 Media: 0.13% (2018: 0.00%)   

20,516 Schibsted ASA Class A Com NOK0.50 562,488 0.13

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 
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% of
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 Oil & Gas: 1.46% (2018: 0.00%)   

69,642 Aker BP ASA Com NOK1.00 1,998,608 0.45

241,146 Equinor ASA Com NOK2.50 4,446,077 1.01

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

11 Telenor ASA Com NOK6.00 201 0.00

Total Norway 8,578,894 1.95

    

 Portugal: 0.65% (2018: 3.74%)   

 Electric: 0.13% (2018: 3.68%)   
138,433 EDP - Energias de Portugal SA Com 

EUR1.00 560,175 0.13

 Food: 0.52% (2018: 0.00%)   
143,080 Jeronimo Martins SGPS SA Com 

EUR1.00 2,286,731 0.52

198 Sonae SGPS SA Com EUR1.00 199 0.00

 
Forest Products & Papers: 0.00% (2018: 
0.06%)   

Total Portugal 2,847,105 0.65

    

 Singapore: 0.00% (2018: 0.13%)   

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 0.13%)   

Total Singapore - -

    

 Spain: 2.26% (2018: 0.58%)   

 Electric: 1.06% (2018: 0.10%)   

84,942 Endesa SA Com EUR1.20 2,311,456 0.53

120,364 Red Electrica Corp SA Com EUR0.50 2,355,662 0.53

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.08% (2018: 
0.26%)   

9,295 ACS Actividades de Construccion y 
Servicios SA Com EUR0.50 362,085 0.08

 Gas: 0.52% (2018: 0.08%)   

88,294 Gas Natural SDG SA Com EUR1.00 2,297,530 0.52

 Oil & Gas: 0.51% (2018: 0.00%)   

142,492 Repsol SA Com EUR1.00 2,245,126 0.51

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.06%)   

 Software: 0.09% (2018: 0.08%)   

4,808 Amadeus IT Group SA Com EUR0.01 383,284 0.09

Total Spain 9,955,143 2.26

    

 Sweden: 6.40% (2018: 3.70%)   

 Agriculture: 0.45% (2018: 3.23%)   
41,201 Swedish Match AB Class A Com 

SEK1.98 1,974,363 0.45
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 Auto Manufacturers: 1.02% (2018: 0.03%)   

290,149 Volvo AB Class B Com SEK1.20 4,487,661 1.02

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.08%)   
94 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB Class 

A Com SEK10.00 806 0.00

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

6 Loomis AB Class B Com SEK5.00 251 0.00

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 0.58% (2018: 
0.00%)   

81,017 Essity AB Class B Com SEK3.35 2,547,611 0.58

 Food: 0.02% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,723 AAK AB Com NPV 31,500 0.01

10,442 Cloetta AB Class B Com SEK5.00 33,403 0.01

 Hand/Machine Tools: 1.52% (2018: 0.00%)   

368,832 Sandvik AB Class A Com SEK1.20 6,710,310 1.52

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.23% (2018: 
0.00%)   

59,550 Getinge AB Class B Com SEK0.50 1,034,270 0.23

 
Holding Companies-Diversified: 0.02% 
(2018: 0.03%)   

9 Industrivarden AB Class A Com SEK2.50 212 0.00

3,769 Industrivarden AB Class C Com SEK2.50 87,451 0.02

 
Investment Companies: 0.99% (2018: 
0.00%)   

663 Investor AB Class A Com SEK6.25 34,576 0.01

81,653 Investor AB Class B Com SEK6.25 4,318,021 0.98

 Home Furnishings: 0.00% (2018: 0.27%)   

 Iron/Steel: 0.00% (2018: 0.03%)   

142 SSAB AB Class A Com SEK8.80 442 0.00

 
Machinery-Construction & Mining: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

36 Epiroc AB Class A Com SEK0.41 420 0.00

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.02%)   

1,443 Trelleborg AB Class B Com SEK25.00 23,811 0.00

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   
2,015 Swedish Orphan Biovitrum AB Class A 

Com SEK0.55 33,649 0.01

 Real Estate: 0.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

6,313 Castellum AB Class A Com SEK0.50 135,201 0.03

2,158 Fabege AB Class A Com SEK30.82 33,749 0.01

17 Fastighets AB Balder Class B Com 
SEK1.00 709 0.00

 Retail: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

3,381 Bilia AB Class A Com SEK2.50 33,944 0.01
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value through profit or loss 
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Telecommunications: 1.51% (2018: 
0.00%)   

736,743 Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson Class B 
Com SEK5.00 6,642,282 1.51

Total Sweden 28,164,642 6.40

    

 Switzerland: 7.44% (2018: 6.33%)   

 Banks: 1.02% (2018: 0.04%)   

371,402 UBS Group AG Com CHF0.10 4,504,320 1.02

 Building Materials: 1.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

88,737 LafargeHolcim Ltd Com CHF2.00 4,578,256 1.04

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 4.19%)   

 
Commercial Services: 0.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

951 Adecco Group AG Com CHF0.10 58,829 0.01

 Computers: 0.28% (2018: 0.02%)   

28,004 Logitech International SA Com CHF0.25 1,224,851 0.28

 
Diversified Financial Services: 1.04% 
(2018: 0.15%)   

2 Cembra Money Bank AG Class A Com 
CHF1.00 208 0.00

5,409 Partners Group Holding AG Class A Com 
CHF0.01 4,563,835 1.04

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.00% (2018: 0.04%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.25% (2018: 
0.00%)   

6,226 Flughafen Zurich AG Com CHF10.00 1,104,588 0.25

 Food: 1.03% (2018: 0.93%)   
2 Chocoladefabriken Lindt & Spruengli AG 

Com CHF10.00 15,260 0.00

43,480 Nestle SA Com CHF0.10 4,521,380 1.03

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.00% (2018: 
0.03%)   

2 Sonova Holding AG Com CHF0.05 457 0.00

1 Tecan Group AG Com CHF0.10 269 0.00

 Insurance: 0.59% (2018: 0.41%)   

2 Baloise Holding AG Com CHF0.10 348 0.00

18,775 Helvetia Holding AG Com CHF0.02 2,564,454 0.58

6 Swiss Re AG Class A Com CHF0.10 650 0.00

92 Zurich Insurance Group AG Class A Com 
CHF0.10 36,115 0.01

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.04%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.07%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 1.95% (2018: 0.00%)   

62,901 Novartis AG Com CHF0.50 5,794,432 1.32

1 Roche Holding AG Class B Com CHF1.00 305 0.00
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8,990 Roche Holding AG Com NPV 2,772,520 0.63

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.41%)   

 Retail: 0.23% (2018: 0.00%)   

10,320 Dufry AG Com CHF5.00 1,007,681 0.23

4 Swatch Group AG Com CHF0.45 213 0.00

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

18 Sunrise Communications Group AG Com 
NPV 1,413 0.00

 Total Switzerland 32,750,384 7.44

    

 United States: 50.19% (2018: 28.23%)   

 Aerospace/Defense: 7.35% (2018: 0.00%)   

8 Astronics Corp Com USD0.01 233 0.00

5 Ducommun Inc Com USD0.01 244 0.00

31,776 HEICO Corp Class A Com USD0.01 3,191,581 0.72

13,880 Honeywell International Inc Com 
USD1.00 2,478,274 0.56

1 Teledyne Technologies Inc Com 
USD0.01 342 0.00

153,588 United Technologies Corp Com USD1.00 22,783,244 5.17

361,920 WESCO Aircraft Holdings Com 
USD0.001 3,966,643 0.90

 Apparel: 0.00% (2018: 0.06%)   

4 Deckers Outdoor Corp Com USD0.01 673 0.00

 Auto Manufacturers: 0.59% (2018: 0.00%)   

31,936 Paccar Inc Com USD1.00 2,598,632 0.59

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
3.33%)   

14 Modine Manufacturing Co Class C Com 
USD0.63 104 0.00

 Banks: 2.71% (2018: 0.15%)   
18 Boston Private Financial Holdings Inc 

Com USD1.00 211 0.00

1,719 Bridgewater Bancshares Inc Com 
USD0.001 21,969 0.00

50,348 CIT Group Inc Com USD0.01 2,291,841 0.52

22,107 Community Trust Bancorp Inc Com 
USD5.00 993,489 0.23

10 CVB Financial Corp Com NPV 214 0.00

868 People's Utah Bancorp Com USD0.01 25,476 0.01

55,751 PNC Financial Services Group Inc Com 
USD5.00 8,541,611 1.94

1,046 RBB Bancorp Com NPV 20,941 0.00

171 SVB Financial Group Com USD0.001 39,626 0.01

 Biotechnology: 0.93% (2018: 0.00%)   

207,442 Aduro Biotech Inc Com USD0.0001 246,856 0.06

16 AnaptysBio Inc Com USD0.001 216 0.00

   

   

   

   

   

   

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
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17 Atara Biotherapeutics Inc Com 
USD0.0001 242 0.00

71 BioCryst Pharmaceuticals Inc Com 
USD0.01 202 0.00

26,349 Charles River Laboratories International 
Inc Com USD0.01 3,827,192 0.87

4 FibroGen Inc Com USD0.01 169 0.00

36 Five Prime Therapeutics Com USD0.001 141 0.00

12 Halozyme Therapeutics Inc Com 
USD0.001 233 0.00

1 Illumina Inc Com USD0.01 321 0.00

15 PTC Therapeutics Inc Com USD0.001 704 0.00

 Building Materials: 0.66% (2018: 0.05%)   

19 Forterra Inc Com USD0.001 211 0.00

62,721 Masco Corp Com USD1.00 2,919,663 0.66

37 PGT Innovations Inc Com USD0.01 532 0.00

3 Simpson Manufacturing Co Inc Com 
USD0.01 244 0.00

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 3.88%)   

19 Element Solutions Inc Com USD0.01 222 0.00

40 Ferro Corp Com USD1.00 577 0.00

16 Kraton Corp Com USD0.01 360 0.00

21 Univar Inc Com USD0.01 492 0.00

 
Commercial Services: 3.50% (2018: 
0.79%)   

278 Bright Horizons Fam Solutions Inc Com 
USD0.001 41,845 0.01

78,681 CAI International Inc Com USD0.0001 1,896,212 0.43

8 CBIZ Inc Com USD0.01 215 0.00

10,831 Everi Holdings Inc Com USD0.001 145,894 0.03

40,753 Forrester Research Inc Com USD0.01 1,627,267 0.37

3 FTI Consulting Inc Com USD0.01 327 0.00

5 Herc Holdings Inc Com USD0.01 234 0.00

14 HMS Holdings Corp Com USD0.01 423 0.00

5 Huron Consulting Group Inc Com 
USD0.01 335 0.00

3 McGrath RentCorp Com NPV 220 0.00

2 Paylocity Holding Corp Com USD0.001 245 0.00

390 PayPal Holdings Inc Com USD0.0001 42,124 0.01

69,123 ServiceSource International Inc Com 
USD0.0001 105,758 0.02

167,417 Square Inc Class AClass A Com 
USD0.000001 11,571,863 2.63

9 TriNet Group Inc Com USD0.000025 493 0.00

13 Vectrus Inc Com USD0.01 662 0.00

 Computers: 0.05% (2018: 0.99%)   

10,975 A10 Networks Inc Com USD0.0001 73,203 0.02

5 Apple Inc Com USD0.00001 1,336 0.00
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

5 ForeScout Technologies Inc Com 
USD0.001 179 0.00

757 Fortinet Inc Com USD0.001 79,568 0.02

2,407 Presidio Inc Com USD0.01 39,740 0.01

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 2.61% (2018: 
0.00%)   

94,293 Procter & Gamble Co Com NPV 11,509,404 2.61

 
Distribution/Wholesale: 1.99% (2018: 
0.00%)   

98,598 Copart Inc Com NPV 8,775,222 1.99

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.88% 
(2018: 2.70%)   

16 Blucora Inc Com USD0.0001 377 0.00

153,149 Brightsphere Investment Group Inc Com 
USD0.001 1,474,825 0.33

27 Enova International Inc Com 
USD0.00001 622 0.00

8 Focus Financial Partners Inc Class A 
Com USD0.01 225 0.00

73,782 HomeStreet Inc Com NPV 2,355,121 0.54

334 INTL. FCStone Inc Com USD0.01 13,360 0.00

151 Mastercard Inc Class A Com USD0.0001 44,127 0.01

 Electric: 3.99% (2018: 0.11%)   

5 Avista Corp Com NPV 236 0.00

53,628 Entergy Corp Com USD5.00 6,241,763 1.42

255,289 Exelon Corp Com NPV 11,334,832 2.57

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
1.43% (2018: 0.00%)   

85,414 Emerson Electric Co Class C Com 
USD0.50 6,308,678 1.43

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 2.85%)   
8 Atkore International Group Inc Class I 

Com USD0.01 334 0.00

42 GoPro Inc Class A Com USD0.0001 170 0.00

8 Sanmina Corp Com USD0.01 254 0.00

16 Stoneridge Inc Com NPV 482 0.00

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.12%)   

 Entertainment: 0.63% (2018: 0.00%)   
9,797 Madison Square Garden Class A Co Com 

USD0.01 2,760,599 0.63

10 Penn National Gaming Inc Com STK 
USD0.01 230 0.00

8 SeaWorld Entertainment Inc Com 
USD0.01 234 0.00

 
Environmental Control: 0.01% (2018: 
0.21%)   

487 Clean Harbors Inc Com USD0.01 40,251 0.01

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 Food: 0.09% (2018: 0.00%)   

6 Chefs' Warehouse Inc Com USD0.01 213 0.00

10,531 Seneca Foods Class A Com STK 
USD0.25 411,762 0.09

8 Simply Good Foods Co Com USD0.01 221 0.00

 
Healthcare-Products: 2.35% (2018: 
2.94%)   

157,375 AngioDynamics Inc Com USD0.01 2,418,854 0.55

11 Boston Scientific Corp Com USD0.01 476 0.00

7 Cardiovascular Systems Inc Com NPV 319 0.00

2 CONMED Corp Com USD0.01 227 0.00

170 Edwards Lifesciences Corp Com 
USD1.00 41,640 0.01

3 Haemonetics Corp Com USD0.01 362 0.00

4 Inspire Medical Systems Inc Com 
USD0.001 284 0.00

23 Intersect ENT Inc Com USD0.001 499 0.00

8 Lantheus Holdings Inc Com USD0.01 167 0.00

16,877 Masimo Corp Com USD0.001 2,617,116 0.60

1,483 Meridian Bioscience Inc Com NPV 13,569 0.00

4 Orthofix Medical Inc Com USD0.10 182 0.00

10,000 Seaspine Holdings Corp Com USD0.01 132,300 0.03

1,646 Sientra Inc Com USD0.01 14,090 0.00

6 STAAR Surgical Co Class C Com 
USD0.01 221 0.00

14,471 Teleflex Inc Com USD1.00 5,113,183 1.16

 Healthcare-Services: 1.41% (2018: 2.27%)   

2 IQVIA Holdings Inc Com USD0.01 292 0.00

2 Laboratory Corp of America Holdings 
Com USD0.10 345 0.00

1,550 MEDNAX Inc Com USD0.01 40,486 0.01

8 Natera Inc Com USD0.0001 292 0.00

23 R1 RCM Com USD0.01 296 0.00

17 RadNet Inc Com USD0.0001 326 0.00

14 Select Medical Holdings Corp Com 
USD0.001 310 0.00

19,134 WellCare Health Plans Inc Com USD0.01 6,162,487 1.40

 Home Builders: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

12 KB Home Com USD1.00 415 0.00

5 M/I Homes Inc Com USD0.01 221 0.00

8 Meritage Homes Corp Com USD0.01 532 0.00

 Insurance: 0.65% (2018: 0.13%)   
59,893 Fidelity National Financial Inc Com 

USD0.0001 2,852,704 0.65

8 NMI Holdings Inc Class A Com USD0.01 269 0.00
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

 Internet: 3.25% (2018: 0.33%)   

32 Alphabet Inc Class A Com USD0.001 41,731 0.01

62 Amazon.com Inc Com USD0.01 111,650 0.03

14 ANGI Homeservices Inc Com USD0.001 108 0.00

63 Bandwidth Inc Class A Com USD0.001 3,524 0.00

16 Boingo Wireless Inc Com NPV 184 0.00

3 Eplus Inc Com USD0.01 251 0.00

57,260 Facebook Inc Class A Com 
USD0.000006 11,545,906 2.62

151,981 FireEye Inc Com USD0.0001 2,547,202 0.58

12,803 Groupon Inc Com USD0.0001 37,129 0.01

8 HealthStream Inc Com NPV 233 0.00

3 IAC/InterActiveCorp Com USD0.001 668 0.00

2 Okta Inc Class A Com USD0.001 260 0.00

1 Palo Alto Networks Inc Com USD0.0001 227 0.00

39 Truecar Inc Com USD0.0001 205 0.00

7 Twitter Inc Com USD0.000005 216 0.00

 Leisure Time: 0.13% (2018: 0.10%)   
32,929 Lindblad Expeditions Holdings Inc Com 

USD0.0001 510,399 0.12

6 Planet Fitness Inc Com USD0.0001 444 0.00

4,040 Vista Outdoor Inc Com USD0.01 33,451 0.01

 Lodging: 0.14% (2018: 0.00%)   
13,655 Monarch Casino & Resort Inc Com 

USD0.01 622,668 0.14

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.28%)   

25 Manitowoc Co Inc Com USD0.01 400 0.00

1 Zebra Technologies Corp Class A Com 
USD0.01 251 0.00

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 0.49%)   

 
Metal Fabricate/Hardware: 0.28% (2018: 
0.00%)   

32,248 AZZ Inc Com USD1.00 1,227,681 0.28

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 1.21% 
(2018: 0.76%)   

19 Harsco Corp Com USD1.25 423 0.00

32,654 Lydall Inc Com USD0.10 608,017 0.14

23,713 Parker-Hannifin Corp Com USD0.50 4,713,907 1.07

7 TriMas Corp Com USD0.01 217 0.00

 Oil & Gas: 2.31% (2018: 0.00%)   

473,386 Callon Petroleum Co Com USD0.01 1,727,859 0.39

329 Helmerich & Payne Inc Com USD0.10 13,005 0.00

2 Murphy USA Inc Com USD0.01 235 0.00

9 Par Pacific Holdings Inc Com USD0.01 224 0.00

5 Penn Virginia Corp Com USD0.01 121 0.00

55,102 Phillips 66 Com NPV 6,321,301 1.44

16,537 Pioneer Natural Resources Co Class C 
Com USD0.01 2,114,090 0.48

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.20% (2018: 0.51%)   

7 Apergy Corp Com USD0.01 179 0.00

230,239 Forum Energy Technologies Inc Class I 
Com USD0.01 301,613 0.07

10 Matrix Service Co Class C Com USD0.01 209 0.00

41 MRC Global Inc Com USD0.01 547 0.00

13,885 SEACOR Holdings Inc Com USD0.01 587,891 0.13

8 Thermon Group Holdings Com USD0.001 210 0.00

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.77% (2018: 0.13%)   
22,789 Amneal Pharmaceuticals Inc Class A 

USD0.01 85,687 0.02

42 Antares Pharma Inc Com USD0.01 199 0.00

629,413 Diplomat Pharmacy Inc Com NPV 3,241,477 0.74

9,360 Durect Corp Com USD0.0001 19,937 0.01

6 Merck & Co Inc Com USD0.50 523 0.00

10 Myokardia Inc Com USD0.0001 651 0.00

13 Recro Pharma Inc Com USD0.01 215 0.00

3 USANA Health Sciences Inc Com 
USD0.001 221 0.00

12 Vanda Pharmaceuticals Inc Com 
USD0.001 201 0.00

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

17 Marcus & Millichap Inc Com USD0.0001 625 0.00

 Retail: 4.12% (2018: 0.89%)   
26,689 Advance Auto Parts Inc Com 

USD0.0001 4,192,308 0.95

3 America's Car-Mart Inc Com USD0.01 328 0.00

25,228 Asbury Automotive Group Inc Com 
USD0.01 2,796,272 0.64

49 AutoZone Inc Com USD0.01 57,718 0.01

95,427 BJ's Wholesale Club Holdings Inc Com 
USD0.01 2,261,620 0.51

55,086 BMC Stock Holdings Inc Com USD0.01 1,631,096 0.37

35,275 Carvana Co Class C Com USD0.001 3,362,413 0.76

1 Chipotle Mexican Grill Inc Com USD0.01 814 0.00

10 Denny's Corp Com USD0.01 195 0.00

6 Dollar Tree Inc Com USD0.01 549 0.00

13 Foundation Building Materials Inc Com 
USD0.001 266 0.00

48 GMS Inc Com USD0.01 1,486 0.00

11 MarineMax Inc Com USD0.001 182 0.00

11 Regis Corp Com USD0.05 177 0.00

5 Rush Enterprises Class A Com USD0.01 229 0.00

9 Shake Shack Inc Class A Com USD0.01 558 0.00

30,965 Target Corp Com USD0.08 3,870,935 0.88

 Savings & Loans: 0.53% (2018: 0.00%)   

115,678 Meridian Bancorp Inc Com NPV 2,328,598 0.53

 Semiconductors: 1.85% (2018: 0.00%)   

26 Amkor Technology Inc Com USD0.001 314 0.00
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

140,467 Applied Materials Inc Com USD0.01 8,133,039 1.85

4 Cirrus Logic Inc Com USD0.001 287 0.00

12 FormFactor Inc Com USD0.001 278 0.00

40 Rambus Inc Com USD0.001 522 0.00

 Software: 0.61% (2018: 4.03%)   

5 Adobe Inc Com USD0.0001 1,548 0.00

2 Autodesk Inc Com USD0.01 362 0.00

4 Black Knight Inc Com USD0.0001 252 0.00

10 Bottomline Technologies DE Inc Com 
USD0.001 495 0.00

4 
Cornerstone OnDemand Inc Com 
USD0.0001 247 0.00

4 Five9 Inc Com USD0.001 273 0.00

9 LivePerson Inc Com USD0.001 357 0.00

42 MobileIron Inc Com USD0.0001 203 0.00

33,726 Pegasystem Inc Com USD0.01 2,617,812 0.60

4 QAD Inc Class A Com NPV 204 0.00

18 Rosetta Stone Inc Com USD0.00005 280 0.00

2 Synopsys Inc Com USD0.01 282 0.00

2 Twilio Inc Class A Com USD0.001 207 0.00

276 Veeva Systems Inc Class A Com 
USD0.00001 41,174 0.01

17 Workiva Inc Com USD0.001 737 0.00

 
Telecommunications: 2.95% (2018: 
0.00%)   

15 CalAmp Corp Com USD0.01 157 0.00

1,148 Cisco Systems Inc Com USD0.001 52,016 0.01

6 EchoStar Corp Class A Com USD0.001 252 0.00

200,355 NeoPhotonics Corp Com USD0.0025 1,642,911 0.37

43 Ribbon Communications Inc Com 
USD0.001 126 0.00

33 Viavi Solutions Inc Com USD0.001 496 0.00

22 Vonage Holdings Corp Com USD0.001 174 0.00

330,685 
Zayo Group Holdings Inc Com 
USD0.001 11,322,654 2.57

 Transportation: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   
2,710 Covenant Transportation Group Inc 

Class A Com USD0.01 36,395 0.01

 Total United States 221,052,444 50.19

 Total equities 438,882,061 99.67

 
Invesco MSCI USA UCITS ETF 

Outperformance swaps**: -0.05% (30 Nov 2018: 1.41%) 

Counterparty CCY Maturity date 

Level 2
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

Goldman Sachs 
International USD 24/02/2022 15,230 0.00

J.P. Morgan Securities 
plc USD 30/11/2020 88,058 0.02

Fair value outperformance swaps gains 103,288 0.02

     

Morgan Stanley & Co. 
International plc USD 10/12/2021 (327,679) (0.07)

Fair value outperformance swaps loss (327,679) (0.07)

     

Fair value outperformance swaps (224,391) (0.05)

 
Invesco MSCI USA Dist UCITS ETF 

Outperformance swaps***: 0.00% (30 Nov 2018: 0.00%) 

Counterparty CCY Maturity date 

Level 2
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

Goldman Sachs 
International USD 24/02/2022 2,556 0.00

J.P. Morgan Securities 
plc USD 10/12/2021 2,236 0.00

Fair value outperformance swaps gains 4,792 0.00

     

Fair value outperformance swaps 4,792 0.00

 

 
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

Total value of investments 438,662,462 99.62

   

Cash and cash equivalents* 197 0.00

   

Other net liabilities 1,686,320 0.38

   

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
participating shares 440,348,979 100.00

   

* All cash holdings are held with The Northern Trust Company. 

** These outperformance swaps track the MSCI USA TR Net Index. 

*** These outperformance swaps track the MSCI USA Dist TR Net Index. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap gains 369,825,533. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap losses 68,897,448. 
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% of
total 

assets

Unaudited Analysis of Total Assets  
Transferable securities and money market instruments admitted to 
official stock exchange listing. 99.57

Transferable securities and money market instruments traded on a 
regulated market. 0.00

Financial derivative instruments. 0.03

Other assets. 0.40

 100.00
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Statement of comprehensive income 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Income  
Net gains on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss 3 9,148,671 7,923,492
Total investment income 9,148,671 7,923,492
Operating expenses 4 (771,248) (1,275,710)
Net income 8,377,423 6,647,782
Profit for the financial year 8,377,423 6,647,782
Increase in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Shares 8,377,423 6,647,782
 
There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the increase in Net Assets Attributable 
to Holders of Redeemable Shares of the Company. In arriving at the results of the financial year, all amounts above 
relate to continuing operations. 
 
Statement of financial position 
 
As at 30 November 2019 Notes As at 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

As at
30 November 

2018
USD

Current Assets  
Assets at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) 83,093,628 204,847,290
Assets at amortised cost  
Cash and cash equivalents 5 91 188
Debtors 6 2,508,006 1,792,809
Total Current Assets 85,601,725 206,640,287
Current Liabilities  
Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) (415,670) (297,160)
Other financial liabilities  
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 7 (2,517,169) (1,832,642)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Shares) (2,932,839) (2,129,802)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 82,668,886 204,510,485
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 
at the beginning of the financial year  204,510,485 304,239,690
Increase in Net Assets Attributable to 
Holders of Redeemable Shares from operations 8,377,423 6,647,782
Amounts received on issue of Redeemable Shares 20,570,428 87,263,423
Amounts paid on redemption of Redeemable Shares (150,789,450) (193,640,410)
Decrease in Net Assets resulting from Share transactions (130,219,022) (106,376,987)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 
at the end of the financial year 10 82,668,886 204,510,485
 
Statement of cash flows 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Cash flows from operating activities  
Proceeds from sale of investments 3,665,797,396 5,609,835,695
Purchase of investments (3,534,777,542) (5,502,162,939)
Management fees paid (801,748) (1,298,093)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 130,218,106 106,374,663
Cash flows from financing activities  
Proceeds from issue of Redeemable Shares 20,570,428 87,263,423
Payments of redemption of Redeemable Shares (150,789,450) (193,640,410)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (130,219,022) (106,376,987)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (916) (2,324)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 188 157
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents 819 2,355
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5 91 188
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements 2019 
 
 

 
146   Invesco Russell 2000 UCITS ETF 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 
 
General information 
Investment objective and policy 
The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve the 
Target Performance (which is the net total return 
performance of the Reference Index (being the Russell 
2000 TR Index) (less fees, expenses and transaction 
costs)). The Fund does not intend to make dividend 
payments. 
 
The Reference Index is a subset of the Russell 3000®, 
representing approximately 10% of the market 
capitalisation of that index. The Reference Index is 
comprised of approximately the 2000 companies with the 
lowest market capitalisation of the Russell 3000 and 
therefore provides a representation of the performance of 
the US small cap sector. 
 
The Fund shall not invest more than 10% of its net assets 
in other UCITS or other open or closed ended CIS. 
 
The functional currency of the Fund is US Dollar and the 
Fund is valued in US Dollar. 
 
1. Significant accounting policies 
 
See pages 35 to 44 for significant accounting policies. 
 
2. Financial risk management 
 
See pages 44 to 50 for general notes. The risk 
management technique applying to this Fund is the 
Commitment Approach. A sensitivity analysis is presented 
below to reflect the Commitment Approach applied. 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis 
 
The sensitivity analysis for the Fund assumes a change in 
the market price of the investments while holding all other 
variables constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur and 
changes in some of the variables may be correlated. 

In addition, as the sensitivity analysis uses historical data 
as a basis for determining future events, it does not 
encompass all possible scenarios, particularly those that 
are of an extreme nature. The reasonably possible 
decrease in the Reference Index is based on the 
movement over the financial year ended 30 November 
2019. These movements may be different from the long 
term volatility of the index. 
 
As detailed in the tables below, the decrease in the 
Reference Index (the Russell 2000 TR Index) at 30 
November 2019 and 30 November 2018, with all other 
variables held constant, would have resulted in an 
estimated decrease in the net assets attributable to 
holders of redeemable participating shares as follows, 
increase in Reference Index by 1% will have equal and 
opposite effect:  
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November 
2019 

Reference 
Index 

close at 
30 November 

2019 

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary 
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of 

the Reference 
Index
USD

10,080.868854 8,201.49 8,119.48 (826,781.45)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2019. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2019, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November  
2018 

Reference 
Index 

close at 
30 November 

2018 

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of 

the Reference 
Index
USD

26,814.701920 7,628.29 7,552.00 (2,045,502.42)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2018. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2018, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis (continued) 
 
Based on historic movements and volatilities in these 
market variables, and management’s knowledge and 
experience of the financial markets, it was determined 
that the movements listed above are reasonably possible 
over the financial year. 
 
B) Foreign currency risk/interest rate risk 
 
Foreign currency and interest rate exposure is minimal 
due to the nature and strategy of the investments held by 
the Fund. As a result, no sensitivity analysis or exposure 
tables have been disclosed for foreign currency or interest 
rate risk. The Fund is not exposed to significant currency 
risk as all the swaps settle in the base currency of the 
Fund. 
 
C) Liquidity risk 
 
The following tables analyse the Fund's non-derivative 
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period at the Statement of financial 
position date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows. Balances due within twelve months equal their 
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not 
significant. All amounts are stated in US Dollar. 
 
As at 30 November  
2019 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 2,507,913 - 2,507,913
Accrued expenses - 9,256 9,256
Net assets attributable 
to holders of  
Redeemable Shares 82,668,886 - 82,668,886
Total financial liabilities 85,176,799 9,256 85,186,055
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As at 30 November 
2018 

Less than 
7 days

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities
awaiting settlement 1,792,886 - 1,792,886
Accrued expenses - 39,756 39,756
Net assets attributable 
to holders of 
Redeemable Shares 204,510,485 - 204,510,485
Total financial liabilities 206,303,371 39,756 206,343,127
 
The tables below analyse the Fund's derivative financial 
instruments in a loss position and is based on the fact that 
swaps are reset on a monthly basis, rather than the 
contractual maturity date of the swap. All amounts are 
stated in US Dollar. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019

7 days to 
1 month

1-3 
months 

More than 
3 months

Financial liabilities at 
fair value through 
profit or loss* 415,670 - -
 
As at 30 November
2018

7 days to 
1 month

1-3 
months 

More than 
3 months

Financial liabilities at 
fair value through 
profit or loss* 297,160 - -
 
* Derivatives settled net. 
 
D) Fair value 
 
The tables below analyse and overleaf within the fair value 
hierarchy the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities (by 
class) measured at fair value. All amounts are stated in US 
Dollar. 
 
As at 30 November  
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 83,056,670 - -
- Derivatives - 36,958 -
Total assets 83,056,670 36,958 -
Liabilities   
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Derivatives - 415,670 -
Total liabilities - 415,670 -
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
D) Fair value (continued) 
 
As at 30 November 
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 203,793,973 - -
- Derivatives - 1,053,317 -
Total assets 203,793,973 1,053,317 -
Liabilities   
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
- Derivatives - 297,160 -
Total liabilities - 297,160 -

 
The Fund did not hold any Level 3 instruments during the 
financial year (30 November 2018: Nil). There were no 
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the financial 
year. 
 
Investments whose values are based on quoted market 
prices in active markets, and therefore classified within 
Level 1, include active listed equities. The Fund does not 
adjust the quoted price for these instruments. 
 
Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not 
considered to be active but are valued based on quoted 
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing 
sources supported by observable inputs are classified 
within Level 2. 
 
The Level 2 amounts above represent outperformance 
swaps. These are priced using a valuation comprising of 
observable data which tracks the performance of the 
Reference Index against the performance of the Fund's 
underlying equity basket. 
 
The Schedule of investments shows the equities split by 
level, country of origin and industry group. The derivatives 
are outperformance swaps. All equities are classified as 
Level 1 and all outperformance swaps as Level 2. 

3. Net gains on financial assets and liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss 

 
 Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Realised gains on sale of 
investments 9,751,429 8,700,384
Realised (losses)/gains on 
outperformance swaps (7,473,796) 8,397,689
Net currency gains 819 2,355
Net change in unrealised 
appreciation/(depreciation) 
on investments 8,005,088 (9,953,721)
Net change in unrealised 
(depreciation)/appreciation 
on outperformance swaps (1,134,869) 776,785

 9,148,671 7,923,492

 
4. Operating expenses 
 

 Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Management fees 771,248 1,275,710
 771,248 1,275,710
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager.  
 
5. Cash and cash equivalents 
 

 As at 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

As at
30 November 

2018
USD

The Northern Trust 
Company* 91 188
 91 188
 
* Cash held is unsegregated. 
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6. Debtors 
 

 As at 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

As at
30 November 

2018
USD

Sale of securities 
awaiting settlement 2,508,006 1,792,809
 2,508,006 1,792,809
 
7. Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

As at
30 November 

2018
USD

Management fees 9,256 39,756
Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 2,507,913 1,792,886
 2,517,169 1,832,642
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager. 
 
8. Segment reporting 
 
IFRS 8 requires disclosures in respect of the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) and certain 
disclosures in respect of the country of origin of income. 
Management have determined the CODM is the Board of 
Directors. 
 
All revenues are derived from financial assets and are 
attributable to a country based on the domicile of the 
issuer of the instrument. The Schedule of investments 
discloses the investments of the Fund at their fair value by 
their respective country of origin. 
 
There was no dividend income received by the Fund for 
the financial year ended 30 November 2019 (30 
November 2018: Nil). 

9. Share capital 
 
Redeemable shares  
in issue 

Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018

Number of Redeemable Shares  
Issued and Fully Paid 
Balance at beginning  
of financial year 2,802,961 4,174,992
Issued during financial year 311,411 1,154,602
Redeemed during  
financial year (2,055,804) (2,526,633)
Total number of  
Redeemable Shares in issue at 
end of financial year 1,058,568 2,802,961
 
10. Net asset value 
 
 As at

30 November 
2019
USD

As at 
30 November 

2018 
USD 

As at
30 November 

2017
USD

Total Net Asset Value  
Class A 
Redeemable Shares 82,668,886 204,510,485 304,239,690
Dealing Net Asset Value  
per Redeemable Share 

Class A  
Redeemable Shares 78.0950 72.9623 72.8719
 
11. Collateral 
 
The collateral for Invesco Russell 2000 UCITS ETF is 
unilateral. The Fund has entered into a Charge Account 
Control Agreement ("the Agreement") with each Swap 
Counterparty being J.P. Morgan Securities plc and 
Goldman Sachs International. The Agreement was in place 
from 25 August 2017 and from 11 August 2017 
respectively. The collateral model involves the pledge of 
collateral to the Swap Counterparties in the form of 
equities. Equities pledged as collateral are marked with an 
asterisk in the Schedule of investments. 
 
There were no securities pledged by the Fund as at 30 
November 2019 (30 November 2018: none). 
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 Equities: 100.47% (2018: 99.65%)   

 Austria: 1.48% (2018: 0.01%)   

 Building Materials: 1.48% (2018: 0.00%)   

44,584 Wienerberger AG Class A Com NPV 1,224,042 1.48

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 Total Austria 1,224,042 1.48

    

 Belgium: 0.00% (2018: 0.47%)   

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

2 Barco NV Com NPV 462 0.00

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

2 Ackermans & van Haaren NV Com NPV 301 0.00

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

3 Groupe Bruxelles Lambert SA Com NPV 305 0.00

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 0.47%)   

 Total Belgium 1,068 -

    

 Canada: 0.43% (2018: 2.89%)   

 
Energy-Alternate Sources: 0.43% (2018: 
0.00%)   

21,566 Canadian Solar Inc Com NPV 352,604 0.43

 Entertainment: 0.00% (2018: 0.52%)   

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 0.56%)   

 Pipelines: 0.00% (2018: 1.01%)   

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.80%)   

 Total Canada 352,604 0.43

    

 Denmark: 1.11% (2018: 2.04%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.15%)   

 Beverages: 0.34% (2018: 0.39%)   

3,140 Royal Unibrew A/S Com DKK2.00 282,843 0.34

 Building Materials: 0.00% (2018: 1.06%)   

 Electric: 0.32% (2018: 0.00%)   

2,886 Orsted A/S Com DKK10.00 266,181 0.32

 
Energy-Alternate Sources: 0.00% (2018: 
0.10%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.11% (2018: 
0.14%)   

2,854 Per Aarsleff Holding A/S Com DKK2.00 89,288 0.11

 Home Furnishings: 0.00% (2018: 0.12%)   

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

8 Tryg A/S Com DKK5.00 230 0.00

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.26% (2018: 
0.00%)   

5,760 FLSmidth & Co A/S Com DKK20.00 211,737 0.26

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

12 H Lundbeck A/S Com DKK5.00 460 0.00

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
0.08%)   

5 GN Store Nord A/S Com DKK4.00 236 0.00

 Transportation: 0.08% (2018: 0.00%)   

624 DSV Panalpina A/S Com DKK1.00 67,995 0.08

Total Denmark 918,970 1.11

    

 Finland: 2.99% (2018: 4.42%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.27% (2018: 
0.00%)   

8,155 Nokian Renkaat Oyj Com NPV 220,836 0.27

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

14 Cramo Oyj NPV 206 0.00

 Computers: 0.00% (2018: 0.13%)   

7 Tieto Oyj Com NPV 201 0.00

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 0.12%)   

 Food: 0.06% (2018: 0.34%)   

749 Kesko Oyj Class B Com NPV 50,575 0.06

 
Forest Products & Paper: 0.32% (2018: 
0.33%)   

7,837 UPM-Kymmene Oyj Com NPV 261,997 0.32

 Insurance: 0.06% (2018: 1.81%)   

1,239 Sampo Oyj Class A Com NPV 50,137 0.06

 
Machinery-Diversified: 1.53% (2018: 
0.36%)   

56,344 Valmet Oyj Com NPV 1,262,378 1.53

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.36% (2018: 0.23%)   

6,934 Orion Oyj Class B Com EUR0.65 301,994 0.36

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

19 Kojamo Oyj Com NPV 314 0.00

 Software: 0.02% (2018: 0.00%)   

3,097 Rovio Entertainment Oyj Com NPV 14,246 0.02

 
Telecommunications: 0.37% (2018: 
1.10%)   

5,776 Elisa Oyj Com NPV 308,942 0.37

Total Finland 2,471,826 2.99

    

 Germany: 16.28% (2018: 8.87%)   

 Airlines: 0.00% (2018: 0.12%)   

 Apparel: 0.00% (2018: 0.74%)   

 Auto Manufacturers: 1.51% (2018: 0.24%)   

6,457 Volkswagen AG Pref NPV 1,249,328 1.51

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
0.46%)   
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.10%)   

 Biotechnology: 0.00% (2018: 0.13%)   

 Building Materials: 0.52% (2018: 0.00%)   

5,776 HeidelbergCement AG Class A Com NPV 427,334 0.52

 Chemicals: 0.22% (2018: 0.31%)   

3,384 Brenntag AG Class A Com NPV 180,627 0.22

 Computers: 0.00% (2018: 0.33%)   

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

4 Beiersdorf AG Class A Com NPV 467 0.00

 Electric: 3.51% (2018: 0.09%)   

277,512 E.ON SE Com NPV 2,906,243 3.51

15 RWE AG Class A Com NPV 445 0.00

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 0.09%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

2 Hochtief AG Class A Com NPV 246 0.00

 
Healthcare-Products: 1.46% (2018: 
0.00%)   

9,858 Carl Zeiss Meditec AG Class B Com NPV 1,206,507 1.46

 Healthcare-Services: 0.07% (2018: 2.07%)   

1,100 Fresenius SE & Co KGaA Com NPV 60,206 0.07

 
Household Products/Wares: 0.00% (2018: 
0.01%)   

 Insurance: 2.26% (2018: 1.32%)   

102 Allianz SE Com NPV 24,444 0.03

2 Hannover Rueck SE Com NPV 372 0.00

6,408 Muenchener Rueckversicherungs-
Gesellschaft AG in Muenchen Com NPV 1,841,259 2.23

 Internet: 0.00% (2018: 0.86%)   

 Leisure Time: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.04%)   

2 Siemens AG Com NPV 258 0.00

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 0.06%)   

 Real Estate: 3.55% (2018: 0.71%)   

121,800 TAG Immobilien AG Class A Com NPV 2,933,040 3.55

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.49%)   

3 Fielmann AG Class A Com NPV 234 0.00

 Semiconductors: 0.00% (2018: 0.08%)   

 Software: 0.30% (2018: 0.25%)   

8 RIB Software SE Com NPV 211 0.00

1,850 SAP SE Com NPV 251,876 0.30

 
Telecommunications: 2.88% (2018: 
0.14%)   

141,588 Deutsche Telekom AG Com NPV 2,378,567 2.88

 Transportation: 0.00% (2018: 0.22%)   

7 Deutsche Post AG Com NPV 261 0.00

 Total Germany 13,461,925 16.28

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

 Ireland: 0.00% (2018: 0.31%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 0.31%)   

Total Ireland - -

    

 Israel: 0.00% (2018: 0.99%)   

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 0.26%)   

 Home Furnishings: 0.00% (2018: 0.28%)   

 Internet: 0.00% (2018: 0.45%)   

2 Wix.com Ltd Com ILS0.01 242 0.00

Total Israel 242 -

    

 Luxembourg: 0.00% (2018: 0.09%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.09%)   

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

9 Grand City Properties SA Com EUR0.10 209 0.00

Total Luxembourg 209 -

    

 Netherlands: 1.71% (2018: 11.18%)   

 Auto Manufacturers: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

2 Ferrari NV Com EUR0.01 337 0.00

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

60 ING Groep NV Com EUR0.01 691 0.00

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 5.80%)   

8 Akzo Nobel NV Com EUR0.50 767 0.00

2 Koninklijke DSM NV Com EUR1.50 256 0.00

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.15%)   

 Food: 0.00% (2018: 0.14%)   
6 Koninklijke Ahold Delhaize NV Com 

EUR0.01 155 0.00

4 Takeaway.com NV Com EUR0.04 360 0.00

2 Unilever NV Com EUR0.16 119 0.00

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.00% (2018: 
0.47%)   

 Insurance: 0.12% (2018: 0.00%)   

22,073 Aegon NV Com EUR0.12 99,590 0.12

6 ASR Nederland NV Com EUR0.16 223 0.00

6 NN Group NV Com NPV 231 0.00

 Internet: 1.22% (2018: 0.00%)   

23,951 Yandex NV Class A Com EUR0.01 1,005,223 1.22

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 2.57%)   

6 Wolters Kluwer NV Com EUR0.12 431 0.00

 
Metal Fabricate/Hardware: 0.00% (2018: 
0.09%)   

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

15 Constellium NV Class A Com EUR0.02 212 0.00
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

6 Aalberts Industries NV Com EUR0.25 254 0.00

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.00% (2018: 0.31%)   

 Semiconductors: 0.00% (2018: 1.65%)   

 Software: 0.34% (2018: 0.00%)   

26,427 TomTom NV Com EUR0.20 277,602 0.34

 
Telecommunications: 0.03% (2018: 
0.00%)   

3,997 Altice Europe NV EUR0.01 23,807 0.03

193 Koninklijke KPN NV Com EUR0.04 595 0.00

 Trucking & Leasing: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

4 AerCap Holdings NV Com EUR0.01 247 0.00

 Total Netherlands 1,411,100 1.71

    

 Norway: 3.15% (2018: 6.26%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.10%)   

12 DNB ASA Com NOK10.00 202 0.00

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.05%)   

 Food: 3.15% (2018: 3.62%)   
63 Leroy Seafood Group ASA Com 

NOK1.00 399 0.00

268,140 Orkla ASA Com NOK1.25 2,598,829 3.15

5 Salmar ASA Com NOK0.25 238 0.00

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.23%)   

12 Gjensidige Forsikring ASA Com NOK2.00 226 0.00

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 0.30%)   

7 Schibsted ASA Class A Com NOK0.50 192 0.00

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.76%)   

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.00% (2018: 0.09%)   

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 1.05%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
0.06%)   

 Total Norway 2,600,086 3.15

    

 Portugal: 1.67% (2018: 0.25%)   

 Electric: 1.67% (2018: 0.12%)   
340,657 EDP - Energias de Portugal SA Com 

EUR1.00 1,378,483 1.67

 
Forest Products & Paper: 0.00% (2018: 
0.13%)   

 Total Portugal 1,378,483 1.67

    

 Singapore: 0.00% (2018: 0.52%)   

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 0.52%)   

 Total Singapore - -

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 Sweden: 8.64% (2018: 7.20%)   

 Agriculture: 0.00% (2018: 0.09%)   

 Auto Manufacturers: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

13 Volvo AB Class B Com SEK1.20 201 0.00

 Banks: 0.29% (2018: 0.02%)   
22 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB Class 

A Com SEK10.00 189 0.00

18,587 Swedbank AB Class A Com SEK22.00 242,140 0.29

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 0.00% (2018: 
0.22%)   

 
Distribution/Wholesale: 0.00% (2018: 
0.13%)   

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.18%)   

 Entertainment: 0.00% (2018: 0.22%)   

 Food: 2.43% (2018: 0.00%)   

109,903 AAK AB Com NPV 2,009,269 2.43

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

26 Sandvik AB Class A Com SEK1.20 473 0.00

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.00% (2018: 
0.21%)   

 
Investment Companies: 2.60% (2018: 
0.00%)   

40,569 Investor AB Class B Com SEK6.25 2,145,393 2.60

 Iron/Steel: 0.00% (2018: 0.26%)   

 Leisure Time: 0.00% (2018: 0.08%)   

 Lodging: 0.00% (2018: 0.04%)   

 
Machinery-Construction & Mining: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.51%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.07%)   

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 4.26%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 0.90%)   

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

10 Castellum AB Class A Com SEK0.50 214 0.00

15 Fastighets AB Balder Class B Com 
SEK1.00 625 0.00

 
Telecommunications: 3.32% (2018: 
0.00%)   

304,512 Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson Class B 
Com SEK5.00 2,745,401 3.32

Total Sweden 7,143,905 8.64

    

 Switzerland: 11.84% (2018: 4.50%)   

 Banks: 3.21% (2018: 0.80%)   
309 Banque Cantonale Vaudoise Com 

CHF10.00 237,776 0.29

199,062 UBS Group AG Com CHF0.10 2,414,201 2.92

 Building Materials: 0.46% (2018: 0.00%)   

7,406 LafargeHolcim Ltd Com CHF2.00 382,102 0.46
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

 Chemicals: 0.50% (2018: 0.00%)   

13,238 Clariant AG Com CHF3.70 273,675 0.33

105 Gurit Holding AG Class B Com CHF50.00 139,110 0.17

 
Commercial Services: 0.28% (2018: 
0.00%)   

3,787 Adecco Group AG Com CHF0.10 234,265 0.28

 Computers: 0.00% (2018: 0.36%)   

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 0.00% (2018: 
0.13%)   

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.33% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

2,655 Cembra Money Bank AG Class A Com 
CHF1.00 276,565 0.33

 Electric: 0.09% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,033 BKW AG Class A Com NPV 72,667 0.09

 Electronics: 0.11% (2018: 0.00%)   

596 ALSO Holding AG Com CHF1.00 94,468 0.11

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.34% (2018: 
0.30%)   

1,559 Flughafen Zurich AG Com CHF10.00 276,591 0.34

 Food: 0.34% (2018: 0.31%)   

139 Barry Callebaut AG Com CHF0.02 279,572 0.34

 Insurance: 1.00% (2018: 1.75%)   

1,110 Swiss Life Holding AG Com CHF5.10 550,696 0.67

700 Zurich Insurance Group AG Class A Com 
CHF0.10 274,789 0.33

 
Investment Companies: 0.66% (2018: 
0.01%)   

6,934 Pargesa Holding SA Class B Com 
CHF20.00 547,448 0.66

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.72% (2018: 
0.13%)   

303 Inficon Holding AG Com CHF5.00 219,666 0.27

1,687 Kardex AG Com CHF0.45 275,160 0.33

2,118 Zehnder Group AG Com CHF0.05 96,326 0.12

 Pharmaceuticals: 2.81% (2018: 0.49%)   

25,183 Novartis AG Com CHF0.50 2,319,855 2.81

2 Roche Holding AG Com NPV 617 0.00

 Retail: 0.66% (2018: 0.13%)   

2,809 Dufry AG Com CHF5.00 274,281 0.33

4,565 Galenica AG Class A Com CHF0.10 274,763 0.33

 
Telecommunications: 0.33% (2018: 
0.09%)   

3 Sunrise Communications Group AG Com 
NPV 236 0.00

532 Swisscom AG Com CHF1.00 275,542 0.33

 Total Switzerland 9,790,371 11.84

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

 United States: 51.17% (2018: 49.65%)   

 Aerospace/Defense: 0.37% (2018: 0.29%)   

8 Astronics Corp Com USD0.01 233 0.00

1,695 Honeywell International Inc Com 
USD1.00 302,642 0.37

2
Teledyne Technologies Inc Com 
USD0.01 684 0.00

 Agriculture: 0.00% (2018: 0.32%)   

 Airlines: 0.00% (2018: 0.67%)   

 Apparel: 0.00% (2018: 0.86%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
2.69%)   

 Banks: 4.83% (2018: 0.78%)   
28,617 Amalgamated Bank Class A Com 

USD0.01 547,157 0.66

25,814 Bridgewater Bancshares Inc Com 
USD0.001 329,903 0.40

17,071 First of Long Island Corp Com USD0.1 413,630 0.50

43,654 Horizon Bancorp Inc Com NPV 821,568 0.99

32,740 Independent Bank Corp Com USD1.00 731,739 0.89

32,409 Lakeland Bancorp Inc Com NPV 540,582 0.65

15,123 RBB Bancorp Com NPV 302,762 0.37

6,534 Republic Bancorp Inc Class A Com NPV 301,871 0.37

 Beverages: 3.30% (2018: 0.00%)   

45,900 Craft Brew Alliance Inc Com USD0.005 756,432 0.92

32,883 Monster Beverage Corp Com USD0.005 1,967,061 2.38

 Biotechnology: 6.06% (2018: 1.67%)   

14,687 Albireo Pharma Inc Com USD0.01 332,220 0.40

55,778 Aldeyra Therapeutics Inc Com 
USD0.001 445,108 0.54

196,313 Ardelyx Inc Com USD0.0001 1,458,606 1.76

130,160 Atara Biotherapeutics Inc Com 
USD0.0001 1,849,574 2.24

71 BioCryst Pharmaceuticals Inc Com 
USD0.01 202 0.00

1,014 Biogen Inc Com USD0.0005 304,007 0.37

126,195 Calithera Biosciences Inc Com 
USD0.0001 620,879 0.75

4 Gilead Sciences Inc Com USD0.001 269 0.00

12 Halozyme Therapeutics Inc Com 
USD0.001 233 0.00

1 Illumina Inc Com USD0.01 321 0.00

1 Regeneron Pharmaceuticals Inc Com 
USD0.001 369 0.00

 Building Materials: 0.28% (2018: 1.00%)   
14 GCP Applied Technologies Inc Com 

USD0.01 313 0.00

4,917 Masco Corp Com USD1.00 228,886 0.28

24 PGT Innovations Inc Com USD0.01 345 0.00
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 Chemicals: 0.80% (2018: 1.06%)   

42,697 Codexis Inc Com USD0.0001 663,511 0.80

16 Kraton Corp Com USD0.01 361 0.00

10 Univar Solutions Inc Com USD0.01 234 0.00

 
Commercial Services: 4.91% (2018: 
2.69%)   

15 Brightview Holdings Inc Com USD0.01 241 0.00

1,525 CAI International Inc Com USD0.0001 36,753 0.04

68,885 Care.com Inc Com USD0.001 863,129 1.04

23,916 
Cross Country Healthcare Inc Com 
USD0.0001 288,666 0.35

48,143 Everi Holdings Inc Com USD0.001 648,486 0.79

1 FleetCor Technologies Inc Com 
USD0.001 307 0.00

33,719 Forrester Research Inc Com USD0.01 1,346,400 1.63

3 FTI Consulting Inc Com USD0.01 327 0.00

248 Green Dot Corp Class A Com USD0.001 5,892 0.01

35,311 Hackett Group Inc Com USD0.001 541,318 0.66

7 HMS Holdings Corp Com USD0.01 211 0.00

8 I3 Verticals Inc Class A Com USD0.0001 219 0.00

2,989 PayPal Holdings Inc Com USD0.0001 322,842 0.39

5 TriNet Group Inc Com USD0.000025 274 0.00

9 TrueBlue Inc Com NPV 210 0.00

 Computers: 1.35% (2018: 0.61%)   

92,644 A10 Networks Inc Com USD0.00001 617,935 0.75

19,464 Agilysys Inc Com USD0.3 493,023 0.60

2 Apple Inc Com USD0.00001 535 0.00

 
Distribution/Wholesale: 0.00% (2018: 
0.55%)   

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.05% 
(2018: 1.17%)   

8 Blucora Inc Com USD0.0001 188 0.00

27 Enova International Inc Com 
USD0.00001 622 0.00

152 Mastercard Inc Class A Com USD0.0001 44,419 0.05

 Electric: 0.76% (2018: 0.37%)   

5,387 Entergy Corp Com USD5.00 626,993 0.76

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.00% (2018: 1.62%)   

7 SPX Corp Com USD0.01 334 0.00

 Electronics: 0.99% (2018: 3.87%)   

42 GoPro Inc Class A Com USD0.0001 170 0.00

23,871 Vishay Precision Group Inc Com 
USD0.10 821,401 0.99

 
Energy-Alternate Sources: 0.50% (2018: 
0.00%)   

211,992 Clean Energy Fuels Corp Com 
USD0.0001 413,384 0.50

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 
Engineering & Construction: 1.43% (2018: 
0.00%)   

37,331 Aegion Corp Com USD0.01 808,589 0.98

15,616 Primoris Services Corp Com USD0.0001 343,864 0.42

1,404 Sterling Construction Co Inc Class C 
Com USD0.01 20,456 0.03

 
Environmental Control: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

4 Clean Harbors Inc Com USD0.01 331 0.00

 Food: 0.36% (2018: 0.00%)   

9,843 Kraft Heinz Co Com USD0.01 300,212 0.36

8 Simply Good Foods Co Com USD0.01 221 0.00

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.62% (2018: 
1.82%)   

18,304 AngioDynamics Inc Com USD0.01 281,333 0.34

5 Boston Scientific Corp Com USD0.01 216 0.00

7 Cardiovascular Systems Inc Com NPV 319 0.00

5 Globus Medical Inc Class A Com 
USD0.001 280 0.00

4 Inspire Medical Systems Inc Com 
USD0.001 284 0.00

12 Intersect ENT Inc Com USD0.001 260 0.00

26,761 Sientra Inc Com USD0.01 229,074 0.28

6 STAAR Surgical Co Class C Com 
USD0.01 221 0.00

 Healthcare-Services: 2.19% (2018: 4.13%)   

23,308 Magellan Health Inc Com USD0.01 1,811,731 2.19

8 Natera Inc Com USD0.0001 292 0.00

23 R1 RCM Com USD0.01 296 0.00

17 RadNet Inc Com USD0.0001 326 0.00

 Home Builders: 0.50% (2018: 0.00%)   

36,293 Green Brick Partners Inc Com USD0.01 414,103 0.50

5 Meritage Homes Corp Com USD0.01 333 0.00

 
Household Products/Wares: 0.00% (2018: 
0.11%)   

 Insurance: 3.09% (2018: 2.07%)   
2,561 Berkshire Hathaway Inc Class B Com 

USD0.0033 564,188 0.68

8 NMI Holdings Inc Class A Com USD0.01 269 0.00

46,536 Stewart Information Services Corp Com 
USD1.00 1,990,345 2.41

 Internet: 4.59% (2018: 0.87%)   

409 Alphabet Inc Class A Com USD0.001 533,373 0.65

27 Alphabet Inc Class C Com USD0.001 35,234 0.04

311 Amazon.com Inc Com USD0.01 560,049 0.68

352 Bandwidth Inc Class A Com USD0.001 19,687 0.02

16 Boingo Wireless Inc Com NPV 184 0.00

88 ChannelAdvisor Corp Com USD0.001 835 0.00

6 Chegg Inc Com USD0.001 233 0.00

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements 2019 
 
 
Schedule of investments (continued) 
 
As at 30 November 2019 
 
Transferable Securities admitted to an Official Stock Exchange Listing or traded on a Regulated Market. The 
percentages in brackets show the equivalent country of origin and sector holdings at 30 November 2018. 
 

 
Invesco Russell 2000 UCITS ETF   155 

Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

20,611 Eplus Inc Com USD0.01 1,722,461 2.08

2,974 Facebook Inc Class A Com 
USD0.000006 599,677 0.73

1 IAC/InterActiveCorp Com USD0.001 223 0.00

1,026 Netflix Inc Com USD0.001 322,841 0.39

26 Truecar Inc Com USD0.0001 137 0.00

7 Twitter Inc Com USD0.000005 216 0.00

 Iron/Steel: 0.00% (2018: 0.85%)   

 Leisure Time: 0.00% (2018: 0.23%)   

18 Malibu Boats Inc Class A Com USD0.01 712 0.00

23 Vista Outdoor Inc Com USD0.01 190 0.00

 Lodging: 0.88% (2018: 0.00%)   
16,021 Monarch Casino & Resort Inc Com 

USD0.01 730,558 0.88

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.33% (2018: 
1.80%)   

1,696 IDEX Corp Com USD0.01 276,007 0.33

6 SPX FLOW Inc Com USD0.01 284 0.00

2 Zebra Technologies Corp Class A Com 
USD0.01 502 0.00

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 5.85%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.95% 
(2018: 1.91%)   

30 Harsco Corp Com USD1.25 668 0.00

42,353 Lydall Inc Com USD0.10 788,613 0.95

 Oil & Gas: 0.38% (2018: 1.02%)   

550 Murphy USA Inc Com USD0.01 64,642 0.08

5 Penn Virginia Corp Com USD0.01 121 0.00

74,439 SandRidge Energy Inc Com USD0.001 244,904 0.30

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.79% (2018: 0.05%)   

7 Apergy Corp Com USD0.01 179 0.00

78,982 Exterran Corp Com USD0.01 424,923 0.51

150,087 Forum Energy Technologies Inc Class I 
Com USD0.01 196,614 0.24

2,625 MRC Global Inc Com USD0.01 35,018 0.04

5 SEACOR Holdings Inc Com USD0.01 212 0.00

 Pharmaceuticals: 1.68% (2018: 0.27%)   
11 Apellis Pharmceuticals Inc Com 

USD0.0001 296 0.00

240,648 Kadmon Holdings Com USD0.001 1,063,664 1.29

3,684 Merck & Co Inc Com USD0.50 321,171 0.39

13 Recro Pharma Inc Com USD0.01 215 0.00

3 USANA Health Sciences Inc Com 
USD0.001 221 0.00

12 Vanda Pharmaceuticals Inc Com 
USD0.001 201 0.00

 Private Equity: 0.00% (2018: 1.14%)   

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

12 Marcus & Millichap Inc Com USD0.0001 441 0.00

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

 Retail: 0.68% (2018: 1.06%)   
112,256 Barnes & Noble Education Inc Com 

USD0.01 565,770 0.68

10 Denny's Corp Com USD0.01 195 0.00

1 Lowe's Cos Inc Com USD0.50 117 0.00

11 MarineMax Inc Com USD0.001 182 0.00

 Savings & Loans: 0.80% (2018: 0.00%)   

6,069 FS Bancorp Inc Com NPV 362,805 0.44

14,680 Meridian Bancorp Inc Com NPV 295,508 0.36

 Semiconductors: 6.72% (2018: 1.88%)   

319,353 Amkor Technology Inc Com USD0.001 3,860,978 4.67

56,989 Axcelis Technologies Inc Com USD0.001 1,221,844 1.48

149,874 AXT Inc Com USD0.001 473,602 0.57

4 Cirrus Logic Inc Com USD0.001 287 0.00

2 Micron Technology Inc Com USD0.10 95 0.00

9 Semtech Corp Com USD0.01 436 0.00

 Software: 0.79% (2018: 2.98%)   

1,091 Adobe Inc Com USD0.0001 337,697 0.41

5 Bottomline Technologies DE Inc Com 
USD0.001 247 0.00

39 Cloudera Inc Com USD0.00005 385 0.00

5 CommVault Systems Inc Com USD0.01 253 0.00

4 Cornerstone OnDemand Inc Com 
USD0.0001 247 0.00

3,080 Electronic Arts Inc Com USD0.01 311,111 0.38

2 Fidelity National Information Services 
Inc Com USD0.01 276 0.00

8 Five9 Inc Com USD0.001 545 0.00

9 LivePerson Inc Com USD0.001 357 0.00

3 New Relic Inc Com USD0.001 204 0.00

10 Rosetta Stone Inc Com USD0.00005 155 0.00

7 Sailpoint Technologies Holdings Com 
USD0.0001 175 0.00

5 Smartsheet Inc Com Class A Com NPV 237 0.00

13 SVMK Inc Com USD0.00001 222 0.00

2 Synopsys Inc Com USD0.01 282 0.00

2 Twilio Inc Class A Com USD0.001 207 0.00

17 Workiva Inc Com USD0.001 737 0.00

 
Telecommunications: 0.19% (2018: 
1.04%)   

392 Cisco Systems Inc Com USD0.001 17,762 0.02

6 EchoStar Corp Class A Com USD0.001 252 0.00

1,440 Extreme Networks Inc Com USD0.001 10,123 0.01

2,150 Verizon Communications Inc Com 
USD0.10 129,516 0.16

 Transportation: 0.00% (2018: 0.35%)   

Total United States 42,301,839 51.17

Total equities 83,056,670 100.47
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Outperformance swaps**: -0.46% (2018: 0.37%) 

Counterparty CCY Maturity date 

Level 2
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

Société Générale USD 28/02/2020 36,958 0.04

Fair value outperformance swaps gain 36,958 0.04

 

Goldman Sachs 
International USD 24/02/2022 (155,565) (0.19)

Morgan Stanley & Co. 
International plc USD 10/12/2021 (260,105) (0.31)

Fair value outperformance swap losses (415,670) (0.50)

 

Fair value outperformance swaps (378,712) (0.46)
 

 
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

Total value of investments 82,677,958 100.01

   

Cash and cash equivalents* 91 0.00

   

Other net liabilities (9,163) (0.01)

   

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
participating shares 82,668,886 100.00

 

* All cash holdings are held with The Northern Trust Company. 

** These outperformance swaps track the Russell 2000 TR Index. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap gains 6,644,389. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap losses 76,125,477. 
 

 

% of
total 

assets

Unaudited Analysis of Total Assets  

Transferable securities and money market instruments admitted to 
official stock exchange listing. 97.03

Transferable securities and money market instruments traded on a 
regulated market. 0.00

Financial derivative instruments. 0.04

Other assets. 2.93

 100.00
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Statement of comprehensive income 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 
 

Notes Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

Financial
year ended

30 November 
2018
EUR

Income  
Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss 3 38,792,045 (7,831,506)
Total investment income/(expense)  38,792,045 (7,831,506)
Operating expenses 4 (476,860) (578,733)
Net income/(expense) 38,315,185 (8,410,239)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 38,315,185 (8,410,239)
Increase/(decrease) in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of 
Redeemable Shares 38,315,185 (8,410,239)
 
There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the increase/(decrease) in Net Assets 
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares of the Company. In arriving at the results of the financial year, all 
amounts above relate to continuing operations. 
 
Statement of financial position 
 
As at 30 November 2019 Notes As at 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

As at
30 November

2018
EUR

Current Assets  
Assets at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) 241,887,658 255,658,903
Assets at amortised cost  
Cash and cash equivalents 5 215 85
Debtors 6 62,343 15,424,897
Total Current Assets 241,950,216 271,083,885
Current Liabilities  
Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) (129,005) (323,876)
Other financial liabilities  
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 7 (80,033) (15,447,298)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Shares)  (209,038) (15,771,174)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares  241,741,178 255,312,711
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019
 

Notes Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

Financial
year ended

30 November 
2018
EUR

Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares
at the beginning of the financial year  255,312,711 319,894,243
Increase/(decrease) in Net Assets Attributable to 
Holders of Redeemable Shares from operations 38,315,185 (8,410,239)
Amounts received on issue of Redeemable Shares 139,881,966 344,753,849
Amounts paid on redemption of Redeemable Shares (191,768,684) (400,925,142)
Decrease in Net Assets resulting from Share transactions (51,886,718) (56,171,293)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares
at the end of the financial year 10 241,741,178 255,312,711
 
Statement of cash flows 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

Financial
year ended

30 November 
2018
EUR

Cash flows from operating activities  
Proceeds from sale of investments 3,750,377,063 4,291,973,093
Purchase of investments (3,697,975,739) (4,235,196,757)
Management fees paid (494,293) (566,846)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 51,907,031 56,209,490
Cash flows from financing activities  
Proceeds from issue of Redeemable Shares 139,881,966 344,753,849
Payments of redemption of Redeemable Shares (191,768,684) (400,925,142)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (51,886,718) (56,171,293)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 20,313 38,197
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 85 142
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents (20,183) (38,254)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5 215 85
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 
 
General information 
Investment objective and policy 
The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve the 
Target Performance (which is the net total return 
performance of the Reference Index (being the STOXX 
Europe 600 Net TR Index) (less fees, expenses and 
transaction costs)). The Fund does not intend to make 
dividend payments. 
 
The Reference Index is derived from the STOXX Total 
Market Index (TMI) and a subset of the STOXX Global 
1800 Index. With a fixed number of 600 components, the 
Reference Index represents large, mid and small 
capitalisation companies across 18 countries of the 
European region: Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, 
France, Germany, Greece, Iceland, Ireland, Italy, 
Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Spain, 
Sweden, Switzerland and the United Kingdom. The 
Reference Index has a free float market capitalisation 
subject to a 20% weighting cap. 
 
The Fund shall not invest more than 10% of its net assets 
in other UCITS or other open or closed ended CIS. 
 
The functional currency of the Fund is Euro and the Fund 
is valued in Euro. 
 
1. Significant accounting policies 
 
See pages 35 to 44 for significant accounting policies. 
 
2. Financial risk management 
 
See pages 44 to 50 for general notes. The risk 
management technique applying to this Fund is the 
Commitment Approach. A sensitivity analysis is presented 
below to reflect the Commitment Approach applied. 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis 
 
The sensitivity analysis for the Fund assumes a change in 
the market price of the investments while holding all other 
variables constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur and 
changes in some of the variables may be correlated. 

In addition, as the sensitivity analysis uses historical data 
as a basis for determining future events, it does not 
encompass all possible scenarios, particularly those that 
are of an extreme nature. The reasonably possible 
decrease in the Reference Index is based on the 
movement over the year ended 30 November 2019. 
These movements may be different from the long term 
volatility of the Reference Index. 
 
As detailed in the tables below, the decrease in the 
Reference Index (the STOXX Europe 600 Net TR Index) at 
30 November 2019 and 30 November 2018, with all other 
variables held constant, would have resulted in an 
estimated decrease in the net assets attributable to 
holders of redeemable participating shares as follows, 
increase in Reference Index by 1% will have equal and 
opposite effect: 
 

Number of  
Reference index 
units as of  
30 November 
2019 

Reference 
Index 

close at
30 

November
2019

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary 
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of 

the Reference 
Index
EUR

1,145,831.069027 210.99 208.88 (2,417,588.97)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2019. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2019, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
 

Number of  
Reference index 
units as of  
30 November 
2018 

Reference 
Index

close at
30 

November
2018

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary 
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of 

the index
EUR

335,839.212656 760.29 752.69 (2,553,351.95)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2018. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2018, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis (continued)  
 
Based on historic movements and volatilities in these 
market variables, and management’s knowledge and 
experience of the financial markets, it was determined 
that the movements listed above are reasonably possible 
over the financial year. 
 
B) Foreign currency risk/interest rate risk 
 
Foreign currency and interest rate exposure is minimal 
due to the nature and strategy of the investments held by 
the Fund. As a result, no sensitivity analysis or exposure 
tables have been disclosed for foreign currency or interest 
rate risk. The Fund is not exposed to significant currency 
risk as all the swaps settle in the base currency of the 
Fund. 
 
C) Liquidity risk 
 
The following tables analyse the Fund's non-derivative 
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period at the Statement of financial 
position date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows. Balances due within twelve months equal their 
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not 
significant. All amounts are stated in Euro. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 74,982 - 74,982
Accrued expenses - 5,051 5,051
Net assets attributable 
to holders of  
Redeemable Shares 241,741,178 - 241,741,178
Total financial liabilities 241,816,160 5,051 241,821,211
 

 

As at 30 November 
2018 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 15,424,814 - 15,424,814
Accrued expenses - 22,484 22,484
Net assets attributable 
to holders of  
Redeemable Shares 255,312,711 - 255,312,711
Total financial liabilities 270,737,525 22,484 270,760,009
 
The tables below analyse the Fund's derivative financial 
instruments in a loss position and is based on the fact that 
swaps are reset on a monthly basis, rather than the 
contractual maturity date of the swap. All amounts are 
stated in Euro. 
 
As at 30 November
2019 

7 days to 
1 month 

1-3
months

More than 
3 months

Financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit 
or loss* 129,005 - -
 
As at 30 November
2018

7 days to 
1 month 

1-3
months

More than 
3 months

Financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit 
or loss* 323,876 - -
 
* Derivatives settled net. 
 
D) Fair value 
 
The tables below and overleaf analyse within the fair value 
hierarchy the Fund's financial assets and liabilities (by 
class) measured at fair value. All amounts are stated in 
Euro. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 241,837,092 - -
- Derivatives - 50,566 -
Total assets 241,837,092 50,566 -
Liabilities   
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Derivatives - 129,005 -
Total liabilities - 129,005 -
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
D) Fair value (continued) 
 
As at 30 November 
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets   
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 254,731,097 - -
- Derivatives - 927,806 -
Total assets 254,731,097 927,806 -
Liabilities     
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Derivatives - 323,876 -
Total liabilities - 323,876 -
 
The Fund did not hold any Level 3 instruments during the 
financial year (30 November 2018: Nil). There were no 
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the financial 
year. 
 
Investments whose values are based on quoted market 
prices in active markets, and therefore classified within 
Level 1, include active listed equities. The Fund does not 
adjust the quoted price for these instruments. 
 
Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not 
considered to be active but are valued based on quoted 
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing 
sources supported by observable inputs are classified 
within Level 2. 
 
The Level 2 amounts above represent outperformance 
swaps. These are priced using a valuation comprising of 
observable data which tracks the performance of the 
Reference Index against the performance of the Fund's 
underlying equity basket. 
 
The Schedule of investments shows the equities split by 
level, country of origin and industry group. The derivatives 
are outperformance swaps. All equities are classified as 
Level 1 and all outperformance swaps as Level 2. 

3. Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

 
 Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

Financial
year ended

30 November 
2018
EUR

Realised gains on sale of 
investments 15,676,482 6,920,656
Realised (losses)/gains on 
outperformance swaps (2,245,567) 2,279,332
Net currency losses (20,183) (38,254)
Net change in unrealised 
appreciation/(depreciation) 
on investments 26,063,682 (18,076,485)
Net change in unrealised 
(depreciation)/appreciation 
outperformance swaps (682,369) 1,083,245

38,792,045 (7,831,506)
 
* Realised (losses)/gains on outperformance swaps include an amount of  
EUR 800,901 relating to swap fees (30 November 2018: EUR Nil). 
 

4. Operating expenses 
 
 Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

Financial
year ended

30 November 
2018
EUR

Management fees 476,860 578,733
 476,860 578,733
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager.  
 
5. Cash and cash equivalents 
 

As at 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

As at
30 November

2018
EUR

The Northern Trust 
Company* 215 85

215 85
 
* Cash held is unsegregated. 
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6. Debtors 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

As at
30 November 

2018
EUR

Sale of securities 
awaiting settlement 62,343 15,424,897
 62,343 15,424,897
 
7. Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

As at
30 November

2018
EUR

Management fees 5,051 22,484
Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 74,982 15,424,814
 80,033 15,447,298
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager. 
 
8. Segment reporting 
 
IFRS 8 requires disclosures in respect of the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) and certain 
disclosures in respect of the country of origin of income. 
Management have determined the CODM is the Board of 
Directors. 
 
All revenues are derived from financial assets and are 
attributable to a country based on the domicile of the 
issuer of the instrument. The Schedule of investments 
discloses the investments of the Fund at their fair value by 
their respective country of origin. 
 
There was no dividend income received by the Fund for 
the financial year ended 30 November 2019 (30 
November 2018: Nil). 

9. Share capital 
 
Redeemable shares  
in issue 

Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 

Financial
year ended

30 November 
2018

Number of Redeemable Shares 
Issued and Fully Paid 
Balance at beginning  
of financial year 3,424,307 4,085,197
Issued during financial year 1,726,854 4,372,111
Redeemed during 
financial year (2,392,885) (5,033,001)
Total number of 
Redeemable Shares in issue at 
end of financial year 2,758,276 3,424,307

 
10. Net asset value 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
EUR 

As at
30 November

2018
EUR

As at
30 November

2017
EUR

Total Net Asset Value 
Class A 
Redeemable Shares 241,741,178 255,312,711 319,894,243
Dealing Net Asset Value  
per Redeemable Share 

 

Class A 
Redeemable Shares 87.6421 74.5589 78.3057
 
11. Collateral 
 
The collateral for Invesco STOXX Europe 600 UCITS ETF is 
unilateral. The Fund has entered into a Charge Account 
Control Agreement ("the Agreement") with each Swap 
Counterparty being J.P. Morgan Securities plc and 
Goldman Sachs International. The Agreement was in place 
from 25 August 2017 and from 11 August 2017 
respectively. The collateral model involves the pledge of 
collateral to the Swap Counterparties in the form of 
equities. Equities pledged as collateral are marked with an 
asterisk in the Schedule of investments. 
 
There were no securities pledged by the Fund as at 30 
November 2019 (30 November 2018: none). 
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
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 Equities: 100.04% (2018: 99.77%)   

 Austria: 0.99% (2018: 0.93%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 Building Materials: 0.98% (2018: 0.00%)   

94,908 Wienerberger AG Class A Com NPV 2,363,209 0.98

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

191 Verbund AG Class A Com NPV 9,011 0.00

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.39%)   

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.53%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

1,376 Telekom Austria AG Class A Com NPV 10,031 0.01

 Total Austria 2,382,251 0.99

    

 Belgium: 2.81% (2018: 6.36%)   

 Beverages: 0.00% (2018: 2.15%)   

 Chemicals: 0.11% (2018: 0.86%)   

2,467 Solvay SA Com EUR15.00 256,568 0.11

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

115 Elia System Operator SA/NV Com NPV 8,625 0.00

 Electronics: 0.01% (2018: 0.01%)   

51 Barco NV Com NPV 10,684 0.01

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.32% (2018: 
0.00%)   

5,702 Ackermans & van Haaren NV Com NPV 778,323 0.32

 
Holding Companies-Diversified: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

45 Sofina SA Com NPV 8,856 0.00

 Insurance: 1.14% (2018: 1.34%)   

50,525 Ageas Com NPV 2,752,602 1.14

 
Investment Companies: 0.01% (2018: 
1.14%)   

207 Groupe Bruxelles Lambert SA Com NPV 19,065 0.01

 Pharmaceuticals: 1.22% (2018: 0.86%)   

40,200 UCB SA Com NPV 2,957,112 1.22

 Total Belgium 6,791,835 2.81

    

 Canada: 1.10% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Retail: 1.10% (2018: 0.00%)   
44,775 Restaurant Brands International Inc 

Com NPV 2,665,140 1.10

 Total Canada 2,665,140 1.10

    

 Denmark: 5.17% (2018: 5.52%)   

 Banks: 0.65% (2018: 0.60%)   

128,288 Danske Bank A/S Com DKK10.00 1,572,080 0.65

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

 Beverages: 2.39% (2018: 1.19%)   

38,042 Carlsberg A/S Class B Com DKK20.00 4,967,274 2.05

10,093 Royal Unibrew A/S Com DKK2.00 824,551 0.34

 Building Materials: 0.71% (2018: 0.57%)   
8,462 Rockwool International A/S Class B Com 

DKK10.00 1,715,808 0.71

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.34% (2018: 
0.00%)   

29,242 Per Aarsleff Holding A/S Com DKK2.00 829,709 0.34

 Insurance: 0.26% (2018: 0.00%)   

14,746 Topdanmark A/S Com DKK1.00 618,523 0.26

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.24% (2018: 1.10%)   

16,363 H Lundbeck A/S Com DKK5.00 568,964 0.24

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.20%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.58% (2018: 
0.75%)   

32,760 GN Store Nord A/S Com DKK4.00 1,400,870 0.58

 Transportation: 0.00% (2018: 1.11%)   

Total Denmark 12,497,779 5.17

    

 Finland: 5.58% (2018: 4.76%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.46% (2018: 
0.00%)   

45,402 Nokian Renkaat Oyj Com NPV 1,115,073 0.46

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

677 Kemira Oyj Com NPV 9,600 0.00

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.07%)   

 Electric: 0.21% (2018: 0.41%)   

24,037 Fortum Oyj Com EUR3.40 514,151 0.21

 
Environmental Control: 0.00% (2018: 
0.06%)   

 Food: 0.40% (2018: 1.06%)   

15,787 Kesko Oyj Class B Com NPV 966,796 0.40

 
Forest Products & Paper: 2.25% (2018: 
1.38%)   

179,553 UPM-Kymmene Oyj Com NPV 5,444,047 2.25

 Healthcare-Services: 0.22% (2018: 0.00%)   

49,811 Terveystalo Oyj Com NPV 521,023 0.22

 Insurance: 0.13% (2018: 1.24%)   

8,332 Sampo Oyj Class A Com NPV 305,784 0.13

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.51% (2018: 
0.00%)   

1 Kone Oyj Class B Com NPV 57 0.00

60,552 Valmet Oyj Com NPV 1,230,417 0.51

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.73% (2018: 0.53%)   

44,578 Orion Oyj Class B Com EUR0.65 1,760,831 0.73
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 Real Estate: 0.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

6,472 Kojamo Oyj Com NPV 96,951 0.04

 
Telecommunications: 0.63% (2018: 
0.01%)   

31,231 Elisa Oyj Com NPV 1,515,016 0.63

 Total Finland 13,479,746 5.58

    

 Germany: 34.78% (2018: 31.49%)   

 Aerospace/Defense: 0.07% (2018: 0.00%)   

689 MTU Aero Engines AG Class A Com NPV 169,425 0.07

 Airlines: 0.00% (2018: 1.16%)   

 Apparel: 1.35% (2018: 2.36%)   

11,467 Adidas AG Class A Com NPV 3,242,294 1.34

260 Puma SE Com NPV 17,732 0.01

 Auto Manufacturers: 3.63% (2018: 4.73%)   
68,981 Bayerische Motoren Werke AG Class A 

Com EUR1.00 5,056,307 2.09

16,434 Bayerische Motoren Werke AG Pref 
EUR1.00 920,304 0.38

16,021 Volkswagen AG Pref NPV 2,811,365 1.16

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.36% (2018: 
0.34%)   

7,437 Continental AG Class A Com NPV 882,028 0.36

82 Rheinmetall AG Class A Com NPV 7,924 0.00

 Banks: 0.58% (2018: 0.00%)   

49,815 Aareal Bank AG NPV 1,394,820 0.58

 Building Materials: 0.41% (2018: 0.08%)   

14,891 HeidelbergCement AG Class A Com NPV 999,186 0.41

 Chemicals: 4.18% (2018: 1.33%)   

92,706 BASF SE Com NPV 6,324,403 2.62

18,881 Brenntag AG Class A Com NPV 914,029 0.38

203 Covestro AG Class A Com NPV 8,627 0.00

32,536 Symrise AG Class A Com NPV 2,864,469 1.18

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.02%)   

 Computers: 0.00% (2018: 0.32%)   

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 1.47% (2018: 
0.00%)   

33,610 Beiersdorf AG Class A Com NPV 3,557,619 1.47

 Electric: 1.91% (2018: 1.80%)   

432,995 E.ON SE Com NPV 4,112,587 1.70

694 RWE AG Class A Com NPV 18,676 0.01

16,800 Uniper SE Com NPV 492,240 0.20

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.18% (2018: 
0.00%)   

3,983 Hochtief AG Class A Com NPV 444,104 0.18

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

    

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.26% (2018: 
1.02%)   

5,677 Carl Zeiss Meditec AG Class B Com NPV 630,147 0.26

 Healthcare-Services: 1.80% (2018: 2.84%)   
19,327 Fresenius Medical Care AG & Co KGaA 

Com NPV 1,286,405 0.53

61,711 Fresenius SE & Co KGaA Com NPV 3,063,334 1.27

 Home Furnishings: 0.44% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,511 Rational AG Class A Com NPV 1,050,145 0.44

 
Household Products/Wares: 0.17% (2018: 
0.00%)   

4,580 Henkel AG & Co KGaA Com NPV 402,124 0.17

 Insurance: 4.71% (2018: 3.63%)   

13,223 Allianz SE Com NPV 2,874,019 1.19

11,100 Hannover Rueck SE Com NPV 1,870,350 0.77

25,482
Muenchener Rueckversicherungs-
Gesellschaft AG in Muenchen Com NPV 6,640,609 2.75

 Internet: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 Iron/Steel: 0.00% (2018: 0.13%)   

 Leisure Time: 0.00% (2018: 0.83%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.39%)   

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 2.87% 
(2018: 0.38%)   

59,276 Siemens AG Com NPV 6,942,405 2.87

 
Packaging & Containers: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

121 Gerresheimer AG Class A Com NPV 8,077 0.00

 Pharmaceuticals: 2.66% (2018: 2.67%)   

54,167 Bayer AG Com NPV 3,721,273 1.54

25,565 Merck KGaA Com NPV 2,709,890 1.12

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.85%)   

 Retail: 0.68% (2018: 0.18%)   

22,716 Fielmann AG Class A Com NPV 1,609,429 0.67

242 Hugo Boss AG Com NPV 10,345 0.01

 Semiconductors: 0.00% (2018: 0.71%)   

 Software: 3.99% (2018: 1.21%)   

14,827 CompuGroup Medical SE Com NPV 920,015 0.38

81,015 RIB Software SE Com NPV 1,937,879 0.80

52,408 SAP SE Com NPV 6,471,340 2.68

9,981 Software AG Class A Com NPV 305,518 0.13

 
Telecommunications: 1.82% (2018: 
2.09%)   

196,558 Deutsche Telekom AG Com NPV 2,994,758 1.24

504,655 Telefonica Deutschland Holding AG Com 
NPV 1,398,399 0.58
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 Transportation: 1.24% (2018: 2.40%)   

88,690 Deutsche Post AG Com NPV 3,001,270 1.24

 Total Germany 84,085,870 34.78

    

 Ireland: 0.93% (2018: 1.12%)   

 Computers: 0.00% (2018: 0.60%)   

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.00% (2018: 
0.52%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.93% (2018: 0.00%)   

13,349 Allergan PLC Com USD0.0033 2,239,039 0.93

 Total Ireland 2,239,039 0.93

    

 Luxembourg: 0.00% (2018: 0.63%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
0.01%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.18%)   

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.44%)   

437 Grand City Properties SA Com EUR0.10 9,203 0.00

 Total Luxembourg 9,203 -

    

 Netherlands: 10.28% (2018: 7.58%)   

 Banks: 1.19% (2018: 0.91%)   

275,084 ING Groep NV Com EUR0.01 2,872,977 1.19

 Biotechnology: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 Chemicals: 2.51% (2018: 1.15%)   

215 Akzo Nobel NV Com EUR0.50 18,688 0.01

52,037 Koninklijke DSM NV Com EUR1.50 6,051,903 2.50

 
Commercial Services: 0.80% (2018: 
0.00%)   

36,665 Randstad NV Com EUR0.10 1,938,112 0.80

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 0.00% (2018: 
0.73%)   

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.03%)   

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.97% (2018: 0.00%)   

49,995 TKH Group NV EUR0.25 2,351,765 0.97

 Electronics: 1.62% (2018: 0.15%)   

93,082 Koninklijke Philips NV Com EUR0.20 3,922,941 1.62

 Food: 0.70% (2018: 1.29%)   
70,939 Koninklijke Ahold Delhaize NV Com 

EUR0.01 1,658,909 0.69

342 Unilever NV Com EUR0.16 18,400 0.01

 Insurance: 0.02% (2018: 0.04%)   

9,346 Aegon NV Com EUR0.12 38,244 0.02

271 ASR Nederland NV Com EUR0.16 9,141 0.00

282 NN Group NV Com NPV 9,825 0.00

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
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assets

    

    

 Internet: 0.51% (2018: 0.00%)   

32,041 Yandex NV Class A Com EUR0.01 1,219,627 0.51

 Media: 0.09% (2018: 1.36%)   

3,285 Wolters Kluwer NV Com EUR0.12 214,051 0.09

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.48%)   

253 Aalberts Industries NV Com EUR0.25 9,728 0.00

 Pipelines: 0.28% (2018: 0.00%)   

13,777 Koninklijke Vopak NV Com EUR0.50 666,669 0.28

 Semiconductors: 0.00% (2018: 1.43%)   

 
Telecommunications: 1.59% (2018: 
0.00%)   

470,506 Altice Europe NV EUR0.01 2,541,673 1.05

469,546 Koninklijke KPN NV Com EUR0.04 1,312,851 0.54

Total Netherlands 24,855,504 10.28

    

 Norway: 0.70% (2018: 5.07%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
0.01%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.50%)   

579 DNB ASA Com NOK10.00 8,827 0.00

 Computers: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 
Environmental Control: 0.00% (2018: 
0.61%)   

 Food: 0.64% (2018: 1.65%)   
1,645 Leroy Seafood Group ASA Com 

NOK1.00 9,444 0.00

173,294 Orkla ASA Com NOK1.25 1,523,287 0.63

228 Salmar ASA Com NOK0.25 9,857 0.01

 Insurance: 0.05% (2018: 0.95%)   

6,645 Gjensidige Forsikring ASA Com NOK2.00 113,504 0.05

 Internet: 0.00% (2018: 0.04%)   

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

338 Schibsted ASA Class A Com NOK0.50 8,405 0.00

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 0.60%)   

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.00% (2018: 0.61%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.01% (2018: 
0.09%)   

1,009 Telenor ASA Com NOK6.00 16,713 0.01

Total Norway 1,690,037 0.70

    

 Portugal: 0.01% (2018: 0.13%)   

 Electric: 0.01% (2018: 0.04%)   
7,508 EDP - Energias de Portugal SA Com 

EUR1.00 27,554 0.01

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.09%)   

Total Portugal 27,554 0.01
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 Singapore: 0.61% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Electronics: 0.61% (2018: 0.00%)   

137,129 Flex Ltd Com NPV 1,476,257 0.61

 Total Singapore 1,476,257 0.61

    

 Spain: 0.76% (2018: 1.51%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.38% (2018: 
0.00%)   

26,134 ACS Actividades de Construccion y 
Servicios SA Com EUR0.50 923,314 0.38

 Oil & Gas: 0.10% (2018: 0.37%)   

16,809 Repsol SA Com EUR1.00 240,201 0.10

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.78%)   

 Software: 0.28% (2018: 0.36%)   

9,313 Amadeus IT Group SA Com EUR0.01 673,330 0.28

 Total Spain 1,836,845 0.76

    

 Sweden: 9.47% (2018: 10.49%)   

 Agriculture: 1.02% (2018: 0.82%)   
56,584 Swedish Match AB Class A Com 

SEK1.98 2,459,206 1.02

 Auto Manufacturers: 1.90% (2018: 1.52%)   

328,142 Volvo AB Class B Com SEK1.20 4,603,019 1.90

 Banks: 1.06% (2018: 1.93%)   
1,015 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB Class 

A Com SEK10.00 7,897 0.00

216,906 Swedbank AB Class A Com SEK22.00 2,562,775 1.06

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.01%)   

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 1.21% (2018: 
0.24%)   

102,543 Essity AB Class B Com SEK3.35 2,924,456 1.21

 
Forest Products & Paper: 0.00% (2018: 
0.63%)   

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.83% (2018: 0.92%)   

120,907 Sandvik AB Class A Com SEK1.20 1,995,021 0.83

 
Healthcare-Products: 1.29% (2018: 
0.46%)   

197,875 Getinge AB Class B Com SEK0.50 3,116,916 1.29

 
Holding Companies-Diversified: 0.01% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

454 Industrivarden AB Class A Com SEK2.50 9,722 0.01

 Home Furnishings: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

 
Investment Companies: 1.02% (2018: 
0.00%)   

51,589 Investor AB Class B Com SEK6.25 2,474,297 1.02

 Iron/Steel: 0.01% (2018: 0.66%)   

7,049 SSAB AB Class A Com SEK8.80 19,903 0.01

 Lodging: 0.00% (2018: 0.19%)   

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 
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Machinery-Construction & Mining: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.32%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.01%)   

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 0.27%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.86%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.37% (2018: 0.63%)   
59,305 Swedish Orphan Biovitrum AB Class A 

Com SEK0.55 898,207 0.37

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.05%)   

484 Castellum AB Class A Com SEK0.50 9,401 0.00

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.75% (2018: 
0.93%)   

221,680 Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson Class B 
Com SEK5.00 1,812,633 0.75

Total Sweden 22,893,453 9.47

    

 Switzerland: 22.15% (2018: 16.46%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
0.80%)   

 Banks: 2.11% (2018: 2.20%)   

464,619 UBS Group AG Com CHF0.10 5,110,507 2.11

 Building Materials: 2.90% (2018: 1.59%)   

158 Belimo Holding AG Com CHF1.00 946,380 0.39

129,600 LafargeHolcim Ltd Com CHF2.00 6,064,323 2.51

 Chemicals: 0.38% (2018: 0.27%)   

48,517 Clariant AG Com CHF3.70 909,680 0.38

 
Commercial Services: 1.43% (2018: 
0.39%)   

61,644 Adecco Group AG Com CHF0.10 3,458,471 1.43

 Computers: 0.95% (2018: 0.30%)   

58,108 Logitech International SA Com CHF0.25 2,305,054 0.95

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.75% 
(2018: 0.71%)   

19,102 Cembra Money Bank AG Class A Com 
CHF1.00 1,804,654 0.75

 Electric: 0.67% (2018: 0.00%)   

25,296 BKW AG Class A Com NPV 1,613,881 0.67

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.72% (2018: 0.00%)   

27,863 Huber + Suhner AG Com CHF0.25 1,727,082 0.72

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.42% (2018: 
0.00%)   

6,230 Flughafen Zurich AG Com CHF10.00 1,002,446 0.42

 Food: 1.80% (2018: 3.05%)   

737 Barry Callebaut AG Com CHF0.02 1,344,398 0.56

200 Chocoladefabriken Lindt & Spruengli AG 
Com CHF10.00 1,383,994 0.57
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21 Chocoladefabriken Lindt & Spruengli AG 
Com CHF100.00 1,625,671 0.67

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.00% (2018: 0.50%)   

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.00% (2018: 
1.61%)   

33 Tecan Group AG Com CHF0.10 8,044 0.00

 Insurance: 4.08% (2018: 2.98%)   

12,713 Baloise Holding AG Com CHF0.10 2,005,221 0.83

9,347 Helvetia Holding AG Com CHF0.02 1,157,895 0.48

3,462 Swiss Life Holding AG Com CHF5.10 1,557,751 0.64

97 Swiss Re AG Class A Com CHF0.10 9,534 0.00

14,454 Zurich Insurance Group AG Class A Com 
CHF0.10 5,146,011 2.13

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.54%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 1.03% (2018: 
0.32%)   

3,787 Inficon Holding AG Com CHF5.00 2,489,993 1.03

 Pharmaceuticals: 3.10% (2018: 0.43%)   

36,729 Novartis AG Com CHF0.50 3,068,630 1.27

2,899 Roche Holding AG Class B Com CHF1.00 801,914 0.33

12,970 Roche Holding AG Com NPV 3,627,747 1.50

 Real Estate: 1.24% (2018: 0.14%)   

3,237 Allreal Holding AG Com CHF50.00 562,275 0.23

20,688 PSP Swiss Property AG Com CHF0.10 2,442,644 1.01

 Retail: 0.57% (2018: 0.00%)   

6,449 Dufry AG Com CHF5.00 571,107 0.24

14,483 Galenica AG Class A Com CHF0.10 790,603 0.33

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
0.30%)   

 Transportation: 0.00% (2018: 0.32%)   

 Total Switzerland 53,535,910 22.15

    

 United States: 4.70% (2018: 7.72%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.67%)   

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 1.32%)   

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
1.19%)   

 Computers: 0.00% (2018: 0.59%)   

 Food: 0.00% (2018: 1.34%)   

 
Healthcare-Products: 2.23% (2018: 
0.00%)   

340,305 Sientra Inc Com USD0.01 2,641,947 1.09

21,021 Zimmer Biomet Holdings Inc Com 
USD0.01 2,769,754 1.14

 Internet: 1.29% (2018: 0.45%)   

5,907 MercadoLibre Inc Com USD0.001 3,110,363 1.29

    

    

    

    

Holdings
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value through profit or loss 
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 Iron/Steel: 0.00% (2018: 0.50%)   

 
Packaging & Containers: 0.00% (2018: 
0.50%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 1.18% (2018: 1.16%)   

26,061 Zoetis Inc Com USD0.01 2,848,605 1.18

Total United States 11,370,669 4.70

Total equities 241,837,092 100.04

 
Outperformance swaps**: -0.03% (2018: 0.24%) 

Counterparty CCY Maturity date 

Level 2 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

Goldman Sachs 
International EUR 24/02/2022 157 0.00

J.P. Morgan Securities plc EUR 30/11/2020 2,701 0.00

Société Générale EUR 28/02/2020 47,708 0.02

Fair value outperformance swaps gains 50,566 0.02

   

Morgan Stanley & Co. 
International plc EUR 10/12/2021 (129,005) (0.05)

Fair value outperformance swaps loss (129,005) (0.05)

     

Fair value outperformance swaps (78,439) (0.03)

 

 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

Total value of investments 241,758,653 100.01

   

Cash and cash equivalents* 215 0.00

   

Other net liabilities (17,690) (0.01)

   

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
participating shares 241,741,178 100.00

   

* All cash holdings are held with The Northern Trust Company. 

** These outperformance swaps track the STOXX Europe 600 TR Net Index or 
a version of the STOXX Europe 600 TR Net Index which reflects a lower rate 
of withholding tax than ordinarily applied within the Reference Index. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap gains 160,344,441. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap losses 81,994,496. 
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% of
total 

assets

Unaudited Analysis of Total Assets  

Transferable securities and money market instruments admitted 
to official stock exchange listing. 99.95

Transferable securities and money market instruments traded on 
a regulated market. 0.00

Financial derivative instruments. 0.02

Other assets. 0.03

 100.00
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Statement of comprehensive income 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Income  
Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss 3 1,257,254 (782,156)
Total investment income/(expense) 1,257,254 (782,156)
Operating expenses 4 (24,692) (33,285)
Net income/(expense) 1,232,562 (815,441)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 1,232,562 (815,441)
Increase/(decrease) in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of 
Redeemable Shares 1,232,562 (815,441)
 
There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the increase/(decrease) in Net Assets 
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares of the Company. In arriving at the results of the financial year, all 
amounts above relate to continuing operations. 
 
Statement of financial position 
 
As at 30 November 2019 Notes As at 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

As at
30 November

2018
USD

Current Assets  
Assets at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) 15,931,326 11,889,606
Loans and receivables  
Cash and cash equivalents 5 192 101
Debtors 6 8,392 834,464
Total Current Assets 15,939,910 12,724,171
Current Liabilities  
Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) (118,941) -
Other financial liabilities  
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 7 (10,268) (834,821)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Shares) (129,209) (834,821)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 15,810,701 11,889,350
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares
at the beginning of the financial year  11,889,350 16,921,231
Increase/(decrease) in Net Assets Attributable to 
Holders of Redeemable Shares from operations 1,232,562 (815,441)
Amounts received on issue of Redeemable Shares 4,958,405 1,260,700
Amounts paid on redemption of Redeemable Shares (2,269,616) (5,477,140)
Increase/(decrease) in Net Assets resulting from Share transactions 2,688,789 (4,216,440)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares
at the end of the financial year 10 15,810,701 11,889,350
 
Statement of cash flows 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Cash flows from operating activities  
Proceeds from sale of investments 206,542,451 249,583,255
Purchase of investments (209,206,644) (245,340,243)
Management fees paid (25,501) (34,490)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (2,689,694) 4,208,522
Cash flows from financing activities  
Proceeds from issue of Redeemable Shares 4,958,405 1,260,700
Payments of redemption of Redeemable Shares (2,269,616) (5,477,140)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 2,688,789 (4,216,440)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (905) (7,918)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 101 195
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents 996 7,824
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5 192 101
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 
 
General information 
Investment objective and policy 
The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve the 
Target Performance (which is the net total return 
performance of the Reference Index (being the MSCI Japan 
TR Net Index) (less fees, expenses and transaction costs)). 
The Fund does not intend to make dividend payments. 
 
The Reference Index is an equity Reference Index of 
securities listed on Japanese stock exchanges. Securities 
listed on the Tokyo, Osaka, Fukuoka, Nagoya, Sapporo, 
JASDAQ and NASDAQ JP exchanges are eligible for 
inclusion. The Reference Index represents Japanese 
companies that are available to investors worldwide and 
provides a representation of 10 industry sectors with 348 
constituents. 
 
The Fund shall not invest more than 10% of its net assets in 
other UCITS or other open or closed ended CIS. 
 
The functional currency of the Fund is US Dollar and the 
Fund is valued in US Dollar. 
 
1. Significant accounting policies 
 
See pages 35 to 44 for significant accounting policies. 
 
2. Financial risk management 
 
See pages 44 to 50 for general notes. The risk 
management technique applying to this Fund is the 
Commitment Approach. A sensitivity analysis is presented 
below to reflect the Commitment Approach applied. 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis 
 
The sensitivity analysis for the Fund assumes a change in 
the market price of the investments while holding all other 
variables constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur and 
changes in some of the variables may be correlated. 

In addition, as the sensitivity analysis uses historical data 
as a basis for determining future events, it does not 
encompass all possible scenarios, particularly those that 
are of an extreme nature. The reasonably possible 
decrease in the Reference Index is based on the movement 
over the financial year ended 30 November 2019. These 
movements may be different from the long term volatility 
of the Reference Index. 
 
As detailed in the tables below, the decrease in the 
Reference Index (the MSCI Japan TR Net Index) at 30 
November 2019 and 30 November 2018, with all other 
variables held constant, would have resulted in an 
estimated decrease in the net assets attributable to 
holders of redeemable participating shares as follows, 
increase in Reference Index by 1% will have equal and 
opposite effect: 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November 
2019 

Reference 
Index 

close at
30 November

2019

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary 
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of the 
Reference Index

USD
2,368.890798 6,675.10 6,608.35 (158,125.81)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2019. Where a subscription or 
redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date of 
30 November 2019, the number of Reference Index units 
disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November  
2018 

Reference 
Index

close at
30 November

2018

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of the 
Reference Index

USD
1,947.612167 6,104.82 6,043.77 (118,898.20)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2018. Where a subscription or 
redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date of 
30 November 2018, the number of Reference Index units 
disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis (continued)  
 
Based on historic movements and volatilities in these 
market variables, and management’s knowledge and 
experience of the financial markets, it was determined that 
the movements listed above are reasonably possible over 
the financial year. 
 
B) Foreign currency risk/interest rate risk 
 
Foreign currency and interest rate exposure is minimal due 
to the nature and strategy of the investments held by the 
Fund. As a result, no sensitivity analysis or exposure tables 
have been disclosed for foreign currency or interest rate 
risk. The Fund is not exposed to significant currency risk as 
all the swaps settle in the base currency of the Fund. 
 
C) Liquidity risk 
 
The following tables analyse the Fund's non-derivative 
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period at the Statement of financial 
position date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows. Balances due within twelve months equal their 
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not 
significant. All amounts are stated in US Dollar. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement  9,530 - 9,530
Accrued expenses - 738 738
Net assets attributable 
to holders of 
Redeemable Shares 15,810,701 - 15,810,701
Total financial liabilities 15,820,231 738 15,820,969
 
As at 30 November 
2018 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement  833,274 - 833,274
Accrued expenses - 1,547 1,547
Net assets attributable 
to holders of 
Redeemable Shares 11,889,350 - 11,889,350
Total financial liabilities 12,722,624 1,547 12,724,171
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The table below analyse the Fund’s derivative financial 
instruments in a loss position and is based on the fact that 
swaps are reset on a monthly basis rather than the 
contractual maturity date of the swap. All amounts are 
stated in US Dollar. 
 
As at 30 November
2019

7 days to 
1 month 

1-3
months

More than 
3 months

Financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or 
loss* 118,941 - -
 
* Derivatives settled net. 
 
There were no derivative financial instruments in a loss 
position held by the Fund at 30 November 2018. 
 
D) Fair value 
 
The tables below analyse within the fair value hierarchy the 
Fund’s financial assets and liabilities (by class) measured 
at fair value. All amounts are stated in US Dollar. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 15,931,326 - -
Total assets 15,931,326 - -
Liabilities    
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:  
- Derivatives - 118,941 -
Total liabilities  - 118,941 -
 
As at 30 November 
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 11,855,939 - -
- Derivatives - 33,667 -
Total assets 11,855,939 33,667 -
 
The Fund did not hold any Level 3 instruments during the 
financial year (30 November 2018: Nil). There were no 
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the financial 
year. 
 
Investments whose values are based on quoted market 
prices in active markets, and therefore classified within 
Level 1, include active listed equities. The Fund does not 
adjust the quoted price for these instruments. 
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
D) Fair value (continued)  
 
Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not 
considered to be active but are valued based on quoted 
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing 
sources supported by observable inputs are classified 
within Level 2. 
 
The Level 2 amounts above represent outperformance 
swaps. These are priced using a valuation comprising of 
observable data which tracks the performance of the 
Reference Index against the performance of the Fund's 
underlying equity basket. 
 
The Schedule of investments shows the equities split by 
level, country of origin and industry group. The derivatives 
are outperformance swaps. All equities are classified as 
Level 1 and all outperformance swaps as Level 2. 
 
3. Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and liabilities 

at fair value through profit or loss 
 

 Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Realised gains/(losses) on 
sale of investments 631,254 (630,426)
Realised gains on 
outperformance swaps* 179,517 499,893
Net currency gains 996 7,824
Net change in realised 
appreciation/(depreciation) 
on investments 598,095 (614,396)
Net change in realised 
depreciation on 
outperformance swaps (152,608) (45,051)

 1,257,254 (782,156)
 
* Realised gains on outperformance swaps include an amount of USD 6,581 
relating to swap fees (30 November 2018: USD 8,088). 

4. Operating expenses 
 

Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Management fees 24,692 33,285
 24,692 33,285
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager.  
 
5. Cash and cash equivalents 
 

As at 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

As at
30 November

2018
USD

The Northern Trust 
Company* 192 101

192 101
 
* Cash held is unsegregated. 
 

6. Debtors 
 

As at 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

As at
30 November

2018
USD

Sale of securities
awaiting settlement 8,392 834,464

8,392 834,464
 
7. Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 
 

As at 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

As at
30 November

2018
USD

Management fees 738 1,547
Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 9,530 833,274

10,268 834,821
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager. 
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8. Segment reporting  
 
IFRS 8 requires disclosures in respect of the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) and certain 
disclosures in respect of the country of origin of income. 
Management have determined the CODM is the Board of 
Directors. 
 
All revenues are derived from financial assets and are 
attributable to a country based on the domicile of the 
issuer of the instrument. The Schedule of investments 
discloses the investments of the Fund at their fair value by 
their respective country of origin. 
 
There was no dividend income received by the Fund for the 
financial year ended 30 November 2019 (30 November 
2018: Nil). 
 
9. Share capital 
 
Redeemable shares in 
issue 

Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 

Financial
year ended

30 November 
2018

Number of Redeemable Shares 
Issued and Fully Paid 
Balance at beginning  
of financial year 204,460 272,844
Issued during financial year 82,500 20,000
Redeemed during  
financial year (37,700) (88,384)
Total number of  
Redeemable Shares in issue at 
end of financial year 249,260 204,460

10. Net asset value 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

As at
30 November

2018
USD

As at
30 November

2017
USD

Total Net Asset Value 
Class A  
Redeemable Shares 15,810,701 11,889,350 16,921,231
Dealing Net Asset Value  
per Redeemable Share 

 

Class A  
Redeemable Shares 63.4306 58.1500 62.0180
 
11. Collateral 
 
The collateral for Invesco MSCI Japan UCITS ETF is 
unilateral. The Fund has entered into a Charge Account 
Control Agreement ("the Agreement") with each Swap 
Counterparty being J.P. Morgan Securities plc and 
Goldman Sachs International. The Agreement was in place 
from 25 August 2017 and from 11 August 2017 
respectively. The collateral model involves the pledge of 
collateral to the Swap Counterparties in the form of 
equities. Equities pledged as collateral are marked with an 
asterisk in the Schedule of investments. 
 
There were no securities pledged by the Fund as at 30 
November 2019 (30 November 2018: none). 
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

 Equities: 100.76% (2018: 99.72%)   

 Austria: 0.66% (2018: 0.77%)   

 Building Materials: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

26 Wienerberger AG Class A Com NPV 714 0.01

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 0.06%)   

8 Verbund AG Class A Com NPV 416 0.00

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.37%)   

 Oil & Gas: 0.65% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,799 OMV AG Class A Com NPV 102,630 0.65

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.00% (2018: 0.34%)   

 Total Austria 103,760 0.66

    

 Belgium: 0.20% (2018: 1.05%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

3 KBC Group NV Com NPV 219 0.00

 Chemicals: 0.18% (2018: 0.00%)   

249 Solvay SA Com EUR15.00 28,553 0.18

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

3 Elia System Operator SA/NV Com NPV 248 0.00

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 1.03%)   

2 Barco NV Com NPV 462 0.00

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

3 Ackermans & van Haaren NV Com NPV 452 0.00

 Insurance: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

8 Ageas Com NPV 481 0.01

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.02%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

18 UCB SA Com NPV 1,460 0.01

 Total Belgium 31,875 0.20

    

 Bermuda: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

340 Maiden Holdings Ltd Com STK USD0.01 257 0.00

 Total Bermuda 257 -

    

 Canada: 1.10% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Aerospace/Defense: 0.54% (2018: 0.00%)   

3,172 CAE Inc Com NPV 85,359 0.54

 
Energy-Alternate Sources: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

45 Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp Com 
NPV 628 0.00

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

    

 Mining: 0.56% (2018: 0.00%)   

4,547 Pan American Silver Corp Com NPV 87,530 0.55

363 Yamana Gold Inc Com NPV 1,300 0.01

Total Canada 174,817 1.10

    

 Denmark: 1.78% (2018: 0.50%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.20%)   

 Beverages: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

8 Carlsberg A/S Class B Com DKK20.00 1,152 0.01

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

6 Orsted A/S Com DKK10.00 553 0.00

 
Energy-Alternate Sources: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

6 Vestas Wind Systems A/S Com DKK1.00 571 0.00

 Home Furnishings: 0.00% (2018: 0.07%)   

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

5 Topdanmark A/S Com DKK1.00 231 0.00

 
Machinery-Diversified: 1.20% (2018: 
0.00%)   

5,140 FLSmidth & Co A/S Com DKK20.00 188,946 1.20

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

28 H Lundbeck A/S Com DKK5.00 1,073 0.01

 Software: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

3 SimCorp A/S Com DKK1.00 321 0.00

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
0.23%)   

 Transportation: 0.56% (2018: 0.00%)   
64 AP Moller - Maersk A/S Class A Com 

DKK1000.00 83,159 0.53

45 DSV Panalpina A/S Com DKK1.00 4,903 0.03

Total Denmark 280,909 1.78

    

 Finland: 2.07% (2018: 3.51%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.29% (2018: 
0.00%)   

1,701 Nokian Renkaat Oyj Com NPV 46,063 0.29

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

27 Kemira Oyj Com NPV 422 0.00

 
Commercial Services: 0.03% (2018: 
0.09%)   

339 Cramo Oyj NPV 4,994 0.03

 Electric: 0.01% (2018: 0.43%)   

27 Fortum Oyj Com EUR3.40 637 0.01

 Food: 0.36% (2018: 1.09%)   

838 Kesko Oyj Class B Com NPV 56,584 0.36
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 
Forest Products & Paper: 0.07% (2018: 
0.93%)   

346 UPM-Kymmene Oyj Com NPV 11,567 0.07

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.29%)   

15 Sampo Oyj Class A Com NPV 607 0.00

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.35% (2018: 
0.00%)   

4 Kone Oyj Class B Com NPV 251 0.00

2,454 Valmet Oyj Com NPV 54,981 0.35

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.43%)   

49 Uponor Oyj Com NPV 629 0.00

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

14 Neste Oyj Com NPV 474 0.00

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.25% (2018: 0.00%)   

901 Orion Oyj Class B Com EUR0.65 39,241 0.25

 Real Estate: 0.49% (2018: 0.00%)   

4,667 Kojamo Oyj Com NPV 77,085 0.49

 
Telecommunications: 0.22% (2018: 
0.25%)   

637 Elisa Oyj Com NPV 34,071 0.22

 Total Finland 327,606 2.07

    

 Germany: 14.45% (2018: 5.75%)   

 Airlines: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

24 Deutsche Lufthansa AG Com NPV 456 0.00

 Apparel: 0.02% (2018: 0.00%)   

3 Adidas AG Class A Com NPV 935 0.01

9 Puma SE Com NPV 677 0.01

 Auto Manufacturers: 1.92% (2018: 0.87%)   
62 Bayerische Motoren Werke AG Pref 

EUR1.00 3,828 0.02

1,885 Porsche Automobil Holding SE Pref NPV 139,627 0.88

837 Volkswagen AG Pref NPV 161,946 1.02

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.02% (2018: 
0.09%)   

34 Rheinmetall AG Class A Com NPV 3,623 0.02

 Banks: 1.62% (2018: 0.05%)   

8,282 Aareal Bank AG NPV 255,689 1.62

35 Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG Class A 
Com NPV 528 0.00

 Building Materials: 0.15% (2018: 0.00%)   

308 HeidelbergCement AG Class A Com NPV 22,787 0.15

 Chemicals: 1.32% (2018: 1.03%)   

749 BASF SE Com NPV 56,339 0.36

1,002 Brenntag AG Class A Com NPV 53,484 0.34

1,014 Symrise AG Class A Com NPV 98,432 0.62

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 
Commercial Services: 0.05% (2018: 
0.07%)   

112 Sixt SE Pref NPV 7,669 0.05

 Computers: 0.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

4 CANCOM SE Com NPV 237 0.00

188 Jenoptik AG Class A Com NPV 5,477 0.04

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 0.90% (2018: 
0.00%)   

1,216 Beiersdorf AG Class A Com NPV 141,920 0.90

 Electric: 1.22% (2018: 0.00%)   

4,671 E.ON SE Com NPV 48,917 0.31

21 RWE AG Class A Com NPV 623 0.00

4,456 Uniper SE Com NPV 143,956 0.91

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 
Energy-Alternate Sources: 0.00% (2018: 
0.43%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 1.21% (2018: 
0.00%)   

154 Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services 
Worldwide Com NPV 13,129 0.08

1,454 Hochtief AG Class A Com NPV 178,755 1.13

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.43% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,455 DMG Mori AG Class A Com NPV 68,022 0.43

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.29% (2018: 
0.04%)   

369 Carl Zeiss Meditec AG Class B Com NPV 45,161 0.29

 Healthcare-Services: 0.01% (2018: 0.07%)   

22 Fresenius SE & Co KGaA Com NPV 1,204 0.01

 Home Furnishings: 0.87% (2018: 0.00%)   

179 Rational AG Class A Com NPV 137,169 0.87

 
Household Products/Wares: 0.09% (2018: 
0.30%)   

139 Henkel AG & Co KGaA Com NPV 13,456 0.09

 Insurance: 0.21% (2018: 0.00%)   

63 Allianz SE Com NPV 15,098 0.10

4 Hannover Rueck SE Com NPV 743 0.01

57 Muenchener Rueckversicherungs-
Gesellschaft AG in Muenchen Com NPV 16,378 0.10

5 Talanx AG Class A Com NPV 238 0.00

 Iron/Steel: 0.00% (2018: 0.30%)   

 Leisure Time: 0.33% (2018: 0.00%)   

856 CTS Eventim AG & Co KGaA Com NPV 52,288 0.33

 
Metal Fabricate/Hardware: 0.00% (2018: 
0.21%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.36% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

435 Siemens AG Com NPV 56,174 0.36

    

    

    

    

    

    



 
 
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements 2019 
 
 
Schedule of investments (continued) 
 
As at 30 November 2019 
 
Transferable Securities admitted to an Official Stock Exchange Listing or traded on a Regulated Market. The 
percentages in brackets show the equivalent country of origin and sector holdings at 30 November 2018. 
 

 
Invesco MSCI Japan UCITS ETF   177 

Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

 
Packaging & Containers: 0.00% (2018: 
0.13%)   

6 Gerresheimer AG Class A Com NPV 442 0.00

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.88% (2018: 0.00%)   

3 Bayer AG Com NPV 227 0.00

1,189 Merck KGaA Com NPV 138,965 0.88

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.45%)   

18 TAG Immobilien AG Class A Com NPV 433 0.00

 Retail: 0.23% (2018: 0.14%)   

463 Fielmann AG Class A Com NPV 36,169 0.23

 Semiconductors: 0.40% (2018: 0.00%)   

769 Siltronic AG Class A Com NPV 63,728 0.40

 Software: 0.24% (2018: 0.41%)   

6 CompuGroup Medical SE Com NPV 411 0.00

1 New Work SE Com NPV 339 0.00

733 RIB Software SE Com NPV 19,332 0.12

144 SAP SE Com NPV 19,605 0.12

 
Telecommunications: 1.26% (2018: 
1.15%)   

3,657 Deutsche Telekom AG Com NPV 61,435 0.39

5,922 Freenet AG Com NPV 137,970 0.87

129 Telefonica Deutschland Holding AG Com 
NPV 394 0.00

 Transportation: 0.38% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,627 Deutsche Post AG Com NPV 60,707 0.38

 Total Germany 2,285,122 14.45

    

 Luxembourg: 0.57% (2018: 0.62%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.19%)   

 Media: 0.56% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,860 RTL Group SA Com NPV 88,801 0.56

 Real Estate: 0.01% (2018: 0.43%)   

249 Aroundtown SA Com EUR0.01 2,164 0.01

 Total Luxembourg 90,965 0.57

    

 Netherlands: 9.35% (2018: 3.35%)   

 Auto Manufacturers: 0.08% (2018: 0.00%)   

72 Ferrari NV Com EUR0.01 12,115 0.08

 Banks: 0.02% (2018: 0.00%)   

246 ING Groep NV Com EUR0.01 2,833 0.02

 Beverages: 1.50% (2018: 0.24%)   

2,294 Heineken NV Com EUR1.60 237,861 1.50

 Chemicals: 0.94% (2018: 0.11%)   

3 Akzo Nobel NV Com EUR0.50 288 0.00

1,160 Koninklijke DSM NV Com EUR1.50 148,750 0.94

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.60%)   

9 Randstad NV Com EUR0.10 525 0.00

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.29% 
(2018: 0.10%)   

1,921 Flow Traders Com EUR0.10 45,115 0.29

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

22 Signify NV Com EUR0.01 657 0.00

 Food: 0.52% (2018: 0.00%)   
3,202 Koninklijke Ahold Delhaize NV Com 

EUR0.01 82,561 0.52

8 Unilever NV Com EUR0.16 475 0.00

 
Healthcare-Products: 2.72% (2018: 
0.00%)   

1,600 QIAGEN NV Com EUR0.01 - Xetra 68,555 0.43

12,161 Wright Medical Group NV EUR0.03 362,033 2.29

 Insurance: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

230 Aegon NV Com EUR0.12 1,038 0.01

12 NN Group NV Com NPV 461 0.00

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

76 CNH Industrial NV Com EUR0.01 817 0.01

 Media: 0.01% (2018: 0.30%)   

27 Wolters Kluwer NV Com EUR0.12 1,940 0.01

 
Metal Fabricate/Hardware: 0.00% (2018: 
1.56%)   

 Mining: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

55 Constellium NV Class A Com EUR0.02 778 0.01

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

10 Aalberts Industries NV Com EUR0.25 424 0.00

 Pharmaceuticals: 2.31% (2018: 0.00%)   

19,428 Mylan NV Com EUR0.01 364,858 2.31

 Pipelines: 0.90% (2018: 0.00%)   

2,667 Koninklijke Vopak NV Com EUR0.50 142,297 0.90

 Semiconductors: 0.00% (2018: 0.44%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.03% (2018: 
0.00%)   

450 Altice Europe NV EUR0.01 2,680 0.02

378 Koninklijke KPN NV Com EUR0.04 1,165 0.01

Total Netherlands 1,478,226 9.35

    

 Norway: 0.29% (2018: 13.05%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.27%)   

 Food: 0.28% (2018: 4.63%)   
32 Leroy Seafood Group ASA Com 

NOK1.00 203 0.00

4,528 Orkla ASA Com NOK1.25 43,886 0.28
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 Insurance: 0.01% (2018: 2.68%)   

30 Gjensidige Forsikring ASA Com NOK2.00 565 0.01

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 2.75%)   

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

87 Elkem ASA Com NOK5.00 201 0.00

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.00% (2018: 2.71%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

22 Telenor ASA Com NOK6.00 402 0.00

 Total Norway 45,257 0.29

    

 Portugal: 0.34% (2018: 0.43%)   

 Electric: 0.02% (2018: 0.00%)   
626 EDP - Energias de Portugal SA Com 

EUR1.00 2,533 0.02
 Food: 0.32% (2018: 0.43%)   

3,193 Jeronimo Martins SGPS SA Com 
EUR1.00 51,031 0.32

 Forest Products & Paper: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

15 Semapa-Sociedade de Investimento e 
Gestao Com NPV 226 0.00

 Total Portugal 53,790 0.34

    

 Spain: 3.18% (2018: 0.91%)   

 Electric: 1.50% (2018: 0.00%)   

2,012 Endesa SA Com EUR1.20 54,751 0.35

4,964 Iberdrola SA Com EUR0.75 48,866 0.31

6,784 Red Electrica Corp SA Com EUR0.50 132,771 0.84

 
Engineering & Construction: 1.10% (2018: 
0.00%)   

4,481 ACS Actividades de Construccion y 
Servicios SA Com EUR0.50 174,557 1.10

 Oil & Gas: 0.26% (2018: 0.91%)   

2,574 Repsol SA Com EUR1.00 40,556 0.26

 Software: 0.32% (2018: 0.00%)   

638 Amadeus IT Group SA Com EUR0.01 50,860 0.32

 Total Spain 502,361 3.18

    

 Sweden: 7.68% (2018: 15.74%)   

 Agriculture: 0.58% (2018: 0.23%)   
1,917 Swedish Match AB Class A Com 

SEK1.98 91,863 0.58

 Auto Manufacturers: 0.03% (2018: 0.11%)   

275 Volvo AB Class B Com SEK1.20 4,253 0.03

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
0.02%)   

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 Banks: 2.37% (2018: 0.00%)   
856 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB Class 

A Com SEK10.00 7,344 0.05

28,206 Swedbank AB Class A Com SEK22.00 367,450 2.32

 Building Materials: 0.59% (2018: 0.00%)   

18,734 Munters Group AB Com NPV 93,943 0.59

 
Commercial Services: 0.01% (2018: 
0.23%)   

18 Loomis AB Class B Com SEK5.00 752 0.01

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 0.02% (2018: 
0.00%)   

84 Essity AB Class B Com SEK3.35 2,641 0.02

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.29%)   

 Food: 0.00% (2018: 0.28%)   

22 AAK AB Com NPV 402 0.00

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

38 Sandvik AB Class A Com SEK1.20 691 0.00

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.01% (2018: 
3.39%)   

65 Getinge AB Class B Com SEK0.50 1,129 0.01

 
Holding Companies-Diversified: 2.31% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

13,866 Industrivarden AB Class A Com SEK2.50 327,378 2.07

1,605 Industrivarden AB Class C Com SEK2.50 37,240 0.24

 Iron/Steel: 0.00% (2018: 3.40%)   

 
Machinery-Construction & Mining: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

36 Epiroc AB Class A Com SEK0.41 420 0.00

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.01% 
(2018: 3.09%)   

66 Trelleborg AB Class B Com SEK25.00 1,089 0.01

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.27%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 2.46%)   

 Private Equity: 1.68% (2018: 0.00%)   

14,314 Bure Equity AB Class A Com SEK6.60 265,579 1.68

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 1.28%)   

20 Castellum AB Class A Com SEK0.50 428 0.00

14 Fastighets AB Balder Class B Com 
SEK1.00 584 0.00

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.69%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.07% (2018: 
0.00%)   

1,233 Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson Class B 
Com SEK5.00 11,116 0.07

Total Sweden 1,214,302 7.68
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 Switzerland: 45.33% (2018: 31.42%)   

 Banks: 5.39% (2018: 5.27%)   
148 Banque Cantonale Vaudoise Com 

CHF10.00 113,886 0.72

60,876 UBS Group AG Com CHF0.10 738,297 4.67

 Building Materials: 0.16% (2018: 0.00%)   

2 Belimo Holding AG Com CHF1.00 13,209 0.08

251 LafargeHolcim Ltd Com CHF2.00 12,950 0.08

 Chemicals: 2.19% (2018: 4.36%)   

16,770 Clariant AG Com CHF3.70 346,694 2.19

 
Commercial Services: 0.02% (2018: 
0.00%)   

52 Adecco Group AG Com CHF0.10 3,217 0.02

 Computers: 2.36% (2018: 0.00%)   

8,544 Logitech International SA Com CHF0.25 373,701 2.36

 
Diversified Financial Services: 3.30% 
(2018: 7.49%)   

3,502 Cembra Money Bank AG Class A Com 
CHF1.00 364,795 2.31

3,348 Swissquote Group Holding SA Com 
CHF0.20 156,654 0.99

 Electric: 2.36% (2018: 0.00%)   

5,305 BKW AG Class A Com NPV 373,184 2.36

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
1.39% (2018: 0.45%)   

3,216 Huber + Suhner AG Com CHF0.25 219,796 1.39

 Electronics: 1.42% (2018: 0.21%)   

1,417 ALSO Holding AG Com CHF1.00 224,599 1.42

 
Engineering & Construction: 2.34% (2018: 
0.00%)   

2,085 Flughafen Zurich AG Com CHF10.00 369,911 2.34

 Food: 6.82% (2018: 0.13%)   

369 Barry Callebaut AG Com CHF0.02 742,172 4.69

2 Chocoladefabriken Lindt & Spruengli AG 
Com CHF10.00 15,260 0.10

2 Chocoladefabriken Lindt & Spruengli AG 
Com CHF100.00 170,711 1.08

1,442 Nestle SA Com CHF0.10 149,950 0.95

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.03% (2018: 
0.10%)   

18 Sonova Holding AG Com CHF0.05 4,112 0.03

1 Tecan Group AG Com CHF0.10 269 0.00

 Insurance: 7.58% (2018: 2.66%)   

1,945 Baloise Holding AG Com CHF0.10 338,261 2.14

2,622 Helvetia Holding AG Com CHF0.02 358,136 2.27

269 Swiss Life Holding AG Com CHF5.10 133,457 0.84

6 Swiss Re AG Class A Com CHF0.10 650 0.00

937 Zurich Insurance Group AG Class A Com 
CHF0.10 367,824 2.33

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
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assets

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
2.65%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 1.51% (2018: 
2.98%)   

329 Inficon Holding AG Com CHF5.00 238,516 1.51

 Pharmaceuticals: 6.79% (2018: 2.64%)   

8,164 Novartis AG Com CHF0.50 752,067 4.76

830 Roche Holding AG Class B Com CHF1.00 253,149 1.60

219 Roche Holding AG Com NPV 67,540 0.43

 Real Estate: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

4 Allreal Holding AG Com CHF50.00 766 0.01

2 PSP Swiss Property AG Com CHF0.10 260 0.00

 Retail: 0.55% (2018: 0.00%)   

3 Dufry AG Com CHF5.00 293 0.00

1,382 Galenica AG Class A Com CHF0.10 83,181 0.53

72 Swatch Group AG Com CHF0.45 3,840 0.02

 
Telecommunications: 1.11% (2018: 
2.48%)   

2,233 Sunrise Communications Group AG Com 
NPV 175,293 1.11

Total Switzerland 7,166,600 45.33

    

 United States: 13.76% (2018: 22.62%)   

 Advertising: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

26 Telaria Inc Com USD0.0001 217 0.00

 Aerospace/Defense: 0.02% (2018: 0.00%)   

30 Astronics Corp Com USD0.01 875 0.01

5 Ducommun Inc Com USD0.01 244 0.00

6 HEICO Corp Class A Com USD0.01 603 0.01

1 Teledyne Technologies Inc Com 
USD0.01 342 0.00

 Airlines: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   
1 United Airlines Holdings Inc Com 

USD0.01 93 0.00

 Apparel: 0.02% (2018: 0.00%)   

17 Crocs Inc Com USD0.001 593 0.01

6 Deckers Outdoor Corp Com USD0.01 1,009 0.01

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

29 Commercial Vehicle Group Inc Com 
USD0.01 207 0.00

11 Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc Com 
USD0.001 313 0.00

29 Modine Manufacturing Co Class C Com 
USD0.63 215 0.00

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 2.21%)   

8 Banner Corp Com USD0.01 437 0.00

5 First Financial Corp Com NPV 221 0.00
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8 Simmons First National Corp Class A 
Com USD0.01 207 0.00

6 Southern First Bancshares Inc Com 
USD0.01 257 0.00

8 Univest Corp of Pennsylvania Com 
USD5.00 209 0.00

 Beverages: 0.44% (2018: 0.00%)   
2 Boston Beer Co Inc Class A Com 

USD0.01 769 0.01

1,136 Monster Beverage Corp Com USD0.005 67,956 0.43

 Biotechnology: 2.42% (2018: 0.00%)   

207 Aduro Biotech Inc Com USD0.0001 246 0.00

8 Alexion Pharmaceuticals Inc Com 
USD0.0001 912 0.01

173 Amicus Therapeutics Inc Com USD0.01 1,813 0.01

27 ArQule Inc Com USD0.01 259 0.00

192 Atara Biotherapeutics Inc Com 
USD0.0001 2,728 0.02

19 Audentes Therapeutics Inc Com 
USD0.00001 552 0.01

71 BioCryst Pharmaceuticals Inc Com 
USD0.01 202 0.00

3 Biogen Inc Com USD0.0005 899 0.01

18 Biomarin Pharmaceutical Com 
USD0.001 1,453 0.01

3 Bio-Rad Laboratories Inc Class A Com 
USD0.0001 1,108 0.01

12,136 ChemoCentryx Inc Com USD0.001 368,085 2.33

17 Cytokinetics Inc Com USD0.001 164 0.00

26 Dermira Inc Com USD0.001 212 0.00

48 Epizyme Inc Com USD0.0001 793 0.01

12 Fate Therapeutics Com USD0.001 187 0.00

68 Five Prime Therapeutics Com USD0.001 267 0.00

4 Gilead Sciences Inc Com USD0.001 269 0.00

12 Halozyme Therapeutics Inc Com 
USD0.001 233 0.00

64 Harvard Bioscience Inc Com USD0.01 186 0.00

33 Innoviva Inc Com USD0.01 445 0.00

10 
Iovance Biotherapeutics Inc Com 
USD0.001 228 0.00

161 MEI Pharma Inc Com USD0.00000002 316 0.00

60 Pieris Pharmaceuticals Inc Com 
USD0.001 244 0.00

88 Rigel Pharmaceuticals Inc Com 
USD0.001 197 0.00

 Building Materials: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   
23 GCP Applied Technologies Inc Com 

USD0.01 515 0.01

10 Jeld Wen Holding Inc Com USD0.01 228 0.00
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 Chemicals: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

37 Ferro Corp Com USD1.00 534 0.01

8 Kraton Corp Com USD0.01 180 0.00

11 Univar Solutions Inc Com USD0.01 258 0.00

 Coal: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

20 Contura Energy Inc Com USD0.01 133 0.00

 
Commercial Services: 0.17% (2018: 
0.00%)   

6 Adtalem Global Education Inc Com 
USD0.01 202 0.00

7 American Public Education Inc Com 
USD0.01 173 0.00

6 Avis Budget Group Inc Com STK 
USD0.01 179 0.00

33 Care.com Inc Com USD0.001 413 0.00

2 CoStar Group Inc Com USD0.01 1,226 0.01

1,492 Everi Holdings Inc Com USD0.001 20,097 0.13

3 FTI Consulting Inc Com USD0.01 327 0.00

13 Hackett Group Inc Com USD0.001 199 0.00

11 Herc Holdings Inc Com USD0.01 514 0.01

17 I3 Verticals Inc Class A Com USD0.0001 464 0.00

3 ICF International Inc Com USD0.001 269 0.00

3 McGrath RentCorp Com NPV 220 0.00

13 SP Plus Corp Com USD0.001 570 0.01

7 TriNet Group Inc Com USD0.000025 383 0.00

20 Vectrus Inc Com USD0.01 1,019 0.01

 Computers: 0.20% (2018: 0.00%)   

4,856 A10 Networks Inc Com USD0.00001 32,390 0.20

9 Agilysys Inc Com USD0.3 228 0.00

1 Apple Inc Com USD0.00001 267 0.00

1 CACI International Inc Class A Com 
USD0.10 239 0.00

14 Tenable Holdings Com USD0.01 380 0.00

5 Virtusa Corp Com USD0.01 223 0.00

 
Distribution/Wholesale: 0.77% (2018: 
0.00%)   

3 Copart Inc Com NPV 267 0.00

5 HD Supply Holdings Inc Com USD0.01 199 0.00

5,676 KAR Auction Services Inc Com USD0.01 119,877 0.76

15 ScanSource Inc Com NPV 531 0.01

13 Titan Machinery Inc Com USD0.00001 175 0.00

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.45% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

16 Blucora Inc Com USD0.0001 377 0.00

7,239 Brightsphere Investment Group Inc Com 
USD0.001 69,712 0.44

37 Enova International Inc Com 
USD0.00001 852 0.01
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17 Focus Financial Partners Inc Class A 
Com USD0.01 478 0.00

7 HomeStreet Inc Com NPV 223 0.00

6 INTL. FCStone Inc Com USD0.01 240 0.00

1 Mastercard Inc Class A Com USD0.0001 292 0.00

59 On Deck Capital Inc Com USD0.005 242 0.00

7 Regional Management Corp Com 
USD0.10 228 0.00

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 3.38%)   

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

4 Advanced Energy Industries Inc Com 
USD0.001 257 0.00

20 SPX Corp Com USD0.01 956 0.01

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

30 Fluidigm Corp Del Com USD0.001 76 0.00

4 Itron Inc Com NPV 320 0.00

2 OSI Systems Inc Com NPV 199 0.00

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

4 Dycom Industries Com USD0.33 208 0.00

7 MYR Group Inc Com USD0.01 241 0.00

32 Sterling Construction Co Inc Class C 
Com USD0.01 466 0.00

12 TopBuild Corp Com NPV 1,323 0.01

 Entertainment: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   
10 Penn National Gaming Inc Com STK 

USD0.01 230 0.00

8 SeaWorld Entertainment Inc Com 
USD0.01 234 0.00

 
Environmental Control: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

6 Casella Waste Systems Inc Class A Com 
USD0.01 280 0.00

8 Heritage-Crystal Clean Inc Com 
USD0.01 247 0.00

 Food: 0.02% (2018: 0.00%)   

30 Hostess Brands Inc Com USD0.0001 404 0.00

6 J&J Snack Foods Corp Com NPV 1,110 0.01

5 Performance Food Group Co Class C 
Com USD0.01 235 0.00

8 Seneca Foods Class A Com STK 
USD0.25 313 0.00

32 Simply Good Foods Co Com USD0.01 884 0.01

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.06% (2018: 
0.00%)   

1 ABIOMED Inc Com USD0.01 196 0.00

55 Accuray Inc Com USD0.001 169 0.00

14 AngioDynamics Inc Com USD0.01 215 0.00

   

   

   

   

   

   

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 
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10 Biotelemetery Inc Com USD0.001 463 0.00

5 Boston Scientific Corp Com USD0.01 216 0.00

14 CryoLife Inc Com USD0.01 346 0.00

12 Cutera Inc Com USD0.001 460 0.00

5 Haemonetics Corp Com USD0.01 603 0.01

4 Inogen Inc Com USD0.001 294 0.00

13 Inspire Medical Systems Inc Com 
USD0.001 922 0.01

3 Integer Holdings Corp Com USD0.001 228 0.00

25 Intersect ENT Inc Com USD0.001 542 0.01

9 Lantheus Holdings Inc Com USD0.01 188 0.00

4 Masimo Corp Com USD0.001 620 0.01

37 Meridian Bioscience Inc Com NPV 339 0.00

8 Merit Medical Systems Com STK NPV 224 0.00

8 Natus Medical Inc Com USD0.001 256 0.00

4 Nuvasive Inc Com USD0.001 289 0.00

134 OraSure Technologies Inc Com 
USD0.000001 1,085 0.01

17 Orthofix Medical Inc Com USD0.10 772 0.01

10 Surmodics Inc Com USD0.05 410 0.00

3 Tandem Diabetes Care Inc Com NPV 207 0.00

8 Varex Imaging Corp Com USD0.01 240 0.00

 Healthcare-Services: 0.01% (2018: 3.40%)   

6 Ensign Group Inc Com USD0.001 261 0.00

2 IQVIA Holdings Inc Com USD0.01 292 0.00

4 Magellan Health Inc Com USD0.01 311 0.00

8 Natera Inc Com USD0.0001 292 0.00

4 Providence Service Corp Com USD0.001 239 0.00

31 RadNet Inc Com USD0.0001 594 0.01

 Home Builders: 0.00% (2018: 3.34%)   

19 Beazer Homes USA Inc Com USD0.001 291 0.00

4 Installed Building Products Inc Com 
USD0.01 287 0.00

6 KB Home Com USD1.00 207 0.00

6 M/I Homes Inc Com USD0.01 266 0.00

3 Meritage Homes Corp Com USD0.01 200 0.00

 Home Furnishings: 0.02% (2018: 0.00%)   
6 American Woodmark Corp Com STK 

NPV 617 0.01

10 Hooker Furniture Corp Com NPV 238 0.00

3 Roku Inc Com USD0.0001 481 0.00

16 Universal Electronics Inc Com USD0.01 890 0.01

 
Household Products/Wares: 0.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

24 Central Garden & Pet Co Class A Com 
USD0.01 600 0.01

7 Central Garden & Pet Co Class C Com 
USD0.01 185 0.00
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 Insurance: 1.05% (2018: 0.00%)   
7,780 National General Holdings Corp Com 

USD0.01 165,636 1.05

15 NMI Holdings Inc Class A Com USD0.01 504 0.00

 Internet: 0.16% (2018: 3.29%)   
11 1-800-Flowers.Com Inc Class A Com 

USD0.01 148 0.00

8 Alphabet Inc Class A Com USD0.001 10,433 0.07

3 Amazon.com Inc Com USD0.01 5,402 0.04

5 Bandwidth Inc Class A Com USD0.001 280 0.00

76 Boingo Wireless Inc Com NPV 875 0.01

1 Booking Holdings Inc Com USD0.008 1,904 0.01

18 ChannelAdvisor Corp Com USD0.001 171 0.00

6 Chegg Inc Com USD0.001 233 0.00

6 Eplus Inc Com USD0.01 501 0.00

3 Etsy Inc Com USD0.001 130 0.00

8 Facebook Inc Class A Com 
USD0.000006 1,613 0.01

16 HealthStream Inc Com NPV 466 0.00

4 IAC/InterActiveCorp Com USD0.001 891 0.01

31 Liquidity Services Inc Com USD0.001 217 0.00

39 Meet Group Inc Com USD0.001 189 0.00

4 Okta Inc Class A Com USD0.001 519 0.01

7 Perficient Inc Com USD0.001 296 0.00

4 Rapid7 Inc Com USD0.01 224 0.00

3 Stamps.com Inc Com USD0.001 262 0.00

61 Truecar Inc Com USD0.0001 320 0.00

5 Twitter Inc Com USD0.000005 155 0.00

30 Zix Corp Com USD0.01 226 0.00

 Leisure Time: 0.04% (2018: 0.00%)   
36 Liberty TripAdvisor Holdings Inc Class A 

Com USD0.01 249 0.00

13 Lindblad Expeditions Holdings Inc Com 
USD0.0001 202 0.00

8 Malibu Boats Inc Class A Com USD0.01 316 0.00

27 MasterCraft Boat Holdings Inc Class I 
Com USD0.01 448 0.00

84 Planet Fitness Inc Com USD0.0001 6,209 0.04

53 Vista Outdoor Inc Com USD0.01 439 0.00

 Lodging: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   
5 Monarch Casino & Resort Inc Com 

USD0.01 228 0.00

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

4 Albany International Corp Class A Com 
USD0.001 335 0.00

13 Manitowoc Co Inc Com USD0.01 208 0.00

11 SPX FLOW Inc Com USD0.01 521 0.00

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

32 WideOpenWest Inc Com USD0.01 196 0.00

 
Metal Fabricate/Hardware: 0.03% (2018: 
0.00%)   

118 AZZ Inc Com USD1.00 4,492 0.03

9 L.B. Foster & Co Class A Com USD0.01 170 0.00

5 Lawson Products Inc/DE Com USD1.00 258 0.00

 Mining: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

9 Alcoa Corp Com USD0.01 183 0.00

81 Coeur Mining Inc Com USD0.01 531 0.01

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.77% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

45 American Outdoor Brands Corp Com 
USD0.001 393 0.00

9 Harsco Corp Com USD1.25 200 0.00

11 Lydall Inc Com USD0.10 205 0.00

1,560 Standex International Corp Com 
USD1.50 120,401 0.76

21 TriMas Corp Com USD0.01 651 0.01

 Oil & Gas: 2.25% (2018: 0.00%)   

54 Callon Petroleum Co Com USD0.01 197 0.00

9,006 Helmerich & Payne Inc Com USD0.10 356,007 2.25

18 Montage Resources Com USD0.01 89 0.00

2 Murphy USA Inc Com USD0.01 235 0.00

5 Penn Virginia Corp Com USD0.01 121 0.00

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

16 Exterran Corp Com USD0.01 86 0.00

542 Forum Energy Technologies Inc Class I 
Com USD0.01 710 0.01

14 Geospace Technologies Corp Com 
USD0.01 202 0.00

20 Matrix Service Co Class C Com USD0.01 419 0.00

15 MRC Global Inc Com USD0.01 200 0.00

33 Oceaneering International Inc Com 
USD0.25 443 0.00

10 ProPetro Holding Corp Com USD0.001 86 0.00

98 TETRA Technologies Inc Com USD0.01 121 0.00

16 Thermon Group Holdings Com USD0.001 420 0.00

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.29% (2018: 0.00%)   

212 Akorn Inc Com NPV 774 0.01

9,684 Amneal Pharmaceuticals Inc Class A 
Com USD0.01 36,412 0.23

6 Anika Therapeutics Inc Com USD0.01 347 0.00

33 Apellis Pharmceuticals Inc Com 
USD0.0001 887 0.01

48 Assertio Therapeutics Inc Com NPV 36 0.00

34 Biodelivery Sciences International Com 
USD0.001 232 0.00
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

33 Catalyst Pharmaceuticals Inc Com STK 
USD0.001 153 0.00

19 Concert Pharmaceuticals Inc Com 
USD0.001 143 0.00

2 DexCom Inc Com USD0.001 455 0.00

144 Iveric Bio Inc Com USD0.001 487 0.01

17 Lifevantage Corp Com USD0.0001 256 0.00

6 Merck & Co Inc Com USD0.50 523 0.01

20 MyoKardia Inc Com USD0.0001 1,303 0.01

5 Pacira BioSciences Inc Com USD0.001 231 0.00

6 PRA Health Sciences Inc Com USD0.01 653 0.01

30 TG Therapeutics Inc Com USD0.001 246 0.00

14 Vanda Pharmaceuticals Inc Com 
USD0.001 234 0.00

 Pipelines: 0.00% (2018: 1.25%)   

 Retail: 1.94% (2018: 2.33%)   

3 America's Car-Mart Inc Com USD0.01 328 0.00

80 
Asbury Automotive Group Inc Com 
USD0.01 8,867 0.06

39 AutoZone Inc Com USD0.01 45,939 0.29

16 BMC Stock Holdings Inc Com USD0.01 474 0.00

4 Chipotle Mexican Grill Inc Com USD0.01 3,256 0.02

18 Del Taco Restaurants Inc Com NPV 135 0.00

19 Denny's Corp Com USD0.01 371 0.00

8 Dollar Tree Inc Com USD0.01 732 0.01

16 Fiesta Restaurant Group Inc Com 
USD0.01 158 0.00

43 Foundation Building Materials Inc Com 
USD0.001 879 0.01

10 Freshpet Inc Com USD0.001 537 0.01

12,600 L Brands Inc Com USD0.50 241,164 1.53

28 Noodles & Co Class A Com USD0.01 176 0.00

9 Shake Shack Inc Class A Com USD0.01 558 0.01

19 Vera Bradley Inc Com NPV 210 0.00

7 Zumiez Inc Com NPV 207 0.00

 Savings & Loans: 0.93% (2018: 0.00%)   
7,262 Dime Community Bancshares Inc Com 

USD0.01 146,402 0.93
 Semiconductors: 0.40% (2018: 0.00%)   

24 Adesto Technologies Corp Com 
USD0.0001 173 0.00

4,939 Amkor Technology Inc Com USD0.001 59,713 0.38

23 Axcelis Technologies Inc Com USD0.001 493 0.00

36 AXT Inc Com USD0.001 114 0.00

17 CEVA Inc Com USD0.001 441 0.00

8 Cirrus Logic Inc Com USD0.001 574 0.01

15 DSP Group Inc Com USD0.001 213 0.00

28 FormFactor Inc Com USD0.001 648 0.01

   

   

   

   

   

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

50 Photronics Inc Com USD0.01 588 0.00

10 Semtech Corp Com USD0.01 485 0.00

19 Veeco Instruments Inc Com USD0.01 260 0.00

 Software: 0.07% (2018: 3.42%)   

4 Adobe Inc Com USD0.0001 1,238 0.01

3 Alteryx Inc Class A Com USD0.0001 341 0.00

2 Aspen Technology Inc Com USD0.10 251 0.00

10 Bottomline Technologies DE Inc Com 
USD0.001 495 0.01

18 CommVault Systems Inc Com USD0.01 911 0.01

8 Cornerstone OnDemand Inc Com 
USD0.0001 493 0.00

12 Everbridge Inc Com USD0.001 1,055 0.01

2 Fidelity National Information Services 
Inc Com USD0.01 276 0.00

4 MicroStrategy Inc Class A Com 
USD0.001 601 0.01

91 MobileIron Inc Com USD0.0001 440 0.00

37 Model N Inc Com USD0.00015 1,126 0.01

29 Rosetta Stone Inc Com USD0.00005 451 0.00

20 Smartsheet Inc Com Class A Com NPV 949 0.01

25 SVMK Inc Com USD0.00001 427 0.00

2 Veeva Systems Inc Class A Com 
USD0.00001 298 0.00

4 Workiva Inc Com USD0.001 173 0.00

 
Telecommunications: 1.15% (2018: 
0.00%)   

5 Cisco Systems Inc Com USD0.001 227 0.00

4,777 Comtech Telecommunications Corp Com 
USD0.10 180,523 1.14

34 Extreme Networks Inc Com USD0.001 239 0.00

36 Harmonic Inc Com USD0.001 297 0.00

32 Ooma Inc Com USD0.0001 444 0.00

282 Ribbon Communications Inc Com 
USD0.001 826 0.01

36 TeleNav Com USD0.001 206 0.00

30 Viavi Solutions Inc Com USD0.001 451 0.00

 
Toys/Games/Hobbies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

20 Funko Inc Class A Com USD0.0001 285 0.00

 Transportation: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   
50 Echo Global Logistics Inc Com 

USD0.0001 1,001 0.01

29 Era Group Inc Com USD0.01 278 0.00

9 Tidewater Inc Com USD0.001 138 0.00

Total United States 2,175,479 13.76

Total equities 15,931,326 100.76
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Outperformance swaps**: -0.75% (30 Nov 2018: 0.28%) 

Counterparty CCY Maturity date 

Level 2
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

Goldman Sachs 
International USD 24/02/2022 (81,818) (0.52)

J.P. Morgan Securities 
plc USD 30/11/2020 (23,434) (0.15)

Morgan Stanley & Co. 
International plc USD 10/12/2021 (13,689) (0.08)

Fair value outperformance swaps losses (118,941) (0.75)

     

Fair value outperformance swaps (118,941) (0.75)
 

 
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

Total value of investments 15,812,385 100.01

   

Cash and cash equivalents* 192 0.00

   

Other net liabilities (1,876) (0.01)

   

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
participating shares 15,810,701 100.00

   

* All cash holdings are held with The Northern Trust Company. 
**These outperformance swaps track the MSCI Japan TR Net Index or a 
version of the MSCI Japan TR Net Index which reflects a lower rate of 
withholding tax than ordinarily applied within the Reference Index. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap losses 15,872,309. 
 

 

% of
total 

assets

Unaudited Analysis of Total Assets  

Transferable securities and money market instruments admitted to 
official stock exchange listing. 99.95

Transferable securities and money market instruments traded on a 
regulated market. 0.00

Financial derivative instruments. 0.00

Other assets. 0.05

 100.00
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Statement of comprehensive income 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November 
2018
USD

Income  
Net gains on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss 3 127,893,991 4,317,156
Total investment income 127,893,991 4,317,156
Operating expenses 4 (1,631,241) (1,461,918)
Net income 126,262,750 2,855,238
Profit for the financial year 126,262,750 2,855,238
Increase in Net Assets Attributable to Holders  
of Redeemable Shares  126,262,750 2,855,238
 
There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the increase in Net Assets Attributable 
to Holders of Redeemable Shares of the Company. In arriving at the results of the financial year, all amounts above 
relate to continuing operations. 
 
Statement of financial position 
 
As at 30 November 2019 Notes As at 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

As at
30 November

2018
USD

Current Assets  
Assets at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) 1,268,358,918 739,988,974
Assets at amortised cost  
Cash and cash equivalents 5 200 242
Debtors 6 1,290,271 103,512,560
Total Current Assets 1,269,649,389 843,501,776
Current Liabilities  
Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1, 2(d) (2,370,687) (1,894,423)
Other financial liabilities  
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 7 (1,348,524) (103,592,762)
Total Current Liabilities (excluding Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Shares) (3,719,211) (105,487,185)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares 1,265,930,178 738,014,591
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares
at the beginning of the financial year  738,014,591 904,538,926
Increase in Net Assets Attributable to  
Holders of Redeemable Shares from operations 126,262,750 2,855,238
Amounts received on issue of Redeemable Shares 549,727,879 96,515,215
Amounts paid on redemption of Redeemable Shares (148,075,042) (265,894,788)
Increase/(decrease) in Net Assets resulting from Share transactions 401,652,837 (169,379,573)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Shares
at the end of the financial year 10 1,265,930,178 738,014,591
 
Statement of cash flows 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 Notes Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November 
2018
USD

Cash flows from operating activities  
Proceeds from sale of investments 21,802,384,908 17,611,434,406
Purchase of investments (22,202,424,144) (17,440,567,590)
Management fees paid (1,653,074) (1,451,379)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (401,692,310) 169,415,437
Cash flows from financing activities  
Proceeds from issue of Redeemable Shares 549,727,879 96,515,215
Payments of redemption of Redeemable Shares (148,075,042) (265,894,788)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 401,652,837 (169,379,573)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (39,473) 35,864
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 242 203
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash equivalents 39,431 (35,825)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5 200 242
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
For the financial year ended 30 November 2019 
 
General information 
Investment objective and policy 
The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve the 
Target Performance (which is the net total return 
performance of the Reference Index (being the MSCI 
World TR Net Index) (less fees, expenses and transaction 
costs)). The Fund does not intend to make dividend 
payments. 
 
The Reference Index is a free float adjusted market 
capitalisation weighted Reference Index that is designed 
to measure the performance of the global equities market. 
 
The Fund shall not invest more than 10% of its net assets 
in other UCITS or other open or closed ended CIS. 
 
The functional currency of the Fund is US Dollar and the 
Fund is valued in US Dollar. 
 
1. Significant accounting policies 
 
See pages 35 to 44 for significant accounting policies. 
 
2. Financial risk management 
 
See pages 44 to 50 for general notes. The risk 
management technique applying to this Fund is the 
Commitment Approach. A sensitivity analysis is presented 
below to reflect the Commitment Approach applied. 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis 
 
The sensitivity analysis for the Fund assumes a change in 
the market price of the investments while holding all other 
variables constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur and 
changes in some of the variables may be correlated. 
 
 
 

In addition, as the sensitivity analysis uses historical data 
as a basis for determining future events, it does not 
encompass all possible scenarios, particularly those that 
are of an extreme nature. The reasonably possible 
decrease in the Reference Index is based on the 
movement over the financial year ended to 30 November 
2019. These movements may be different from the long 
term volatility of the Reference Index. 
 
As detailed in the tables below, the decrease in the 
Reference Index (the MSCI World TR Net Index) at 30 
November 2019 and 30 November 2018, with all other 
variables held constant, would have resulted in an 
estimated decrease in the net assets attributable to 
holders of redeemable participating shares as follows, 
increase in Reference Index by 1% will have equal and 
opposite effect: 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November  
2019 

Reference 
Index

close at
30 November

2019

Reference Index 
close assuming 

a 
1% downward 

movement 

Monetary 
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of the 
Reference Index

USD
185,717.526302 6,816.74 6,748.57 (12,659,884.62)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2019. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2019, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
 

Number of 
Reference Index 
units as of  
30 November  
2018 

Reference 
Index

close at
30 November

2018

Reference Index 
close assuming a 

1% downward 
movement 

Monetary
impact of a 

1% downward 
movement of 

the Reference 
Index
USD

124,477.671072 5,929.54 5,870.24 (7,380,947.07)
 
The number of Reference Index units reflect the swap 
positions as at 30 November 2018. Where a subscription 
or redemption is received by the Fund with a dealing date 
of 30 November 2018, the number of Reference Index 
units disclosed reflects the swap position on the following 
business day. 
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
A) Other price risk – sensitivity analysis (continued)  
 
Based on historic movements and volatilities in these 
market variables, and management’s knowledge and 
experience of the financial markets, it was determined 
that the movements listed above are reasonably possible 
over the financial year. 
 
B) Foreign currency risk/interest rate risk 
 
Foreign currency and interest rate exposure is minimal 
due to the nature and strategy of the investments held by 
the Fund. As a result, no sensitivity analysis or exposure 
tables have been disclosed for foreign currency or interest 
rate risk. The Fund is not exposed to significant currency 
risk as all the swaps settle in the base currency of the 
Fund. 
 
C) Liquidity risk 
 
The following tables analyse the Fund's non-derivative 
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period at the Statement of financial 
position date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows. Balances due within twelve months equal their 
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not 
significant. All amounts are stated in US Dollar. 
 
As at 30 November  
2019 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 1,290,242 - 1,290,242
Accrued expenses - 58,282 58,282
Net assets 
attributable to holders 
of Redeemable Shares 1,265,930,178 -1,265,930,178
Total financial liabilities 1,267,220,420 58,282 1,267,278,702
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As at 30 November 
2018 

Less than 
7 days 

7 days to 
1 month Total

Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 103,512,647 - 103,512,647
Accrued expenses - 80,115 80,115
Net assets attributable 
to holders of 
Redeemable Shares 738,014,591 - 738,014,591
Total financial liabilities 841,527,238 80,115 841,607,353
 
The tables below analyse the Fund's derivative financial 
instruments in a loss position and is based on the fact that 
swaps are reset on a monthly basis, rather than the 
contractual maturity date of the swap. All amounts are 
stated in US Dollar. 
 
As at 30 November
2019

7 days to 
1 month 

1-3 
months

More than 
3 months

Financial liabilities at 
fair value through 
profit or loss* 2,370,687 - -
 
As at 30 November
2018

7 days to 
1 month 

1-3
months

More than 
3 months

Financial liabilities at 
fair value through 
profit or loss* 1,894,423 - -
 
* Derivatives settled net. 
 
D) Fair value 
 
The tables below and overleaf analyse within the fair value 
hierarchy the Fund's financial assets and liabilities (by 
class) measured at fair value. All amounts are stated in US 
Dollar. 
 
As at 30 November 
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 1,268,291,709 - -
- Derivatives - 67,209 -
Total assets 1,268,291,709 67,209 -
Liabilities  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
- Derivatives - 2,370,687 -
Total liabilities - 2,370,687 -
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2. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
D) Fair value (continued) 
 
As at 30 November  
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets   
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Equity securities 739,839,601 - -
- Derivatives - 149,373 -
Total assets 739,839,601 149,373 -
Liabilities   
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 
- Derivatives - 1,894,423 -
Total liabilities - 1,894,423 -

 
The Fund did not hold any Level 3 instruments during the 
financial year (30 November 2018: Nil). There were no 
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the financial 
year. 
 
Investments whose values are based on quoted market 
prices in active markets, and therefore classified within 
Level 1, include active listed equities. The Fund does not 
adjust the quoted price for these instruments. 
 
Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not 
considered to be active but are valued based on quoted 
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing 
sources supported by observable inputs are classified 
within Level 2. 
 
The Level 2 amounts above represent outperformance 
swaps. These are priced using a valuation comprising of 
observable data which tracks the performance of the 
Reference Index against the performance of the Fund's 
underlying equity basket. 
 
The Schedule of investments shows the equities split by 
level, country of origin and industry group. The derivatives 
are outperformance swaps. All equities are classified as 
Level 1 and all outperformance swaps as Level 2. 

3. Net gains on financial assets and liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss 

 
 Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Realised gains on 
sale of investments 89,203,519 38,445,081
Realised gains/(losses) on 
outperformance swaps 2,773,079 (11,878,020)
Net currency gains/(losses) 39,431 (35,825)
Net change in unrealised 
appreciation/(depreciation) 
on investments 36,436,390 (21,650,968)
Net change in unrealised 
depreciation on 
outperformance swaps (558,428) (563,112)

127,893,991 4,317,156

 
4. Operating expenses 
 
 Financial 

year ended 
30 November 

2019 
USD 

Financial
year ended

30 November
2018
USD

Management fees 1,631,241 1,461,918
1,631,241 1,461,918

 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager. 
 
5. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

As at
30 November

2018
USD

The Northern Trust 
Company* 200 242

200 242
 
* Cash held is unsegregated. 
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6. Debtors 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

As at
30 November

2018
USD

Sale of securities 
awaiting settlement 1,290,271 103,512,560
 1,290,271 103,512,560
 
7. Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

As at
30 November

2018
USD

Management fees 58,282 80,115
Purchase of securities 
awaiting settlement 1,290,242 103,512,647
 1,348,524 103,592,762
 
All other expenses and fees of the Fund are paid by the 
Manager. 
 
8. Segment reporting 
 
IFRS 8 requires disclosures in respect of the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) and certain 
disclosures in respect of the country of origin of income. 
Management have determined the CODM is the Board of 
Directors. 
 
All revenues are derived from financial assets and are 
attributable to a country based on the domicile of the 
issuer of the instrument. The Schedule of investments 
discloses the investments of the Fund at their fair value by 
their respective country of origin. 
 
There was no dividend income received by the Fund for 
the financial year ended 30 November 2019 (30 
November 2018: Nil). 

9. Share capital 
 
Redeemable  
shares in issue 

Financial 
year ended 

30 November 
2019 

Financial 
year ended

30 November 
2018

Number of Redeemable Shares 
Issued and Fully Paid 
Balance at beginning  
of financial year 12,905,566 15,851,795
Issued during financial year 8,911,141 1,629,860
Redeemed during  
financial year (2,524,412) (4,576,089)
Total number of  
Redeemable Shares in issue at 
end of financial year 19,292,295 12,905,566
 
10. Net asset value 
 
 As at 

30 November 
2019 
USD 

As at
30 November

2018
USD

As at
30 November

2017
USD

Total Net Asset Value 
Class A  
Redeemable Shares 1,265,930,178 738,014,591 904,538,926
Dealing Net Asset Value  
per Redeemable Share 

Class A  
Redeemable Shares 65.6184 57.1858 57.0622
 
11. Collateral 
 
The collateral for Invesco MSCI World UCITS ETF is 
unilateral. The Fund has entered into a Charge Account 
Control Agreement ("the Agreement") with each Swap 
Counterparty being J.P. Morgan Securities plc and 
Goldman Sachs International. The Agreement was in place 
from 25 August 2017 and from 11 August 2017 
respectively. The collateral model involves the pledge of 
collateral to the Swap Counterparties in the form of 
equities. Equities pledged as collateral are marked with an 
asterisk in the Schedule of investments. 
 
There were no securities pledged by the Fund as at 30 
November 2019 (30 November 2018: none). 
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

 Equities: 100.18% (2018: 100.25%)   

 Austria: 0.21% (2018: 0.08%)   

 Building Materials: 0.05% (2018: 0.00%)   

22,681 Wienerberger AG Class A Com NPV 622,701 0.05

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.08%)   

 Iron/Steel: 0.05% (2018: 0.00%)   

23,748 Voestalpine AG Class A Com NPV 629,738 0.05

 Oil & Gas: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

2,286 OMV AG Class A Com NPV 130,413 0.01

 Real Estate: 0.10% (2018: 0.00%)   

31,473 
CA Immobilien Anlagen AG Class A Com 
NPV 1,292,654 0.10

 Total Austria 2,675,506 0.21

    

 Belgium: 8.77% (2018: 0.56%)   

 Banks: 0.82% (2018: 0.00%)   

142,193 KBC Group NV Com NPV 10,369,562 0.82

 Beverages: 1.18% (2018: 0.16%)   

187,916 Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV Com NPV 14,891,190 1.18

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 0.10%)   

 Electric: 0.05% (2018: 0.05%)   

7,757 Elia System Operator SA/NV Com NPV 641,465 0.05

 Electronics: 0.01% (2018: 0.02%)   

642 Barco NV Com NPV 148,299 0.01

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.19% (2018: 
0.00%)   

15,837 Ackermans & van Haaren NV Com NPV 2,383,546 0.19

 
Holding Companies-Diversified: 0.43% 
(2018: 0.04%)   

24,859 Sofina SA Com NPV 5,394,196 0.43

 Insurance: 3.99% (2018: 0.16%)   

841,766 Ageas Com NPV 50,564,588 3.99

 
Investment Companies: 1.86% (2018: 
0.03%)   

231,500 Groupe Bruxelles Lambert SA Com NPV 23,508,700 1.86

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.24% (2018: 0.00%)   

37,122 UCB SA Com NPV 3,010,863 0.24

 Total Belgium 110,912,409 8.77

    

 Bermuda: 0.54% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Chemicals: 0.54% (2018: 0.00%)   

238,224 Axalta Coating Systems Com USD1.00 6,782,237 0.54

 Total Bermuda 6,782,237 0.54

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 Canada: 0.17% (2018: 0.40%)   

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

 Aerospace/Defense: 0.17% (2018: 0.00%)   

78,591 CAE Inc Com NPV 2,114,884 0.17

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 0.40%)   

Total Canada 2,114,884 0.17

    

 Cayman Islands: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

3
New Oriental Education & Technology 
Group ADR 363 0.00

Total Cayman Islands 363 -

    

 Denmark: 5.01% (2018: 1.77%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.53%)   

 Beverages: 2.38% (2018: 0.71%)   

209,624 Carlsberg A/S Class B Com DKK20.00 30,179,620 2.38

3 Royal Unibrew A/S Com DKK2.00 270 0.00

 Biotechnology: 0.53% (2018: 0.00%)   

28,776 Genmab A/S Com DKK1.00 6,709,474 0.53

 
Energy-Alternate Sources: 0.00% (2018: 
0.09%)   

3 Vestas Wind Systems A/S Com DKK1.00 286 0.00

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.14%)   

 Insurance: 0.78% (2018: 0.01%)   

344,353 Tryg A/S Com DKK5.00 9,909,220 0.78

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.60% (2018: 0.00%)   

134,443 Novo Nordisk A/S Class B Com DKK0.20 7,562,964 0.60

 Software: 0.23% (2018: 0.00%)   

26,962 SimCorp A/S Com DKK1.00 2,888,615 0.23

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
0.09%)   

5 GN Store Nord A/S Com DKK4.00 236 0.00

 Transportation: 0.49% (2018: 0.20%)   

911
AP Moller - Maersk A/S Class A Com 
DKK1000.00 1,183,719 0.09

46,458 DSV Panalpina A/S Com DKK1.00 5,062,362 0.40

Total Denmark 63,496,766 5.01

    

 Finland: 5.18% (2018: 2.01%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.01% (2018: 
0.01%)   

2,619 Nokian Renkaat Oyj Com NPV 70,922 0.01

 Chemicals: 0.13% (2018: 0.00%)   

101,762 Kemira Oyj Com NPV 1,591,035 0.13
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 Computers: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

 Electric: 1.21% (2018: 0.13%)   

648,887 Fortum Oyj Com EUR3.40 15,303,750 1.21

 Food: 1.72% (2018: 0.10%)   

322,069 Kesko Oyj Class B Com NPV 21,747,138 1.72

 
Forest Products & Paper: 0.43% (2018: 
0.95%)   

162,165 UPM-Kymmene Oyj Com NPV 5,421,311 0.43

 Healthcare-Services: 0.00% (2018: 0.00%)   

36 Terveystalo Oyj Com NPV 415 0.00

 Insurance: 0.56% (2018: 0.50%)   

175,502 Sampo Oyj Class A Com NPV 7,101,762 0.56

 Leisure Time: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.59% (2018: 
0.14%)   

50,212 Metso Oyj Com NPV 1,926,659 0.15

248,447 Valmet Oyj Com NPV 5,566,413 0.44

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.13% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

164,638 Wartsila Oyj Abp Com NPV 1,658,457 0.13

 Oil & Gas: 0.10% (2018: 0.00%)   

37,685 Neste Oyj Com NPV 1,274,799 0.10

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.29% (2018: 0.14%)   

84,609 Orion Oyj Class B Com EUR0.65 3,684,950 0.29

 
Telecommunications: 0.01% (2018: 
0.00%)   

2,324 Elisa Oyj Com NPV 124,304 0.01

 Total Finland 65,471,915 5.18

    

 Germany: 10.74% (2018: 7.89%)   

 Aerospace/Defense: 0.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

478 MTU Aero Engines AG Class A Com NPV 129,600 0.01

 Airlines: 0.00% (2018: 0.15%)   

 Apparel: 0.36% (2018: 0.00%)   

14,488 Adidas AG Class A Com NPV 4,516,781 0.36

3 Puma SE Com NPV 226 0.00

 Auto Manufacturers: 0.27% (2018: 0.34%)   

17,721 Porsche Automobil Holding SE Pref NPV 1,312,642 0.10

10,855 Volkswagen AG Pref NPV 2,100,272 0.17

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
0.26%)   

4 Rheinmetall AG Class A Com NPV 426 0.00

 Banks: 0.10% (2018: 0.00%)   

23,522 Aareal Bank AG NPV 726,190 0.06

31,067 Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG Class A 
Com NPV 468,259 0.04

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 Biotechnology: 0.00% (2018: 0.19%)   

 Building Materials: 1.17% (2018: 0.01%)   

193,416 HeidelbergCement AG Class A Com NPV 14,309,779 1.13

3,862 Sto SE & Co KGaA Pref NPV 454,780 0.04

 Chemicals: 0.84% (2018: 0.36%)   

111,664 BASF SE Com NPV 8,399,296 0.66

27,830 Brenntag AG Class A Com NPV 1,485,478 0.12

8,066 Symrise AG Class A Com NPV 782,990 0.06

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.19%)   

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 0.05% (2018: 
0.00%)   

5,958 Beiersdorf AG Class A Com NPV 695,359 0.05

 Electric: 1.91% (2018: 0.18%)   

2,042,807 E.ON SE Com NPV 21,393,286 1.69

36,788 RWE AG Class A Com NPV 1,091,535 0.09

52,032 Uniper SE Com NPV 1,680,955 0.13

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.00% (2018: 0.12%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.04% (2018: 
0.00%)   

6,298 Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services 
Worldwide Com NPV 536,924 0.04

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.08% (2018: 
0.22%)   

16,614 Draegerwerk AG & Co KGaA Pref NPV 1,018,514 0.08

 Healthcare-Services: 0.00% (2018: 0.19%)   

 
Household Products/Wares: 0.06% (2018: 
0.00%)   

8,369 Henkel AG & Co KGaA Com NPV 810,189 0.06

 Insurance: 0.79% (2018: 2.36%)   

31,044 Hannover Rueck SE Com NPV 5,767,606 0.46

14,334 Muenchener Rueckversicherungs-
Gesellschaft AG in Muenchen Com NPV 4,118,697 0.33

 Internet: 0.00% (2018: 1.18%)   

 Leisure Time: 0.00% (2018: 0.36%)   

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.23% (2018: 
0.01%)   

114,545 Jungheinrich AG Pref NPV 2,962,935 0.23

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 0.15%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.70% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

68,720 Siemens AG Com NPV 8,874,261 0.70

 Pharmaceuticals: 2.03% (2018: 0.15%)   

220,224 Merck KGaA Com NPV 25,738,813 2.03

 Real Estate: 0.12% (2018: 0.32%)   

39,575 Deutsche Wohnen SE Com NPV 1,546,875 0.12
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 Semiconductors: 0.00% (2018: 0.11%)   

3 Siltronic AG Class A Com NPV 249 0.00

 Software: 0.10% (2018: 0.36%)   

714 New Work SE Com NPV 242,081 0.02

7,107 SAP SE Com NPV 967,611 0.08

 
Telecommunications: 1.87% (2018: 
0.19%)   

987,319 Deutsche Telekom AG Com NPV 16,586,183 1.31

285,374 Freenet AG Com NPV 6,648,626 0.52

155,541 Telefonica Deutschland Holding AG Com 
NPV 475,225 0.04

 Transportation: 0.01% (2018: 0.49%)   

2,127 Deutsche Post AG Com NPV 79,363 0.01

 Total Germany 135,922,006 10.74

    

 Guernsey: 0.00% (2018: 0.26%)   

 Computers: 0.00% (2018: 0.26%)   

 Total Guernsey - -

    

 Ireland: 1.35% (2018: 1.40%)   

 Computers: 0.00% (2018: 0.84%)   

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.00% (2018: 
0.56%)   

 Insurance: 0.59% (2018: 0.00%)   
38,307 Willis Towers Watson PLC Com 

USD0.000304635 7,525,027 0.59

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.76% (2018: 0.00%)   

51,774 Allergan PLC Com USD0.0033 9,575,084 0.76

 Total Ireland 17,100,111 1.35

    

 Liechtenstein: 0.00% (2018: 0.24%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.24%)   

 Total Liechtenstein - -

    

 Luxembourg: 0.58% (2018: 0.35%)   

 Iron/Steel: 0.33% (2018: 0.00%)   

246,312 ArcelorMittal Com NPV 4,217,150 0.33

 Media: 0.07% (2018: 0.00%)   

18,648 RTL Group SA Com NPV 890,304 0.07

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.18% (2018: 0.00%)   

217,422 Subsea 7 SA Com USD2.00 2,278,662 0.18

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.35%)   

9 Grand City Properties SA Com EUR0.10 209 0.00

 Total Luxembourg 7,386,325 0.58

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

 Netherlands: 13.01% (2018: 2.16%)   

 Agriculture: 0.00% (2018: 0.16%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
0.03%)   

 Banks: 0.60% (2018: 0.70%)   

655,925 ING Groep NV Com EUR0.01 7,553,340 0.60

 Beverages: 0.11% (2018: 0.00%)   

14,858 Heineken Holding NV Com EUR1.60 1,425,272 0.11

 Chemicals: 1.38% (2018: 0.03%)   

172,032 Akzo Nobel NV Com EUR0.50 16,487,202 1.30

7,393 Koninklijke DSM NV Com EUR1.50 948,022 0.08

 
Commercial Services: 0.52% (2018: 
0.00%)   

113,135 Randstad NV Com EUR0.10 6,593,897 0.52

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.03%)   

 Electronics: 0.15% (2018: 0.00%)   

40,002 Koninklijke Philips NV Com EUR0.20 1,858,856 0.15

 Food: 1.06% (2018: 0.15%)   
80,639 Koninklijke Ahold Delhaize NV Com 

EUR0.01 2,079,220 0.17

190,683 Unilever NV Com EUR0.16 11,311,293 0.89

 Insurance: 2.74% (2018: 0.00%)   

4,717,838 Aegon NV Com EUR0.12 21,286,127 1.68

359,393 ASR Nederland NV Com EUR0.16 13,366,077 1.06

6 NN Group NV Com NPV 230 0.00

 Internet: 0.33% (2018: 0.00%)   

99,899 Yandex NV Class A Com EUR0.01 4,192,761 0.33

 Media: 2.68% (2018: 0.82%)   

473,025 Wolters Kluwer NV Com EUR0.12 33,984,678 2.68

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.64% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

190,527 Aalberts Industries NV Com EUR0.25 8,077,387 0.64

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.00% (2018: 0.10%)   

 Semiconductors: 1.32% (2018: 0.14%)   

144,680 NXP Semiconductors NPV Com EUR0.20 16,722,114 1.32

 Software: 0.36% (2018: 0.00%)   

53,854 InterXion Holding NV Com EUR0.10 4,579,744 0.36

 
Telecommunications: 1.12% (2018: 
0.00%)   

4,616,965 Koninklijke KPN NV Com EUR0.04 14,233,501 1.12

Total Netherlands 164,699,721 13.01

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    



 
 
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements 2019 
 
 
Schedule of investments (continued) 
 
As at 30 November 2019 
 
Transferable Securities admitted to an Official Stock Exchange Listing or traded on a Regulated Market. The 
percentages in brackets show the equivalent country of origin and sector holdings at 30 November 2018. 
 

 
194   Invesco MSCI World UCITS ETF 

Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 Norway: 1.89% (2018: 1.50%)   

 Banks: 0.17% (2018: 0.75%)   
199,649 SpareBank 1 SR-Bank ASA Com 

NOK25.00 2,106,052 0.17

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 Computers: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.16%)   

 Food: 1.29% (2018: 0.08%)   
33 Leroy Seafood Group ASA Com 

NOK1.00 209 0.00

755,102 Orkla ASA Com NOK1.25 7,318,494 0.58

188,300 Salmar ASA Com NOK0.25 8,975,819 0.71

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.10%)   

 Media: 0.19% (2018: 0.09%)   

87,767 Schibsted ASA Class A Com NOK0.50 2,406,312 0.19

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 0.21%)   

 Oil & Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.05%)   

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.07% (2018: 0.00%)   

534,181 PGS ASA Com NOK3.00 902,811 0.07

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.04%)   

 Retail: 0.17% (2018: 0.00%)   

605,072 Europris ASA Com NOK1.00 2,112,916 0.17

 Total Norway 23,822,613 1.89

    

 Portugal: 0.27% (2018: 0.03%)   

 Food: 0.14% (2018: 0.02%)   

97,540 
Jeronimo Martins SGPS SA Com 
EUR1.00 1,558,902 0.12

223,065 Sonae SGPS SA Com EUR1.00 223,939 0.02

 Oil & Gas: 0.13% (2018: 0.01%)   

100,355 Galp Energia SGPS SA Com EUR1.00 1,634,875 0.13

 Total Portugal 3,417,716 0.27

    

 Spain: 0.55% (2018: 0.06%)   

 Electric: 0.32% (2018: 0.01%)   

48,108 Endesa SA Com EUR1.20 1,309,123 0.10

108,173 Iberdrola SA Com EUR0.75 1,064,856 0.08

87,589 Red Electrica Corp SA Com EUR0.50 1,714,217 0.14

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.04% (2018: 
0.00%)   

13,610 ACS Actividades de Construccion y 
Servicios SA Com EUR0.50 530,175 0.04

 Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.03%)   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 
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Fair value
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 Oil & Gas: 0.06% (2018: 0.01%)   

52,030 Repsol SA Com EUR1.00 819,793 0.06

 Retail: 0.07% (2018: 0.01%)   
27,517 Industria de Diseno Textil SA Com 

EUR0.03 857,415 0.07

 Software: 0.06% (2018: 0.00%)   

9,741 Amadeus IT Group SA Com EUR0.01 776,533 0.06

Total Spain 7,072,112 0.55

    

 Sweden: 9.39% (2018: 9.29%)   

 Agriculture: 0.00% (2018: 3.95%)   

 Apparel: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

 Auto Manufacturers: 0.85% (2018: 0.00%)   

693,347 Volvo AB Class B Com SEK1.20 10,723,821 0.85

 Banks: 0.41% (2018: 0.00%)   
599,031 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB Class 

A Com SEK10.00 5,139,120 0.41

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

6 Loomis AB Class B Com SEK5.00 251 0.00

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 3.90% (2018: 
0.08%)   

1,568,428 Essity AB Class B Com SEK3.35 49,319,832 3.90

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 Entertainment: 0.00% (2018: 0.43%)   

 Food: 0.00% (2018: 0.28%)   

10 AAK AB Com NPV 183 0.00

 Hand/Machine Tools: 1.96% (2018: 0.33%)   

1,366,272 Sandvik AB Class A Com SEK1.20 24,857,140 1.96

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.39% (2018: 
0.20%)   

636,295 Arjo AB Class B Com SEK0.33 2,837,092 0.22

126,354 Getinge AB Class B Com SEK0.50 2,194,528 0.17

 Healthcare-Services: 0.21% (2018: 0.10%)   

354,863 Ambea AB Class A Com SEK0.02 2,706,288 0.21

 Housewares: 0.00% (2018: 0.05%)   

 
Investment Companies: 0.00% (2018: 
0.00%)   

4 Investor AB Class B Com SEK6.25 212 0.00

 Iron/Steel: 0.14% (2018: 0.04%)   

572,766 SSAB AB Class A Com SEK8.80 1,783,134 0.14

 Lodging: 0.00% (2018: 0.13%)   
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Machinery-Construction & Mining: 0.48% 
(2018: 0.10%)   

188,173 Atlas Copco AB Class B Com NPV 6,086,236 0.48

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.03%)   

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 0.16%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.33% 
(2018: 1.19%)   

252,397 Trelleborg AB Class B Com SEK25.00 4,164,802 0.33

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 1.34%)   

 Real Estate: 0.28% (2018: 0.35%)   

76,824 Castellum AB Class A Com SEK0.50 1,645,285 0.13

204,286 Kungsleden AB Class A Com SEK0.42 1,955,967 0.15

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.12%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.44% (2018: 
0.09%)   

617,977 Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson Class B 
Com SEK5.00 5,571,519 0.44

 Transportation: 0.00% (2018: 0.29%)   

 Total Sweden 118,985,410 9.39

    

 Switzerland: 11.51% (2018: 3.99%)   

 Banks: 0.60% (2018: 0.39%)   

621,323 UBS Group AG Com CHF0.10 7,535,333 0.60

 Building Materials: 0.71% (2018: 0.00%)   

3,228 Geberit AG Com CHF0.10 1,733,917 0.14

139,949 LafargeHolcim Ltd Com CHF2.00 7,220,464 0.57

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 0.12%)   

 
Commercial Services: 2.03% (2018: 
0.18%)   

416,020 Adecco Group AG Com CHF0.10 25,735,084 2.03

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.19% 
(2018: 0.00%)   

23,079 Cembra Money Bank AG Class A Com 
CHF1.00 2,404,086 0.19

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 0.36%)   

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.00% (2018: 0.04%)   

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.31% (2018: 
0.00%)   

22,416 Flughafen Zurich AG Com CHF10.00 3,976,942 0.31

 Food: 0.09% (2018: 0.97%)   
14 Chocoladefabriken Lindt & Spruengli AG 

Com CHF100.00 1,194,977 0.09

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.00% (2018: 
0.24%)   
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 Insurance: 1.58% (2018: 0.34%)   

3,161 Helvetia Holding AG Com CHF0.02 431,757 0.03

24,956 Swiss Life Holding AG Com CHF5.10 12,381,233 0.98

18,478 Zurich Insurance Group AG Class A Com 
CHF0.10 7,253,634 0.57

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.00% (2018: 
0.06%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.08%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 5.74% (2018: 0.08%)   

347,522 Novartis AG Com CHF0.50 32,013,684 2.53

131,573 Roche Holding AG Com NPV 40,577,174 3.21

 Real Estate: 0.07% (2018: 0.35%)   

4,827 Allreal Holding AG Com CHF50.00 924,489 0.07

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.37%)   

 
Telecommunications: 0.19% (2018: 
0.00%)   

30,320 Sunrise Communications Group AG Com 
NPV 2,380,151 0.19

 Transportation: 0.00% (2018: 0.39%)   

Total Switzerland 145,762,925 11.51

    

 United States: 31.01% (2018: 68.26%)   

 Aerospace/Defense: 2.23% (2018: 1.65%)   

16,878 Boeing Co Com USD5.00 6,180,386 0.49

123,306 Honeywell International Inc Com 
USD1.00 22,016,286 1.74

 Agriculture: 1.38% (2018: 0.43%)   

210,216 Philip Morris International Inc Com NPV 17,433,213 1.38

 Airlines: 0.28% (2018: 3.01%)   

56,978 SkyWest Inc Com NPV 3,569,102 0.28

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.00% (2018: 
2.81%)   

 Banks: 0.34% (2018: 1.24%)   
112,423 Citizens Financial Group Inc Com 

USD0.01 4,323,789 0.34

 Beverages: 0.50% (2018: 0.01%)   

106,739 Monster Beverage Corp Com USD0.005 6,385,127 0.50

 Biotechnology: 0.50% (2018: 6.87%)   
71 BioCryst Pharmaceuticals Inc Com 

USD0.01 202 0.00

20,812 Biogen Inc Com USD0.0005 6,239,646 0.49

12 Halozyme Therapeutics Inc Com 
USD0.001 233 0.00

71,197 RTI Surgical Holdings Inc Com 
USD0.001 131,714 0.01
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 Building Materials: 0.24% (2018: 0.00%)   
5 Gibraltar Industries Inc Com STK 

USD0.01 261 0.00

132,129 Jeld Wen Holding Inc Com USD0.01 3,005,935 0.24

 Chemicals: 0.92% (2018: 0.82%)   
48,311 Air Products & Chemicals Inc Com 

USD1.00 11,417,339 0.90

14,396 PQ Group Holdings Inc Com NPV 228,320 0.02

 Coal: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 
Commercial Services: 0.57% (2018: 
3.43%)   

8 I3 Verticals Inc Class A Com USD0.0001 219 0.00

66,656 PayPal Holdings Inc Com USD0.0001 7,199,515 0.57

 Computers: 0.41% (2018: 1.85%)   

18,465 A10 Networks Inc Com USD0.00001 123,161 0.01

3,493 Apple Inc Com USD0.00001 933,504 0.07

68,215 NetApp Inc Com USD0.001 4,133,147 0.33

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 0.83% (2018: 
0.27%)   

881,786 Avon Products Inc Com USD0.25 4,047,398 0.32

94,307 Colgate-Palmolive Co Class C Com 
USD1.00 6,395,901 0.51

 
Distribution/Wholesale: 0.00% (2018: 
0.04%)   

 
Diversified Financial Services: 0.62% 
(2018: 1.05%)   

150,810 TD Ameritrade Holding Corp Com 
USD0.01 7,816,482 0.62

 Electric: 0.56% (2018: 2.91%)   

115,153 Xcel Energy Inc Com USD2.50 7,080,758 0.56

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.00% (2018: 1.97%)   

7 SPX Corp Com USD0.01 334 0.00

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 2.54%)   

 
Energy-Alternate Sources: 0.00% (2018: 
0.29%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.03%)   

662 Aegion Corp Com USD0.01 14,339 0.00

 Entertainment: 0.00% (2018: 0.99%)   

 
Environmental Control: 0.00% (2018: 
0.87%)   

 Food: 1.50% (2018: 1.58%)   

82,077 Campbell Soup Co Class C Com USD0.04 3,822,326 0.30

289,379 Mondelez International Inc Class A Com 
NPV 15,203,973 1.20

 
Forest Products & Paper: 0.00% (2018: 
0.52%)   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

USD

% of
net

assets

 Gas: 0.00% (2018: 0.45%)   

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.00% (2018: 0.09%)   

 
Healthcare-Products: 1.34% (2018: 
2.92%)   

198,863 Abbott Laboratories Com NPV 16,992,843 1.34

2 Boston Scientific Corp Com USD0.01 87 0.00

5 Globus Medical Inc Class A Com 
USD0.001 280 0.00

 Healthcare-Services: 0.00% (2018: 3.90%)   

8 Natera Inc Com USD0.0001 292 0.00

 Home Builders: 0.64% (2018: 0.00%)   

105,417 DR Horton Inc Com USD0.01 5,834,831 0.46

51,636 M/I Homes Inc Com USD0.01 2,285,926 0.18

 Home Furnishings: 0.00% (2018: 0.01%)   

 Insurance: 0.88% (2018: 2.60%)   
50,776 Berkshire Hathaway Inc Class B Com 

USD0.0033 11,185,953 0.88

 Internet: 4.38% (2018: 0.63%)   

8,984 Alphabet Inc Class A Com USD0.001 11,715,945 0.93

8,836 Amazon.com Inc Com USD0.01 15,911,869 1.26

1,570 eGain Corp Com USD0.001 11,979 0.00

57,191 Facebook Inc Class A Com 
USD0.000006 11,531,993 0.91

46,056 GoDaddy Inc Class A Com USD0.001 3,057,197 0.24

14,312 Netflix Inc Com USD0.001 4,503,414 0.36

61,832 Twitter Inc Com USD0.000005 1,911,227 0.15

35,290 VeriSign Inc Com USD0.001 6,731,215 0.53

 Iron/Steel: 0.00% (2018: 2.29%)   

 Leisure Time: 0.00% (2018: 0.02%)   

 Lodging: 0.31% (2018: 0.34%)   

32,336 Wynn Resorts Ltd Com USD0.01 3,907,806 0.31

 
Machinery-Diversified: 0.38% (2018: 
0.13%)   

13,243 Roper Technologies Inc Com USD0.01 4,772,380 0.38

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 0.52%)   

 
Metal Fabricate/Hardware: 0.00% (2018: 
0.01%)   

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 0.13%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.23%)   

 Office Furnishings: 0.00% (2018: 0.29%)   

 Oil & Gas: 1.22% (2018: 0.20%)   

48,263 Diamondback Energy Inc Com USD0.01 3,732,660 0.29

194,325 Marathon Petroleum Corp Com USD0.01 11,783,868 0.93

 Oil & Gas Services: 0.19% (2018: 0.71%)   

89,533 Thermon Group Holdings Com USD0.001 2,349,346 0.19
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

 
Packaging & Containers: 0.25% (2018: 
1.84%)   

77,680 Westrock Co Com USD0.01 3,132,834 0.25

 Pharmaceuticals: 1.02% (2018: 1.55%)   

323,553 Akorn Inc Com NPV 1,180,968 0.09

436,094 Antares Pharma Inc Com USD0.01 2,062,725 0.16

645,333 Diplomat Pharmacy Inc Com NPV 3,323,465 0.26

6,428 Jounce Therapeutics Inc Com USD0.001 34,775 0.00

197 MyoKardia Inc Com USD0.0001 12,835 0.00

13 Recro Pharma Inc Com USD0.01 215 0.00

53,080 Zoetis Inc Com USD0.01 6,397,202 0.51

 Private Equity: 0.00% (2018: 0.71%)   

 Real Estate: 0.00% (2018: 0.03%)   

 Retail: 0.32% (2018: 5.92%)   

2,447 AutoZone Inc Com USD0.01 2,882,370 0.23

46,703 Foundation Building Materials Inc Com 
USD0.001 954,609 0.08

3 Shake Shack Inc Class A Com USD0.01 186 0.00

2 Starbucks Corp Com USD0.001 171 0.00

10,110 TravelCenters of America Inc Com 
USD0.001 102,819 0.01

 Savings & Loans: 0.18% (2018: 0.09%)   

141,553 Brookline Bancorp Inc Com USD0.01 2,271,926 0.18

 Semiconductors: 3.35% (2018: 1.24%)   

4 Cirrus Logic Inc Com USD0.001 287 0.00

510,119 Intel Corp Com USD0.001 29,612,408 2.34

81,506 Maxim Integrated Products Com 
USD0.001 4,618,945 0.36

40,889 Micron Technology Inc Com USD0.10 1,942,636 0.15

53,044 Texas Instruments Inc Com USD1.00 6,376,419 0.50

 Software: 2.88% (2018: 3.35%)   

21,039 Adobe Inc Com USD0.0001 6,512,202 0.51

82,039 Cadence Design Systems Inc Com 
USD0.01 5,763,240 0.46

39 Cloudera Inc Com USD0.00005 385 0.00

4 Cornerstone OnDemand Inc Com 
USD0.0001 247 0.00

35,825 Electronic Arts Inc Com USD0.01 3,618,683 0.29

3 Everbridge Inc Com USD0.001 264 0.00

23,526 Intuit Inc Com USD0.01 6,090,646 0.48

9 LivePerson Inc Com USD0.001 357 0.00

51,090 ServiceNow Inc Com USD0.001 14,460,514 1.14

24,652 Zovio Inc Com USD0.01 49,797 0.00

 
Telecommunications: 0.97% (2018: 
2.01%)   

5 Anterix Inc Com USD0.0001 212 0.00

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

158,460 AT&T Inc Com USD1.00 5,923,235 0.47

801 CalAmp Corp Com USD0.01 8,402 0.00

6 EchoStar Corp Class A Com USD0.001 252 0.00

106,063
Verizon Communications Inc Com 
USD0.10 6,389,235 0.50

 Transportation: 1.82% (2018: 0.86%)   

53,431 Norfolk Southern Corp Com USD1.00 10,338,899 0.82

105,910
United Parcel Service Inc Class B Com 
STK USD0.01 12,680,604 1.00

Total United States 392,668,690 31.01

Total equities 1,268,291,709 100.18
 

Outperformance swaps**: -0.18% (2018: -0.24%) 

Counterparty CCY Maturity date 

Level 2 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

Société Générale USD 28/02/2020 67,209 0.01

Fair value outperformance swaps gain 67,209 0.01

   

Goldman Sachs International USD 24/02/2022 (336,069) (0.03)

J.P. Morgan Securities plc USD 30/11/2020 (231,621) (0.02)

Morgan Stanley & Co. 
International plc USD 10/12/2021 (1,802,997) (0.14)

Fair value outperformance swaps losses (2,370,687) (0.19)

     

Fair value outperformance swaps (2,303,478) (0.18)

 

 
Fair value 

USD 

% of
net

assets

Total value of investments 1,265,988,231 100.00

   

Cash and cash equivalents* 200 0.00

   

Other net liabilities (58,253) 0.00

   

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable 
participating shares 1,265,930,178 100.00

   

* All cash holdings are held with The Northern Trust Company. 

** These outperformance swaps track the MSCI World TR Net Index or a 
version of the MSCI World TR Net Index which reflects a lower rate of 
withholding tax than ordinarily applied within the Reference Index. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap gains 151,817,172. 

Combined notional values of outperformance swap losses 1,119,464,666. 
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198   Invesco MSCI World UCITS ETF 

 

% of 
total 

assets

Unaudited Analysis of Total Assets  

Transferable securities and money market instruments admitted to 
official stock exchange listing. 99.89

Transferable securities and money market instruments traded on a 
regulated market. 0.00

Financial derivative instruments. 0.01

Other assets. 0.10

 100.00
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10. Net asset value 
 

 

As at 
30 November 

2019 
EUR 

As at 
30 November 

2018 
EUR 

As at
30 November

2017
EUR

Total Net Asset Value  
Class A 
Redeemable Shares 2,071,297 4,018,467 4,697,116
Dealing Net Asset Value  
per Redeemable Share  

Class A 
Redeemable Shares 115.4183 104.1647 98.4452
 
11. Collateral 
 
The collateral for Invesco STOXX Europe 600 Optimised 
Media UCITS ETF is unilateral. The Fund has entered into a 
Charge Account Control Agreement ("the Agreement") 
with each Swap Counterparty being J.P. Morgan 
Securities plc and Goldman Sachs International. The 
Agreement was in place from 25 August 2017 and from 
11 August 2017 respectively. The collateral model 
involves the pledge of collateral to the Swap 
Counterparties in the form of equities. Equities pledged as 
collateral are marked with an asterisk in the Schedule of 
investments. 
 
There were no securities pledged by the Fund as at  
30 November 2019 (30 November 2018: none). 
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

 Equities: 99.28% (2018: 100.44%)   

 Austria: 1.06% (2018: 4.41%)   

 Electric: 0.00% (2018: 1.98%)   

 Oil & Gas: 1.06% (2018: 2.16%)   

423 OMV AG Class A Com NPV 21,886 1.06

 Transportation: 0.00% (2018: 0.27%)   

 Total Austria 21,886 1.06

    

 Belgium: 0.00% (2018: 1.12%)   

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 0.68%)   

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.44%)   

 Total Belgium - -

    

 Denmark: 1.49% (2018: 1.67%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.60%)   

 Building Materials: 0.00% (2018: 0.26%)   

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.31%)   

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.28%)   

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.74% (2018: 0.00%)   

440 H Lundbeck A/S Com DKK5.00 15,299 0.74

 
Telecommunications: 0.75% (2018: 
0.00%)   

362 GN Store Nord A/S Com DKK4.00 15,480 0.75

 Transportation: 0.00% (2018: 0.22%)   

 Total Denmark 30,779 1.49

    

 Finland: 7.09% (2018: 6.29%)   

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.33% (2018: 
0.00%)   

279 Nokian Renkaat Oyj Com NPV 6,852 0.33

 
Commercial Services: 0.00% (2018: 
0.30%)   

 Electric: 1.76% (2018: 3.34%)   

1,704 Fortum Oyj Com EUR3.40 36,449 1.76

 Food: 0.03% (2018: 0.19%)   

9 Kesko Oyj Class B Com NPV 551 0.03

 
Forest Products & Paper: 0.57% (2018: 
0.07%)   

388 UPM-Kymmene Oyj Com NPV 11,764 0.57

 Healthcare-Services: 0.68% (2018: 0.00%)   

1,355 Terveystalo Oyj Com NPV 14,173 0.68

 Insurance: 0.00% (2018: 0.32%)   

2 Sampo Oyj Class A Com NPV 73 0.00

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

 
Machinery-Diversified: 2.09% (2018: 
2.07%)   

407 Kone Oyj Class B Com NPV 23,126 1.12

984 Valmet Oyj Com NPV 19,995 0.97

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.57% (2018: 0.00%)   

301 Orion Oyj Class B Com EUR0.65 11,890 0.57

 
Telecommunications: 1.06% (2018: 
0.00%)   

455 Elisa Oyj Com NPV 22,072 1.06

Total Finland 146,945 7.09

    

 Germany: 21.35% (2018: 43.97%)   

 Aerospace/Defense: 0.12% (2018: 0.00%)   

10 MTU Aero Engines AG Class A Com NPV 2,459 0.12

 Apparel: 1.09% (2018: 2.07%)   

80 Adidas AG Class A Com NPV 22,620 1.09

 
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.86% (2018: 
1.66%)   

150 Continental AG Class A Com NPV 17,790 0.86

 Banks: 0.99% (2018: 0.00%)   

730 Aareal Bank AG NPV 20,440 0.99

 Chemicals: 2.18% (2018: 6.70%)   

320 BASF SE Com NPV 21,830 1.05

265 Symrise AG Class A Com NPV 23,331 1.13

 
Commercial Services: 0.73% (2018: 
2.20%)   

243 Sixt SE Pref NPV 15,090 0.73

 Computers: 0.64% (2018: 0.00%)   

499 Jenoptik AG Class A Com NPV 13,184 0.64

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 1.08% (2018: 
3.34%)   

211 Beiersdorf AG Class A Com NPV 22,334 1.08

 Electric: 0.77% (2018: 2.53%)   

1,690 E.ON SE Com NPV 16,052 0.77

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.95% (2018: 
0.00%)   

254 Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services 
Worldwide Com NPV 19,639 0.95

 Home Furnishings: 1.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

31 Rational AG Class A Com NPV 21,545 1.04

 
Household Products/Wares: 0.45% (2018: 
6.69%)   

105 Henkel AG & Co KGaA Com NPV 9,219 0.45

 Insurance: 0.79% (2018: 0.00%)   

97 Hannover Rueck SE Com NPV 16,345 0.79
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 2.17% 
(2018: 1.98%)   

552 Indus Holding AG Class A Com NPV 21,280 1.03

202 Siemens AG Com NPV 23,658 1.14

 
Packaging & Containers: 1.33% (2018: 
0.00%)   

412 Gerresheimer AG Class A Com NPV 27,501 1.33

 Pharmaceuticals: 1.07% (2018: 3.29%)   

210 Merck KGaA Com NPV 22,260 1.07

 Real Estate: 1.07% (2018: 7.48%)   

1,206 
Patrizia Immobilien AG Class A Com 
NPV 22,142 1.07

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.17%)   

 Software: 1.15% (2018: 2.51%)   

36 New Work SE Com NPV 11,070 0.53

105 SAP SE Com NPV 12,965 0.62

 
Telecommunications: 2.87% (2018: 
3.35%)   

1,456 Deutsche Telekom AG Com NPV 22,184 1.07

982 Freenet AG Com NPV 20,750 1.00

5,979 Telefonica Deutschland Holding AG Com 
NPV 16,568 0.80

 Total Germany 442,256 21.35

    

 Luxembourg: 1.93% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Media: 1.04% (2018: 0.00%)   

499 RTL Group SA Com NPV 21,607 1.04

 Real Estate: 0.89% (2018: 0.00%)   

871 Grand City Properties SA Com EUR0.10 18,343 0.89

 Total Luxembourg 39,950 1.93

    

 Netherlands: 2.98% (2018: 24.29%)   

 Beverages: 1.08% (2018: 1.32%)   

258 Heineken Holding NV Com EUR1.60 22,446 1.08

 Chemicals: 0.00% (2018: 2.18%)   

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 0.00% (2018: 
7.05%)   

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
0.00% (2018: 0.28%)   

 Electronics: 0.28% (2018: 7.05%)   

136 Koninklijke Philips NV Com EUR0.20 5,732 0.28

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.26%)   

 Food: 0.50% (2018: 0.00%)   
446 Koninklijke Ahold Delhaize NV Com 

EUR0.01 10,430 0.50

 
Healthcare-Products: 1.12% (2018: 
0.00%)   

596 QIAGEN NV Com EUR0.01 - Xetra 23,161 1.12

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1 
Fair value 

EUR 

% of
net

assets

    

 Media: 0.00% (2018: 2.39%)   

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.39%)   

 Semiconductors: 0.00% (2018: 3.37%)   

Total Netherlands 61,769 2.98

    

 Norway: 0.00% (2018: 1.02%)   

 Banks: 0.00% (2018: 0.36%)   

 Food: 0.00% (2018: 0.25%)   

 Mining: 0.00% (2018: 0.41%)   

Total Norway - -

    

 Panama: 1.25% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Leisure Time: 1.25% (2018: 0.00%)   

633 Carnival Corp Com USD0.01 25,880 1.25

Total Panama 25,880 1.25

    

 Portugal: 0.96% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Food: 0.96% (2018: 0.00%)   
1,375 Jeronimo Martins SGPS SA Com 

EUR1.00 19,931 0.96

Total Portugal 19,931 0.96

    

 Spain: 1.08% (2018: 0.00%)   

 Software: 1.08% (2018: 0.00%)   

309 Amadeus IT Group SA Com EUR0.01 22,341 1.08

Total Spain 22,341 1.08

    

 Sweden: 8.95% (2018: 4.38%)   

 Agriculture: 1.59% (2018: 0.00%)   
757 Swedish Match AB Class A Com 

SEK1.98 32,900 1.59

 Auto Manufacturers: 0.70% (2018: 0.32%)   

1,041 Volvo AB Class B Com SEK1.20 14,603 0.70

 Banks: 0.69% (2018: 0.44%)   
1,827 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB Class 

A Com SEK10.00 14,215 0.69

 
Commercial Services: 0.92% (2018: 
0.00%)   

501 Loomis AB Class B Com SEK5.00 18,988 0.92

 
Cosmetics/Personal Care: 0.79% (2018: 
0.00%)   

576 Essity AB Class B Com SEK3.35 16,427 0.79

 
Engineering & Construction: 0.00% (2018: 
0.22%)   

 Food: 0.69% (2018: 0.24%)   

868 AAK AB Com NPV 14,392 0.69

 Hand/Machine Tools: 0.00% (2018: 0.32%)   
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Holdings 
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

    

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.76% (2018: 
0.28%)   

996 Getinge AB Class B Com SEK0.50 15,689 0.76

 
Holding Companies-Diversified: 1.66% 
(2018: 0.83%)   

746 Industrivarden AB Class A Com SEK2.50 15,974 0.77

879 Industrivarden AB Class C Com SEK2.50 18,497 0.89

 Iron/Steel: 0.41% (2018: 0.27%)   

2,989 SSAB AB Class A Com SEK8.80 8,439 0.41

 Pharmaceuticals: 0.00% (2018: 0.30%)   

 Real Estate: 0.74% (2018: 0.68%)   
404 Fastighets AB Balder Class B Com 

SEK1.00 15,273 0.74

 Retail: 0.00% (2018: 0.48%)   

 Total Sweden 185,397 8.95

    

 Switzerland: 40.90% (2018: 10.03%)   

 Banks: 3.50% (2018: 0.65%)   
180 St. Galler Kantonalbank AG Com 

CHF80.00 72,449 3.50

 Building Materials: 4.00% (2018: 0.27%)   

2 Belimo Holding AG Com CHF1.00 11,979 0.58

1,516 LafargeHolcim Ltd Com CHF2.00 70,938 3.42

 Chemicals: 1.40% (2018: 0.64%)   

845 Clariant AG Com CHF3.70 15,844 0.76

11 Gurit Holding AG Class B Com CHF50.00 13,217 0.64

 
Commercial Services: 0.89% (2018: 
0.31%)   

327 Adecco Group AG Com CHF0.10 18,346 0.89

 
Diversified Financial Services: 4.37% 
(2018: 1.66%)   

382 Cembra Money Bank AG Class A Com 
CHF1.00 36,089 1.74

7,166 GAM Holding AG Class A Com CHF0.05 17,819 0.86

48 Partners Group Holding AG Class A Com 
CHF0.01 36,731 1.77

 Electric: 1.71% (2018: 0.00%)   

554 BKW AG Class A Com NPV 35,345 1.71

 
Electrical Components & Equipment: 
1.42% (2018: 1.17%)   

103 Daetwyler Holding AG Class B Com 
CHF0.05 16,153 0.78

215 Huber + Suhner AG Com CHF0.25 13,327 0.64

 Electronics: 2.96% (2018: 0.00%)   

248 ALSO Holding AG Com CHF1.00 35,651 1.72

305 TE Connectivity Ltd Com CHF0.57 25,645 1.24

 
Engineering & Construction: 1.74% (2018: 
0.43%)   

224 Flughafen Zurich AG Com CHF10.00 36,043 1.74

    

    

    

    

Holdings
Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss 

Level 1
Fair value

EUR

% of
net

assets

    

 Food: 3.17% (2018: 0.15%)   

13 Barry Callebaut AG Com CHF0.02 23,714 1.14

1 Chocoladefabriken Lindt & Spruengli AG 
Com CHF10.00 6,920 0.33

433 Orior AG Com CHF4.00 35,170 1.70

 
Healthcare-Products: 0.34% (2018: 
0.90%)   

34 Sonova Holding AG Com CHF0.05 7,044 0.34

 Insurance: 5.19% (2018: 1.17%)   

453 Baloise Holding AG Com CHF0.10 71,452 3.45

80 Swiss Life Holding AG Com CHF5.10 35,997 1.74

 
Investment Companies: 3.06% (2018: 
0.00%)   

886 Pargesa Holding SA Class B Com 
CHF20.00 63,442 3.06

 
Machinery-Diversified: 3.49% (2018: 
1.12%)   

55 Inficon Holding AG Com CHF5.00 36,163 1.75

872 Zehnder Group AG Com CHF0.05 35,968 1.74

 Media: 0.78% (2018: 0.00%)   

192 Tamedia AG Com CHF10.00 16,118 0.78

 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.00% 
(2018: 0.83%)   

 
Packaging & Containers: 0.73% (2018: 
0.00%)   

6 Vetropack Holding AG Class B Com 
CHF50.00 15,083 0.73

 Real Estate: 0.42% (2018: 0.00%)   

50 Allreal Holding AG Com CHF50.00 8,685 0.42

 Retail: 1.73% (2018: 0.41%)   

656 Galenica AG Class A Com CHF0.10 35,810 1.73

 
Telecommunications: 0.00% (2018: 
0.32%)   

Total Switzerland 847,142 40.90

    

 United Kingdom: 1.20% (2018: 0.00%)   

 
Commercial Services: 1.20% (2018: 
0.00%)   

1,403 Nielsen Holdings PLC Com EUR0.07 24,876 1.20

Total United Kingdom 24,876 1.20

    

 United States: 9.04% (2018: 3.26%)   

 Banks: 0.96% (2018: 0.32%)   

575 Synovus Financial Corp Com USD1 19,864 0.96

 Biotechnology: 1.01% (2018: 0.00%)   

897 Neogenomics Inc Com NPV 20,997 1.01

 Electronics: 0.00% (2018: 0.50%)   

    

    

    

    

    

    
































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































